Open Agenda

LithworK
Council

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission

Monday 7 July 2025
7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room GO2A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Cassandra Brown (Chair) Councillor Joseph Vambe
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair) Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor Irina Von Wiese Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Mohamed Deen Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Margy Newens Councillor Sam Foster
Councillor Jon Hartley Councillor Victor Chamberlain
Councillor Youcef Hassaine Councillor Adam Hood

Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member)
Alie Kallon (Co-opted Member)
Mannah Kargbo (Co-opted Member)

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this
agenda as well as the background documents used in the preparation of these
reports.

Babysitting/Carers allowances

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. Please collect a
claim form at the meeting.

Access

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible. For details on building
access, translation, provision of signers or any other requirements for this meeting,
please contact the person below.

Contact
Amit Alva on email: amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk



mailto:amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk

LithworK

Council

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Althea Loderick [, 7
Chief Executive ‘ ’
Date: 27 June 2025 e



LthworK

Council

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission

Monday 7 July 2025
7.00 pm
Ground Floor Meeting Room GO02A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.
PART A OPEN BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an
agenda within five clear working days of the meeting.

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.

Members to declare any interests and dispensations in respect of
any item of business to be considered at this meeting.

4.  MINUTES 1-17

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on
18 November 2024, 4 February 2025 and 8 April 2025.

5.  PUPIL PLACE PLANNING IN PRIMARY SCHOOLS AND ITS 18 - 133
IMPACT ON SECONDARY SCHOOL ADMISSIONS

Pupil Place Planning in Primary Schools and its impact on
Secondary School admissions under the Keeping Education Strong
(KES) Strategy.



Item No. Title Page No.

6. TRADERS FROM EAST STREET MARKET

To hear the traders’ views on any improvements that have been
made and/or in progress and any areas of concern/issues that the
council could help with.

7. PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMMES 2025-26 134 - 139

To consider and proposes topics for the Education and Local
Economy Scrutiny Commission to review in 2025-26

The following items were proposed by members of the Southwark
Council as items for scrutiny to review, these items were mentioned
at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) at the 23 June 2025
meeting.

Furthermore, these items have been identified as potential items for
the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission to consider
for its Work Programme 2025-26. (Subject to discussions)

e Refresh of Procurement Framework to support Southwark
2030 and approval of new Social Value Framework

e Send and school leavers

e Management of commercial leases including rent, repairs
and marketing.

e Impact of removal of short-stay parking on small businesses,
markets and town centres.

e Review of the counci’'s community wealth building work
including local procurement.

e Youth Parliament

DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT
THE START OF THE MEETING.

Date: 27 June 2025



1
Open Agenda Agenda Iltem 4

thwat K
outhio
Council
Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny

Commission held on Monday 18 November 2024 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor
Meeting Room GO2A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Cassandra Brown (Chair)
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Irina Von Wiese
Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member)
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted Member)
Councillor Sunny Lambe (Reserve Member)

OTHER
MEMBERS Councillor Jasmine Ali
PRESENT:

OFFICER
SUPPORT: Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Youcef Hassaine and was
substituted by Councillor Sunny Lambe (reserve).

Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Sunil Chopra and
Councillor Jon Hartley and Marcin Jagodzinski (Co-opted Member).

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS
URGENT

There were no items of business which the Chair deemed urgent.
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.

There were no disclosures of interests and dispensations
1

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




MINUTES

Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2024 were approved as a correct
record.

INTERVIEWING RETIRED HEADTEACHER (SEND) AND SEND TRIBUNAL
MEDIATOR.

The commission first heard from Fran Goggins retired Headteacher working with
Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) on the following points.

e Personal experience of SEND processes and appeals with her grandson
(Frank); many Early Learning and Child Care (ELC) schools in Southwark
unable to meet needs such as behavioural issues, social communication
and Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD); eventually a 7 Form entry school in
Southwark agreed to admit Frank, however on meeting with the Special
Education Needs Co- Ordinator, it was concluded that even this school
would not be suitable, this led to an appeals process.

e Appeals process for EHCP had very slow responses, parents not privy to
schools’ responses for declining the placement offer, reasons given for
declining from schools were arbitrary such as SEND facilities located on
second floor of the school. Liaise with legal team at Southwark two weeks
prior to EHCP appeal hearing and Frank was placed in an out of borough
school that met his needs. Time taken off work from transportation to school
causing further expenses.

e 14 other children from Southwark with ASD (Highest needs level) go to this
out borough SEND school. Southwark needs specifically a SEND school
instead of bearing costs for children to go out of Southwark. Parents forum
highlighted that many children with SEND in Southwark are not in school.

The commission then asked questions on the following themes

e Suitability of another SEND placement offer; Complexities of the EHCP
process for parents.

e Legal process within Southwark Council on EHCPs’; SEND
recommendation

Fran explained to the commission that in the case of her grandson with ASD, the
other placement offer was to put him in a school where certain behavioural policies
put him at risk of being excluded. He would have to ask for help to go to another
room if he was overwhelmed, children with ASD have social communication
issues. Parents and families are often from different cultures and not been in the
country for long, in these situations acknowledgment of child’s needs is often not
recognised. Furthermore, the complexities of long application forms and
requirements for EHCPs’ causes delays in children getting help.

2

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




Fran informed the commission that staff from Southwark’s legal team were very
supportive and helpful. However the transition from the case being transferred from
the EHCP co-ordinator to the legal team was very quick, this was very intimidating
and daunting for the parents. Furthermore, as a SEND recommendation, the
commission heard that information on EHCP are often years out of date and the
reasoning given for unsuitability at certain schools were not satisfactory. There is a
need to oversee the responses from parents during such processes and
consultations. Ideally, the EHCP funding should be used to build schools catering
to special needs within Southwark, rather than out of borough placements.

The commission then heard from Catrina Ogilvy, Children’s Occupational Therapist
(OT) (SEND) on the following topics of discussion.

e Southwark Council website on EHCP and SEND provisions, difficulties in
SEND across London Boroughs; Tribunals and SEND; EHC Plans issues
within 20-week deadline are often not fit for purpose; therapy and speech
and language support often not provided in plans, which is a detriment to
the SEND Childs development.

e 20-week statutory deadline being met, still leaves the child 1-2 years behind
in receiving SEND support; Schools often tell parents that they need a
diagnosis before they could apply for an EHCP which is incorrect; Schools
lacking funding to undertake EHCP needs assessments leading to children
being on waiting lists.

e Provisions in proposed EHCP plans often misrepresented and vague with
regards to length and number of sessions, term time periods of coverage
etc. Annual review of EHCP plans is often difficult, wherein provisions need
to be readdressed and increased.

e In Southwark SEND tribunal cases, there is hostility towards parents from
the opposing (council) appointed legal counsel and solicitors, approach has
been confrontational and adversarial rather than assessing the child needs
objectively. This leads to failing trust between families and Local Authority,
not just in Southwark but also nationally.

e Particularly this academic year schools have fed back that they are unable
to provide SEND support in majority of the cases, and the OT
recommendations have not been accepted.

The commission then asked questions around the following points of discussion

e SEND system fit for purpose

e Tribunal costs, Nursey and SEND Inclusion Funding (SENDIF), Occupation
Therapist (OT) Funding

e Families raising concerns about SEND support

The commission heard form Catrina that the current SEND system is not fit for
purpose especially in the areas of Early Years Health Services and funding issues,
other factors are prevailing issues such as cost of living crisis.

3

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




The commission learnt from Catrina there are two costs involved in the tribunal
process, firstly the cost associated with support the child is currently receiving
which might not be fit for purpose and secondly the legal costs associated with
tribunals. In addition, much wider costs include parents having to take time off work
to care for their children and mental health impacts on parents due to tribunal
processes.

Children going from nursery to schools often are not handed over, Nursery SEND
provision details, and the schools would immediately put the child on a reduced
timetable, in order carry out assessments and have provisions in place. Even
though, the child would get an EHCP plan in 20 weeks the whole process in
schools could take up to 18 months.

Catrina explained to the commission that families are raising concerns on SEND
provisions and funding, in some cases Local Authorities (LA) are in discussions
with schools to provide some funding, however there is no improvement in SEND
support.

The commission heard form Fran that it's very difficult to get SENDIF funding for
Early Years Help and it's even more difficult to obtain OT funding. Senior
Leadership and Staff in schools need to take account of the training of Teaching
Assistants (TA) who are not qualified to undertake the instructions provided by
speech and language therapists.

The commission then asked further questions on the following themes
e Sources of funding for SEND (EHCP) in schools and academies
e Specialist SEND settings in mainstream schools

Catrina informed the commission that LAs’ are responsible for all the funding
provided in an EHCP, but this varies in how it is provided amongst different
schools, academies and this also varies amongst different boroughs. In some
cases, EHCP funding is provided directly to the schools by the LAs’ and in other
cases the funding is provided through the LA commissioning OTs’ directly, this
creates confusion and debate over how funding for EHCP should be
commissioned.

On specialist SEND settings in mainstream schools, the commission learned from
Catrina that resolving SEND provision issues would not only be resolved by having
more SEND schools, additional SEND resource provision in mainstream schools
with specialist settings also needs to be considered. Some schools are using their
empty classrooms to provide additional resource provisions for SEND children, this
results in more of an exclusion of the SEND child rather than inclusion and does
not fulfil the requirements of a specialist setting. SEND children need access to
therapy rooms, sensory rooms, messy playrooms and outdoor play areas.

The Chair addressed the commission the need for the Southwark Council to clarify
the process for EHCP funding and SEND provisions across the borough.

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




INCLUSIONS IN SCHOOLS

The commission then heard from Sarah Beard, Executive Headteacher GEM
Federation of Schools (primary school) and Michael Baxter, Principal, City of
London Academy on school inclusions from a SEND perspective covering the
following points

e SENDIF (SEND Inclusion Funding) (Early Years Intervention) information
not being passed on to schools; preparation by schools for SEND children;
reluctance of schools for SEND children; SEND funding varying from lowest
band of £4k a year and an additional £10k from Southwark, insufficient for
providing SEND; Lowest qualified staff such as TAs’ given the most
vulnerable children.

e Recommendations for LA: Clear communication with schools around
SENDIF and this information and evidence being used for EHCP
applications, Funding for training and support in SEND for staff which
currently leaves the schools needing another £20k and moving away from
one-to-one sessions which creates dependency.

e Issues with inclusions in Schools other than SEND factors, Southwark
Association of Secondary Headteachers (SASH) meetings, Mobile Phone
Policies in secondary schools in Southwark.

e More SEND provisions in secondary schools challenging, repurposing
buildings of closed schools either for alternative SEND provisions or setting
up SEND schools; factors behind secondary school children who end up in
prison are mainly due to suspensions, suspensions need to be part of the
inclusion policy and should be used with efficacy and proportionately.

e Suspensions mainly on: Fireworks on parents, teachers and other students,
possessing zombie knives, consistently defying instructions causing
disturbance, preventing other children from receiving a good education;
Southwark secondary schools performing much better in results and
inclusions when compared to other boroughs.

e Factors leading to increased SEND demand in the borough: fewer SEND
placements in primary and pre-primary schools, Health settings and
support (SEND) in early years children (0-18 months), screen time for
toddlers and correlation with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder
(ADHD).

The commission then asked questions on the following themes

e Successfully turning around persistent absences

e Suspensions and exclusions; tracking the consequent placement and the
child’s progress

e Threshold for a permanent exclusion with regards to a managed move to
another school or placement

Sarah explained to the commission that GEM federation of schools strictly adhere
5

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




to the persistent absence policies, any families of children that have less than 90%
attendance. Senior leadership at GEM have meetings with parents on establishing
whether its special needs or non-special needs causing the absence of children in
schools. Absence in schools makes it difficult for schools to gather evidence for
SEND. The trigger for legal action against parents from LAs’ considers a six-week
attendance improvement period and often parents ensure that their children attend
in that period to avoid legal action. However, the attendance drops after this period
which resets the process for handling absences to step 1, leading to very little
improvement in attendance over the school year, in some cases 39% to a mere
41% improvement in attendance.

Michael informed the commission that some families with children having low
attendance are difficult to get in contact with, the Department for Education has
given LAs’ the authority to fine parents. For schools, strictly following absence
policies is key to reducing persistent absences, however it's also important to
ascertain whether a school caters to the child’s needs.

The commission learnt from Sarah that there is a need for a set of
recommendations and/or guidance for schools to consider when developing
absence strategies and handling persistent absences, especially for newly
appointed head teachers and newly formed schools.

Michael explained to the commission that every child that has been suspended or
excluded, is tracked and their progress is monitored. The parents of the child that
is about be permanently excluded has a period of 15 days to opt for a managed
move instead of a permanent exclusion, in most of these cases the parents of the
children believe that their child can change their behaviour and don’t opt for a
manged move to another school. Furthermore, the schools do the paperwork for a
permanent exclusion during the 15 days but stop short of convening a governance
panel for a permanent exclusion and additionally arrange a managed move; at the
end of the 15-day period the parents then usually agree to a managed move.
Children that could be potentially permanently excluded are considered for
placements in other schools and academies, children involved in gangs and drugs
are placed in apprenticeship academies.

Micheal informed the commission that a child involved in firing fireworks at parents
and/or other children and/or possessing zombie knives is a major red flag and
leads to a permanent exclusion. Children with behavioural issues are given second
& third chances and a lot of support to avoid a permanent exclusion.

The commission then received a report and presentation from Councillor Jasmine
Ali Cabinet member for Children Education and Refugees on inclusions in schools,
supported by Marsha Douglass, Senior Education Psychologist and Shane Steere-
Jones, Service Manager, Family Early Help, covering the following topics

e Absenteeism and exclusion; current state, 31% of looked after children
have below 90 % attendance attributed to post pandemic school refusal,
new care placements and or medical absences and fixed term inclusions

6

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




e Trends in persistent absences; school exclusions in Southwark lower
than pre pandemic levels, decrease in SEND pupils since last year;
impact of exclusions and mitigating actions such as inclusion charter and
strategies for improvement

e Working with SASH, Call to action: multi-faceted approach, focus on
well- being and exams, faster access to data, revolutionising the SEND
system. More clinical support through Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services (CAMHS)

e Data trends in Southwark on exclusions lower than national average,
DfE changing statutory guidance for improving attendance in schools;
Southwark’s framework implemented to improve inclusion. Inclusion
handbook, discussions with schools for attendance plan in place for
absentee children.

e Working collaboratively with social care for mental health needs, factors
contributing to high levels of anxiety, supporting children by working with
Early Intervention team, Cross partnership working trending in the right
direction by not working in Silos

The commission then asked questions on the following points

e Inclusion Charter and Sure Start centres

e Tacking increasing waiting lists for CAMHS for ADHD, ASD and
neurodiversity

e Diversity of need within children in the same school year not being met
by schools leading to absence of children and parents being fined as a
result

Clir Ali explained to the commission that like Sure Start centres the council has
continuously funded and run Children’s centres, in addition adolescent centres
have also been setup. The Integrated Care Board (ICB) in Southwark has brought
together Health and Social Care working.

Marsha informed the commission that training and upskilling school staff in SEND
needs is core to providing Ad hoc support to children and young people without
having to wait for a medical diagnosis. Schools are working in challenging
environments to provide SEND mental Health Services without having sufficient
resources.

The commission heard from Shane that the DfE guidance for school absence is 10
sessions within a 10 - week rolling period and this amounts to 5 school days, the
initial approach is to provide guidance and support to parents and children.
Schools and educational professionals are required carry out certain statutory
guidance in the absences handbook before they could request penalty notices to
be issue to parents.

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




UPDATE ON EDUCATION AND HEALTH CARE PLAN (EHCP)

The commission then received an update from Alasdair Smith, Director of Children,
Families and Adult Services, Rebecca Davies, Head of Service for SEND and
Emma Pale, Principal Educational Psychologist on EHCP covering the following
themes

e National Audit Office report on the SEND system, ISOS report
commissioned by the Association of Directors for Children’s Services
and County Councils; More provision being delivered for SEND in
schools, plans for more provisions in schools for SEND; Early Help and
SENDIF Funding.

e Key areas of recommendation in published update within this agenda:
needs let system not diagnosis led system, two-step test — establishing
whether the child has special needs and secondly whether it's in line
with the child needing an EHCP plan, guidance handbook provided to
schools for this graduated approach. 90% of EHCP needs assessments
have been completed

e |Issues around delayed EHCP for more than 20 weeks due to capacity
within professional groups and availability of provision and identifying the
named placement. Assessment of the impact of summer holidays on
young people in the educational setting.

e Increased demand for SEND assessments affects EHCP timelines, four
doctoral training programs for education psychologists, one of these
programs to be stopped due to redistribution and will lead to 16 less
Educational Psychologists in Southwark.

e EHCP timeliness is only one part of the Educational Psychologist roles,
in addition they also provide early intervention services. Southwark has
17% successful EHCP Appeals when compared to the national average
of 1.7%. EHCP Appeals are conceded in mutual agreements with
families. EHCP appeals legal team and solicitor team is planned to come
inhouse within Southwark Council to provide better support and build
trust with parents.

The commission then asked questions on the following themes

e No of EHCP appeals refused

e Legal and Solicitors, EHCP tribunal and mediation team in house
within Southwark, its functioning and cost effectiveness

e 14 SEND children in out of borough placements

Rebecca agreed to get back to the commission on EHCP appeal refusal numbers.
Alasdair and Rebecca explained to the commission that bringing the tribunal and
mediation team in-house would mean that Senior Leadership would be a part of
the panel, and it would involve more mediation and appeals being conceded as a
result, the focus is bringing change in the working culture when dealing with EHCP
appeals. Furthermore, the costs would not reduce by bringing the tribunal and

8

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




mediation team in-house but would provide better mediation and experience for
families with regards to building trust.

On out of borough placements (report pg.11) the commission heard that £19.7
million of the budget is in the overall high needs category, 977 students are in out
of borough placements matched this is due to factor such as children living close to
Southwark border areas and their needs are better matched to the out of borough
schools, in addition parental preference is also considered. Focus on delivering
quality outcomes for children is the main aim.

PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 2024-2025
The commission noted the work programme.

Meeting ended at 9:45 pm.

CHAIR:

DATED:

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Monday 18 November 2024




10
Open Agenda

pthwoK
O

Council

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission held on Tuesday 4 February 2025 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor Meeting
Room GO2A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Cassandra Brown (Chair)
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor Youcef Hassaine
Councillor Irina Von Wiese

OTHER MEMBERS
PRESENT:

OFFICER
SUPPORT: Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Cllir Rachel Bentley, Cllr Sunil Chopra,
Jonathan Clay (Co-opted Member) and Martin Brecknell (Co-opted Member)

Apologies for absence were also received from Cllr Renata Hamvas who was
away on Council Business.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT
There were no items of business which the Chair deemed urgent.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.

There were no disclosures of interests and dispensations.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2024 are to follow

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 4 February 2025




11

WORKING LINKS BETWEEN EDUCATION AND HEALTH - SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL
NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND)

The commission first received a report from Russell Jones, Assistant Director —
(Dual Role) Integrated Commissioning Southwark Council and South-East London,
Integrated Care Board (SEL ICB) on Working links between Education and Health
- Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) on the following points

e Start well agenda on children and young people; increase in SEND and
EHCP; Support through General Practitioners (GPs’), schools and targeted
Send services.

e Stakeholders- Evelina, NHS Guys and St Thomas Children’s Arm, South
London and Maudsley Mental Health Services and Finesse youth provision;
Community Paediatric services, School of Nursing (complex needs),
Language Therapy, Occupational therapy, Physiotherapy, continuing Health
Care and Mental Health Services.

e Strengths- delivering support in special school settings, medical and support
planning, timely support and intervention, training offer in education settings;
the Integrated Care Board (ICB) and the council commitment in supporting
various health and mental health services for children and young people.

e Nest and the school’'s engagement team, mental health in schools’ team,
physiotherapy in specialist and mainstream schools, transition clinics work
from children’s services into adult services, SEND panel and Continuing
Health Care Plan and committed and skilled Health Workforce.

e Areas of improvement- waiting times in mental health services, timeliness of
input in EHCP plans, transition challenges, health and care workforce
capacity, governance arrangements for SEND are in transition (Strategic
Partnership Board).

e |CB serves across six boroughs in London and have a SEND forum to share
best practices across the boroughs.

The commission then asked questions on the following topics

e Early Diagnosis and waiting times from diagnosis to first therapy session;
Transition clinics when children turn 18 and considered adults; Anorexia and
depression clinics access in the borough.

e Examples of good practices shared; Assessments in the areas of
neurodivergence; Importance of Early Intervention in Health, day today to
issues in SEND.

e Other factors in EHCPs’ process like quality of provision rather than
timeliness.

Russell explained to the commission that there are different ways of getting
support and avenues. The average waiting times and information on transition
clinics will be reported back to the commission separately. ‘SLaM’ mental health
services provided by the NHS provides support for children and young people with
eating disorders.

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 4 February 2025




12

The commission learnt from Russell that the ICB formed was a result cost
reduction of management through integration, appointment of a joint Strategic
Board. Diagnosis and SEND support models from areas such as Plymouth and
Portsmouth have been shared across the boroughs. On neurodiversity
assessments, neurodevelopment pathway delays extend wider than Southwark
and are incredibly complex. The demands for ADHD and Autism diagnosis are
increasing across the borough and nationally.

Russell informed the commission that more investments in Speech and Language
Therapy are being considered for early interventions. Strategic Partnership and its
leaders looking at data across the boroughs on trends in day-to-day issues in
SEND. On EHCP, timeliness is a priority, but quality and accurate provision of
services is crucial in SEND.

EHCP ASSESSMENT PROCESSES - CHAIR'S FEEDBACK

The Chair informed the commission on the feedback (presentation attached) from
meeting with officers on the EHCP process

e Length and complexity of the EHCP forms, statutory timelines and pressure
on Local Authorities

e EHCP process review; Increase in need of SEND listed in presentation;
Decision making panels; Age Stats.

e Needs based assessments, timeliness, lack of flexibility in process for LAS’,
parental requests at 60%.

e EHCP timelines affected by school holidays, Southwark’s’ reporting of data
to Department for Education (DfE)

e Limited exceptions for EHCP timeliness.

The commission then discussed the following themes

¢ Lot of SEND issues nationally, Strategic Board and operational structures

e Measuring impacts and outcomes on families

e Recommendations — Southwark’s’ Capital strategy for children with SEND,
satellite provision in SEND, Speech and Language Therapy in schools,
bringing EHCP process into the council’s digital strategy, grow and amplify
Southwark’s SEND parent-carer community voices and Government
Lobbying on the inclusion charter.

e Mandatory periodic health check for infants and young children- Early
Intervention

e Improving communication to schools on EHCPs’

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 4 February 2025




13

CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS - EDUCATION AND
LOCAL ECONOMY 2023-24

The commission noted the Cabinet Responses to scrutiny recommendations from
2023-2024.

WORK PROGRAMME 2024 - 2025
The commission noted the work programme for 2024-2025.

Meeting ended at 8:40 pm
CHAIR:

DATED:

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 4 February 2025




14
Open Agenda

thwat K
outhio
Council
Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Education and Local Economy Scrutiny

Commission held on Tuesday 8 April 2025 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor Meeting
Room GO2A - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Cassandra Brown (Chair)
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice- Chair)
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Youcef Hassaine
Councillor Irina Von Wiese
Martin Brecknell (Co-Opted Member)
Jonathan Clay (Co-Opted Member)

OTHER
MEMBERS Councillor John Batteson
PRESENT:

OFFICER
SUPPORT: Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer

APOLOGIES
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Renata Hamvas.

NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS
URGENT

There were no items of business which the Chair deemed urgent.
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS.

There were no disclosures of interest and dispensations.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2025 are to follow.

1

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 8 April 2025




15

5. YOUTH EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

The commission received a report from Councillor John Batteson, Cabinet Member
for Climate Emergency, Jobs and Business and Nick Wolff, Employment and Skills
Manager on the following topics

e Strong and Fair Economy, Southwark 2030, Local Economy, Youth
Services, Care-Leavers, Creating opportunities such as internships and
apprenticeships

e Working with partners across Southwark, opportunities for young people
with SEND, better signposting for young people for jobs, Youth parliament,
e-newsletters, Tik-Tok and Instagram

e Southwark Skills partnership and skills delivery plan, Council team’s role in
delivering jobs services, Southwark Works, specialist support, Southwark
Youth New Deal.

e Bringing together all skills services providers, awareness amongst young
people and have access to pathways, communication strategy, one- hub,
youth news bulletins.

The commission then asked questions on the following points

Consultation with young people on jobs

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to measure success of these initiatives
Government Policies- Right to work

Connect to work program for young people with SEND

Unpaid internships and council’s role to discourage it

Refugees and Asylum Seekers — access to training schemes

The commission then asked further questions on the following themes

Challenges in advertising jobs for young people
Priortising work experience and internships opportunities
SEND needs in young people and jobs

Adult unemployment and economic crisis

Collaboration across the 32 London Boroughs

Support employers in hiring young adults with neurodiversity and SEND
needs
e Impact of Artificial Intelligence (Al) on jobs

6. EAST STREET TRADERS

The commission then received a report from the East Street Market renovation
project team on the following topics

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 8 April 2025




16

High Street Funding, engagement with traders, research on history of local
area, strategies for improvement, clear strong brand for east street

Securing additional funding, electric power for market, meeting for changes
in the market, East Street Community, parking issues.

Blockage of roads, access to market, ineffective market management, one
point of contact needed, incentive for bringing more footfall in market
Separate areas for food stall sitting area, business hub and community area
for IT facilities, bringing together shop owners and street traders, upskilling
and collaboration.

Attracting new young traders, new broadband for market, apps for delivery
services, compelling vision for East Street Market, aim for destination
market

Report driven by thriving high streets and its funding, project management
of deliverables, further Community Infrastructure Levy funding for East
Street

Professional and unified market, health and safety issues, waste
management issues, lighting and wi-fi, nursery parks within the strategy,
solar panels, power for permanent barrows, recycling waste management
like cardboard compactors.

Refrigeration, murals, workspace for young entrepreneurs, artists and
traders, structure for governance and market management, budgetary
considerations and feasibility studies.

The commission then asked questions on the following points

Volunteer led market project team — 1200 unpaid hours

Parking analysis and increase in footfall

Delivering to homes

Night markets over summer months

Parking machines and 2-hour parking for market

Long term vision for East Street; issues with changing the character of the
market due to food hubs

Supporting traders in pricing within the strategy

East street market vision- leading independent sustainable market in
London.

The commission noted the recommendations in the report.

SOUTHWARK SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP (SSCP)

The commission then received a report from Alasdair Smith, Director, Children &
Families on Southwark Safeguarding Children Partnership (SSCP) covering the
following topics

Safeguarding Children 2023 statutory guidance, role of Police Health
Service and Council, Structure of partnership- sub groups, Quality and

3

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 8 April 2025




17

effectiveness, Local Children Safeguarding, Learning Network and Multi
Agency Child Exploitation network (MACE)

e Major Changes- Children’s well-being and schools bill in parliament, scrutiny
of safe-guarding work, core child protection activity, reduction of children in
child protection plan

e High level of agency workers, Health, Social Care and Police’s role, serious
youth violence, SSCP a self-critical system, internal home environment and
external factors in community

e Neglect strategy- multi agency response to neglect due to pandemic and
cost of living crisis, helping families get help earlier, child safeguarding
reviews

e Government push for change in responding to families, multiagency service
teams joint working, arrangements for targeted early help, online harm.

The commission then asked questions on the following points

e Priorities as the Chair of SSCP - transformation and additional roles

e Recent report on abuse and neglect in nursery settings and child minders

e Regular inspections of child minders and nurseries, mental, physical and
psychological abuse

DRAFT SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS AND REPORT

The commission discussed recommendations and agreed to re-order the
sequence to bring similar topics together especially recommendation 8 and 11.

The commission also discussed making recommendations more specific and to
combine some of the recommendations to make it more succinct.

WORK PROGRAMME 2024-25

The commission noted the work programme for the 2024-25 year.
The commission proposed discussing impact of school closures, impact on

mainstream schools with SEND and the increase in the number of special schools
in the upcoming council year 2025-26.

Meeting ended at 9:04 pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission - Tuesday 8 April 2025




Agenda Item 5 w0

Meeting Name: Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission

Date: 7t July 2025

Report title: Pupil Place Planning in Primary Schools and

its impact  on Secondary  School
admissions under the Keeping Education
Strong (KES) Strategy

Chair: Councillor Cassandra Brown
Ward(s) or groups affected: All
Classification: Open

Reason for lateness (if applicable): | None

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.

A report has been requested from the Commission explaining the effects on
secondary rolls of an existing and forecast reduction in primary pupil numbers,
together with the complexities of the impact on rolls of an influx of pupils in secondary
schools coming from primary schools in Southwark and neighbouring boroughs.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.

There are 20 secondary schools in Southwark, 18 of these have academy status
funded directly by the DfE, and 2 are voluntary aided schools, which are mainly
funded via the council.

A reduction in secondary numbers overall has been evident for the last 2 years and
is being forecast going forward across the capital, and was, for the first time in
decades, also noted across England and Wales in the Spring 2025 Census. This was
in part due to the reduction in pupil numbers transferring from primary but involved a
number of other factors as well.

There has been a significant decrease in primary rolls since 2016 (see tables 1 and
2), including a substantial drop in applicants and reception pupils since then, and
since January 2024, a reduction in primary numbers overall. Primary rolls have
decreased since peaking in 2016/17 by 4,142 — the equivalent on 10 x 2FE primary
schools — or a reduction of 18%.

Logic would dictate that this will feed through to secondary numbers over time, but
the situation and dynamics of secondary enrolment numbers is good deal more
complex than at first examination.

Secondary numbers (Y7-11) overall are still 27% above the level they were at in
2015/6 but have fallen in the last year. Year 7 numbers began to fall in 2019/20 (see
table 3)

Table 3 illustrates the times at which both began to fall — 2019/20 for Y7 and 2023/24
for Y7-Y11

Pupil roll projections show that both phases will continue to see a reduction in
headcount until at least the end of the decade.




19

9. Pupil roll projections for Southwark are provided by the Great London Authority (GLA)
considering a variety of factors, including births, migration, and previous enrolment
patterns. GLA projections for secondary and primary show a downward trend in both
cases (See table 4 and 5)

10.Year 6 figures (see table 10) also show a downward trend, numbers peaked in
2019/20, and capacity in 2023/24, and are projected to fall by over 800 pupils (27%
less) by September 2032. Y7 pupil numbers peaked the following year in 2020/21.

11.Overall, primary (YR-Y6) numbers peaked in 2016/17 and are projected to continue
to fall — by around another 3,680 pupils (19%) by 2032/33.

12.Whilst Y7 numbers increased from 2015/6 to 2023/4 by 412 pupils (+14FE) - a +15%
increase, this masks the fact that Y7 numbers increased from 2016 to 2020 by 784
pupils (+30%) but have fallen by 272 Y7s (-8%) from 2020-25 (9FE) and are projected
to continue to fall until at least 2031/32 and rise slowly thereafter.

13.Y7-11 numbers have increased by 3,386 since 2016 (+27%), but the rate of increase
began to fall in 2020, and Y7-11 numbers overall have now decreased from 2023 to
2025 by 327 pupils - 2% and are projected to fall further by 1,471 pupils (9%) by
2032/33.

14. Ordinarily, the lower number of pupils coming up from primary would seem to indicate
secondary numbers have plateaued and are now beginning to fall, but the number of
Y7s is not solely dependent on the number of Y6s coming up through Southwark
primary schools. It is perhaps worth noting that, whilst approximately 9% of primary
pupils in Southwark come from an address outside the council area, this number rises
to around 30% for secondary, meaning there are considerably more outborough
pupils in the secondary phase than primary.

15.To an extent, this has masked the drop in number of (Southwark) secondary pupils
coming from Southwark primaries into Southwark secondaries — as more places
become available due to the drop in “home” pupils and applicants, these places are
filled by pupils from outside the council area. The increasing popularity of our
secondary schools - all but one of which of which are Ofsted "good" or "outstanding"
rated, may explain this level of out borough demand. The percentage of outborough
pupils varies from school to school, with this ranging from 10% to 76%. Secondary
school expansions broadly kept pace with the previous pupil increase in the
secondary phase but may leave us with excess capacity in the longer term as rolls
fall.



Table 1 Primary rolls and Capacity 2015/6-2024/5

27,000

2650
260

2550

25,000
1500

2400

1350
3300

2250
22000

1150
110
20,500
20,000
1950
1900

I earsR o b
w1 R 10

2015/16

13380
5515

PA1-5 Year R to Y6 Rollsvs Capacity 2016-2024

2016/17

1353
26,080

201718

13 485
25 455

2018/19

131N
26 8%

2019/20

10T
2550

2020/21

0TS
26,941

20222

1310
6618

0B
20,651
26,3

0/
1013
1S

I
202425

1938
1701

0¢



Table 2 Primary Rolls and Projections 2014-33

Primary Rolls (2014-25) and Projections 2026-33 against capacity

27500
27000

11711 S B EER

500 S BN B BN R :

000 B BN BN . : . - — S —

21500 — - e 1 - LD, , L L M A A——
21000 ———— . B cammR REm

0500 - : : : . i . :

20000 [N BN | . SRR .

10500 - B 00 BN v v .

10000 : i . N -

18500 — . : : B BEENEN  E—

18000 — o BB wEm aEm - - B .

17500 — . R . 5 TEEEE $EEE S
17000 — . B : : : B

16500 — - - . - — . . N -

16000 — ham ! R EE :
15500 - B SN = o REEY pmm ) ) I o l .
15000 N icocr B i N - I Em . . i -

January January lanuary lanuary lanuary January January lanuary January January lanuary | lanuary January January lanuary lanuary | January January Januaw_]anuaw;
2014 2015 2016 @ 2017 | 2018 | 2018 | 2020 2021 | 2022 2023 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 2031 | 2032 | 2033
| Y to & | 22340 | 22847 | 23380 23534 | 23485 23170 22726 21775 21310 20651 | 20139 19392 18651 18071 | 17496 16854 | 16384 15950 15793 15716

|%4



Table 3 Secondary rolls 2016-25 - Y7 and Y7-Y11

Secondary rolls 2016-25 - Y7 - blue bars right hand axis, Y7-11 Red
line left hand axis

16400
16200
16000
15800
15600
15400
15200
15000
14800
14600
14400
14200
14000
13800
13600
13400
13200
13000
12800
12600
12400
12200

12000 January 2016 January 2017 Jlanuary 2018 January 2019 January 2020 January 2021 lanuary 2022 Jlanuary 20253 Jlanuary 2024 January 2025
— 7 2605 3036 3063 3268 3379 3271 3203 3199 3159 3107

e, -1 1 12448 13105 13745 14563 15226 15759 15543 16161 16102 15834

3450
3400
3350
33200
3250
3200
3150
3100
3050
3000
2950
2900
2850
2800
2750
2700
2650
2600
2550
2500

¢c



Table 4 Secondary Y7 rolls, capacity and projections 2014-34

Secondary Y7 Rolls, Projections and Capacity, 2014-34

3600

3550
3500
3450
3400
3350
3300
3250
3200
3150
3100
3050
3000
2550
2500
2850
2800
2750
2700

: ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ | |

2600
2550
2500
2450
2400
2350 I
2300
January January| January| January January January January January January January lanuary Jlanuary January January January| January January January January January January
2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031 | 2032 | 2033 | 2034

 Year 7 2409 | 25895 | 2695 | 30536 | 3063 | 3268 | 3379 | 3271 3203 319% | 3159 | 3107 | 3024 | 29B4 | 2975 | 2B2Y | 2730 | 2690 | 2611 2514 | 25B6
esmmmEpacity | 2700 | 2BB0 | 2040 | 3120 | 3215 | 5387 | 3467 | 5487 | 3482 | 3552 | 3522 | 3537 | 3317 | 3317 | 3317 | 3317 | 3317 3317 | 3317 | 3317 | 3317

 Year 7 e Capacity

ec



Table 5 Secondary Y7-Y11 Rolls, Projections and Capacity - 2014-2034 Y7-Y11

Secondary Y7 Rolls, Projections and Capacity, 2014-34

17750
17500

17250
17000
16750
16500
16250
16000
15750
15500
15250
15000
14750
14500
14250
14000
13750
13500
13250
13000
12750
12500 I

12250
12000
11750
11500
11250

11000
January | January lanuary January| January January lanuary | January January lanuary January |January January January| January January lanuary January | January lanuary January

2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031 2032 | 2033 | 2034
7 toll | 11977 | 12255 12448 | 13105 13745 | 14563 | 15226 15759 | 15843 16161 | 16102 15834 | 15736 15455 | 15126 14685 14310 14011 13676 13263 @ 13055
e apacity | 12500 | 12930 | 13420 | 14080 14845 15512 | 16099 16646 | 17008 17375 | 17510 17580 | 17410 17244 17000 | 16805 | 16585 | 16585 | 16585 | 16585  165B5

ve



25

16. Overall, pupil numbers projected into the future show primary and secondary numbers
continue to decline. Projections beyond 5 to 10 years do need to be treated with a
degree of caution.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

17.There are a number of drivers that influence the connection(s) between primary and
secondary numbers, as well as mitigating against such a connection. These include

e the fall and rise in primary school pupils, particularly Y6 pupils who will proceed to Y7
the following year

e what percentage of Southwark pupils go outside the borough for secondary education
(or to the private sector)

e what number of pupils come into Southwark from outside the borough for secondary
education

e what percentage of applicants come from Southwark and what percentage of
outborough applicants

e Net migration away or into Southwark for pupils of secondary school (or pre-
secondary school) age

Numbers of Year 6s in Southwark primary schools

18.As outlined in paragraphs 6 and 10, the correlation between pupils leaving year 6 and
arriving in Y7 is complicated by a number of other factors outlined in paragraph 16
That said, the fall in secondary numbers seems to reflect — at least in part — a
reduction in Y6 numbers

19.0utside of the capital transfer of year 6 to year 7 is frequently very close to 100%,
given the frequent lack of choice in more rural areas. With numerous schools (and
indeed types of schools) — the London and Southwark pupil population are
considerably more mobile — aided by the “Greenwich Judgement” that disallows
admissions authorities from favouring pupils from one council area over another. This
is particularly true of secondary education where pupils will often travel some distance
to attend a secondary school.

20.In essence, this means there can be a net flow away from or to a council area,
meaning the link between Y6s presently in Southwark primaries and those who attend
a Southwark secondary is less solid.

21.Notwithstanding this, one can look to the Y6 pupil total and foresee — albeit in part —
the prospective number of Y7s. Tables 8 and 9 gives a historic record of the number
of Y6s and then the same cohort (colour coded) Y7s in subsequent years. Individual
pupils cannot presently be tracked, so we cannot say exactly what percentage of Y6s
transfer, but year group totals give a guide to the “transfer rates”, which have
increased from around 100% in 2017/18 to 105% last year



26

Table 8 Y6 and Y7 Cohorts2017-24

Year Y6 Y7 Y6->Y7%

2017/18 3,063 3,036

2018/19 3,029 3,063 100%
2019/20 3,194 3,268 108%
2020/21 3,336 3,379 106%
2021/22 3,186 3,271 98%
2022/23 3,144 3,203 101%
2023/24 3,065 3,241 103%
2024/25 2,976 3,230 105%

Table 9 Y6 to Y7 Transition 2017-24

Y6toY72017-2024

3,400
3,380
3,360
3,340
3,320
3,300
3,280
3,260
3,240
3,220

3,200
3,180
3,160
3,140
3,120
3,100
3,080
3,060
3,040
3,020
3,000
2,980
2,960
2,840
2,920
2,300
2,880
2,860
2,840
2,820
2,800
2017/18 2018/19 2018/20 2020/21 2021/22 202223 2023/24

2024/25
WG 3,063 3,028 3,184 3,336 3,186 3,144 3,065 2976
Y7 3,036 3,063 3,268 3,379 3,271 3,203 3,241 3,230



Table 10 Y6 rolls and projections 2014-2033

Y6 Actual and Capacity (Actual 2004-2025), Projections 2026-32

4000
3900
3800
3700
3600
3500
3400
3300
3200
3100
3000
2900

2800
2700
2600
2500
2400
2300
2200
2100
2000
1900
1800
1700
1600
1500

January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January January
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

6 num | 2871 2831 2871 2775 2842 2708 2643 2643 2651 2671 2722 2837 2891 3063 3029 3194 3336 3186 3144 3065 2976 2996 2920 2722 2668 2504 2505 2254 2189
— 6 Cap 3315 3315 3330 3330 3330 3375 3300 3315 3360 3330 3345 3330 3450 3450 3540 3720 3695 3724 3800 3935 3740 3665 3446 3386 3401 3371 3251 3251 3086



28

Cross border flows

22.Pupils who are resident out of borough attending a Southwark secondary school, total
4,500 (30%), and around 2,500 Southwark residents of secondary school age attend
state funded secondary schools out of borough. This is a net gain of around 2,000
(+12%) of pupils. The latter figures have risen substantially in recent years - out
borough pupils attending Southwark schools have increased from 21% to 30% since
2015/16. This means that the net flow has increased from +1% (into Southwark) in
2015-16 to a net gain of +12% in 2024.

23.Southwark itself exports secondary age pupils mainly to schools in Lewisham,
Lambeth and Westminster, and imports pupils from Lambeth, Lewisham, Croydon,
Bromley and Tower Hamlets.

24.The increasing popularity of our secondary schools - all but one of which are Ofsted
"good" or "outstanding” rated, may explain this level of out borough demand.

25.This presents challenges in planning secondary places, as most models of pupil place
planning assume a "steady state" of circumstances, whereas Southwark secondary
schools' draw in pupils from further afield each year, meaning there is less connection
with Y6 pupils in Southwark and indeed any population increase or decrease.

Numbers of applicants to Southwark Secondary schools
Table 11 Y7 Applicants Southwark/Outborough

Y7 applicants (Southwark (blue) Outborough
(orange)) 2016-2025

4,400
4,200
4,000
3,600
3,600

3,400
3,000
2,600
2,600
2,400
2,200
2,000
1,600
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000

800

600

400

200

0 7

2017-18 2018-18 2018-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023- 2024-25
W Out borough 784 918 1,255 1,255 1296
mlBS 2,060 2,146 2,137 2,861 2,879 2,420 2409 2,345 2,280 2,159

P
(==
=



29

Table 12 — Y7 Percentage Applications 2016-25 (Southwark and out borough)

Year LBS Out borough
2015-16 72% 28%
2016-17 70% 30%
2017-18 70% 30%
2018-19 64% 36%
2019-20 63% 37%
2020-21 63% 37%
2021-22 66% 34%
2022-23 65% 35%
2023-24 64% 36%
2024-25 62% 38%

26.Further evidence of “cross border flows” and the relative popularity of Southwark
secondaries can be seen in tables 11 and 12 above. In 2015/16, the percentage of
Southwark applicants to Southwark secondaries stood at 72% of all applications
received, with applicants from other broughs totalling 28%. As the number of
Southwark applications from Southwark parents and carers fell from 2018/19
onwards, the percentage of outborough applicants rose, and the percentage of
outborough applicants now stands at 36%. The number of Southwark applicants has
fallen by 702 (25%) since 2018/19, whereas the number of outborough applicants has
fallen by only 101 (7%) over the same time period.

27.GLA forecasts for the secondary phase (taking account of new provision) predict that
demand peaked in Y7 in 2020/21 and Years 7-11 in 2023/24, and will then ease off
thereafter, with around 593 less Y7 pupils (-18%) in 2032/3 than in 2024/25, and 2,571
less Y7-11 pupils (-17%) over the same time period.

28.Capacity in Y7 over the same timescale will ease by around 220 places (-6%) and
Y7-11 capacity will only drop by 995 (-6%), which may exacerbate overcapacity. Y7
vacancies are presently around 430 (15FE) - 12%, having risen from around 245
(9FE)- 6% in 2016, but are projected to reach 803 (28FE) by 2032/33 (26%) if no
further action is taken, presumably as a consequence of the drop in primary numbers
feeding through, and additional provision still coming in stream.

Net migration and population changes

29. GLA population (rather than pupil) projections show a net outflow (i.e. in migration set
against outmigration) of around minus 60 secondary age pupils in 2025 — see table
13. This is expected to ease towards the end of the decade and reach a net influx of
around 100 secondary age pupils by 2040, in part driven by developments at Canada
Water and the Old Kent Road.

30.GLA population projections for single years of age show that the number of 11-year-
olds resident in Southwark are projected to reduce by 650 residents until 2039/40,
and the secondary 11-16 cohort by 4,583 residents (27% less) by 2042/43 - see table
14



Table 13 Net Migration Southwark

Net Flow by Year (2025)
5 Year (2022-based) Projection, Southwark -
Eorough Total, All Persons aged 11 to 16

100

2 Sz
9

— 100

— 200

I 1 [ I
2020 2030 2040 205(C

ear

0€



31

CONCLUSIONS

31.The repercussions of the existing reduction in numbers have already been noted in
Southwark and further abroad.

32.1t seems therefore likely that reduction in secondary capacity is inevitable, and that
Dioceses and Multi-Academy Trust (MAT) sponsors may decide to shrink, merge or
close schools to make most effective use of resources, where the majority of funding
derives from pupil numbers.

33. South Bank University Academy has applied to the Regional Schools Director to close
Y7 entry for 2025/26 and has stated that it aims to gradually evolve to become a sixth
form college as successive year groups leave the school. Harris Peckham Academy
has reduced its intake from 180 to 120 for this academic year. Other schools have
noted a reduction in individual applications and enrolment.

34.1t should be noted that ALL Southwark secondary schools are “own admissions”
authorities, meaning that admissions to Y7 are co-ordinated, but not determined by
the local authority.

35.Additionally, the local authority does not approve or decide the admissions
procedures and priorities for individual secondary schools, nor is the council’s
agreement sought or required when these are changed. Academy schools are able
to expand at will, even when this could potentially be deleterious towards
neighbouring schools or other authorities’ schools.

36.Legislation presently under consideration by the government proposes to give a
slightly enhanced role for the council in terms of admissions direction and consultation
and will allow councils to set up their own schools once again, but it is not expected
that academies’ autonomy in admissions will be changed. It seems fairly unlikely there
will be a need for a new Southwark secondary in any case, run by any sponsor in the
short to medium term.

37.The council has maintained a dialogue with all active MATs in Southwark and the
respective diocesan authorities, and will continue to do so, going forward, offering
advice and assistance to schools contemplating the changes outlined above. It is
hoped that we can maintain a coherent and co-ordinated approach that allows for a
sustainable estate of secondary schools going into the next decade that is fit for
purpose and continues to deliver the high quality of education presently on offer.

38.This may unfortunately involve the merger or closure of individual secondary schools,
as provision is projected to exceed supply by some margin. Who and where these
schools are is a matter for discussion and debate with academy sponsors, the
diocesan authorities in conjunction with the local authority. In the case of academies,
the council would not be directly involved in decisions about closing or reducing the
size of schools, though would be a consultee in this case.



Table 14 Population 11 and 11-16 Projected

Population projectionsfor 11year olds (blue columns, right axis)
against 11-16 population (red line, left axis)

18500 3000
18000 2950
ey
17500 2500
2850

17000
2800
16500 —
18000 3700
15500 2650
15000 2600
2550

14500
2500
2450
13500 5400
13000 2350
12500 2300
e
12000 2250
2200

11500
2150

11000
2100
10500 2050
10000 2000

2025/ | 2026/ | 2027/| 2028/ 2029/ 2030/| 2031/ 2032/ 2033/ | 2034/ 2035/ 2036/ | 20 038 2040/ | 2041/ 2042/ | 2043/ 2044/ | 2045/ | 20467 | 2047/ | 2048/ | 204
2025 2027 2028 2029 2030 2c31 2032 2033 2034 "EEE 2036 2037 2038 )| 2041 | 2042 2&43 3044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050
mmmm 11 | 2910 2900 2890 2719 2610 2575 | 2497 2399 2473 2350 | 2309 2281 | 2267 2274 2300 2314 2332 2348 2352 2362 2371 2379 2383

—Total 18420 180684 17772 17250 16803| 16425 16076 | 15639 15304 14895 14718 14440 14220 14084 13878 13785 13782 13793 13837 13901 13984 14049 14112 14171 14218

ce



33

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
“Managing Falling School Rolls in [Education, 4th Floor, |Ric Euteneuer
London” - London Councils, |Children’s and Adults’|07925 637558
January 2024 Services, 160 Tooley

Street, London, SE1 2QH

https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/test-newsroom/2024/managing-falling-school-

rolls-london
'‘Keeping Education Strong: Strategy Education, Ath Floor, CF){%%ZEgtgg%Jseé

for future proofing primary schools Children’s  and  Adults’

and protecting the quality of Servi
L : ervices, 160 Tooley
education in Southwark', December Street, London, SE1 20H

2022

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s113486/Report Keeping
Education Strong - Strateqgy for future proofing primary schools and protecting the
.pdf

Appendix 6 — Pupil Place Planning |Education, 4 Floor, |Ric Euteneuer
Annexe to “Admission arrangements |Children’s and  Adults’|07925 637558
for Community Primary Schools — |Services, 160 Tooley
September 2026”, February 2025 Street, London, SE1 2QH

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s124537/Appendix%206%20Pupil
%20Place%20Planning%20Annexe.pdf

Education Act 1996, Section 14,|Education, 4t Floor,|Ric Euteneuer
HMSO, 1996 Children’s and Adults’|07925 637558
Services, 160 Tooley
Street, London, SE1 20QH

https://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/section/14

Dedicated Schools Grant 2024-25|Education, 4t Floor, |Ric Euteneuer
Schools Funding Formula, December|Children’s and  Adults’|07925 637558
2023 Services, 160 Tooley
Street, London, SE1 20QH

https://www.southwark.qgov.uk/sites/default/files/2024-10/item 7 -
dedicated schools grant 2024-
25 schools funding formula 14 december 2023 2.pdf

Education and Inspections Act 2006 |Education, 4™  Floor,|Ric Euteneuer
Children’s and  Adults’|07925 637558
HMSO 2006 Services, 160 Tooley
Street, London, SE1 20QH

https://www.leqgislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/contents

APPENDICES

1. Appendix 6 of the Pupil Place Planning Report submitted to Cabinet.
2. List of Secondary schools in Southwark


https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/test-newsroom/2024/managing-falling-school-rolls-london
https://www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/test-newsroom/2024/managing-falling-school-rolls-london
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s113486/Report%20Keeping%20Education%20Strong%20-%20Strategy%20for%20future%20proofing%20primary%20schools%20and%20protecting%20the%20.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s113486/Report%20Keeping%20Education%20Strong%20-%20Strategy%20for%20future%20proofing%20primary%20schools%20and%20protecting%20the%20.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s113486/Report%20Keeping%20Education%20Strong%20-%20Strategy%20for%20future%20proofing%20primary%20schools%20and%20protecting%20the%20.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s124537/Appendix%206%20Pupil%20Place%20Planning%20Annexe.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s124537/Appendix%206%20Pupil%20Place%20Planning%20Annexe.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/section/14
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2024-10/item_7_-_dedicated_schools_grant_2024-25_schools_funding_formula_14_december_2023_2.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2024-10/item_7_-_dedicated_schools_grant_2024-25_schools_funding_formula_14_december_2023_2.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2024-10/item_7_-_dedicated_schools_grant_2024-25_schools_funding_formula_14_december_2023_2.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/contents

AUDIT TRAIL

34

Lead Officer

Alasdair Smith, Director of Children’s Services

Report Author

Ric Euteneuer, Planning & Strategy Officer (School Places)

Version

Final

Key Decision?

Yes

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS/DIRECTORATES

Officer Title

Comments Sought

Comments Included

Assistant  Chief
Governance and Assurance

Executive —| No

No

Strategic Director of Finance &| No No
Governance
Cabinet Member No No

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team

271 June 2025




APPENDIX 2 — LIST OF SECONDARY SCHOOLS IN SOUTHWARK BY WARD

Secondary School Type PAN Council Ward

ARK Globe Academy Academy 180 | Chaucer

Notre Dame Roman Catholic Girls' School Academy (RC) 120 | St George’s

St Saviour's and St Olave's C of E School VA CE 120 | Chaucer

ARK Walworth Academy Academy 180 | Faraday

South Bank University Academy Free School 120* | Faraday
Haberbdashers’ Borough Academy Free School 180 | Borough & Bankside
Bacon's College Academy 180 | Rotherhithe

City of London Academy (Southwark) Academy 240 | South Bermondsey
Charter Bermondsey Free School 100 | North Bermondsey
Harris Academy Bermondsey Academy 180 | South Bermondsey
St Michael's Catholic College Academy (RC) 150 | North Bermondsey
Harris Academy Peckham Academy 120 [ Rye Lane

Harris Girls' Academy East Dulwich Academy 150 | Peckham Rye

The St Thomas the Apostle College VA RC 152 | Nunhead & Queen's Road
ARK All Saints Academy Academy 120 | Camberwell Green
The Charter School North Dulwich Academy 192 | Champion Hill
Sacred Heart Roman Catholic Secondary Academy (RC) 120 [ Camberwell Green
Harris Boys' Academy East Dulwich Academy 150 | Dulwich Hill
Kingsdale Foundation School Academy 420 | Dulwich Wood
Charter School East Dulwich Free School 240 | Goose Green

* Have applied to the Regional Schools Commissioner to not admit a Y7 cohort in 2025/26

GE



36

APPENDIX 6 — PUPIL PLACE PLANNING 2024/25
Prepared by Ric Euteneuer, Planning & Strategy Officer (School Places)

Executive summary

1.

Southwark Council’s duty under the Education Act 1996 (as amended by the Education
and Inspections Act 2006) is to “ensure that a sufficient capacity of school places exist
for children of statutory school age”. Monitoring and analysis of appropriate data and
trends are carried out to produce this annual report on place planning, to ensure that
“sufficient capacity” exists. This report therefore aims to provide an overview of school
place capacity, as well as forward place planning for Southwark.

The number of primary pupils has been falling for several years, and the report outlines
some of the measures taken to address this. The highlights from the report for 2024-25
are as follows.

e Southwark has more than sufficient pupil places to meet existing demand in both
primary and secondary phases of education in Southwark. The authority was able to
offer a primary and/or secondary school place for the 2024-2025 academic year, to
all on-time Southwark applicants at the normal points of entry and has sufficient
provision available to accommodate late and in year applicants for both phases.

e All the indicators for the short to medium term are that primary rolls will continue to
fall. From September 2015 to the present time (September 2024 for rolls, December
2023 for births)

oThe number of primary pupils overall has fallen by 17%
oThe number of reception pupils has fallen by 30%
oThe number of births has fallen by 29%

oThe number of reception applications has fallen by 32%

e There are areas of Southwark where a steeper decline in primary demand has been
observed - PA1 “Borough & Bankside” and PA3 “Peckham and Nunhead” localities
have seen a drop at reception of 45% and 38% respectively over the same time
period, and PA1 a 33% drop in primary numbers (years R to 6) overall.

e Southwark has been taking decisive action to reduce surplus capacity with a
Keeping Education Strong strategy agreed in December 2002. Six schools have
closed since 2021 and there have been reductions in the Published Admissions
Number at 18 further schools since 2019. This has taken out 720 places but further
action is likely to be required as numbers continue to fall.

e In respect of secondary school places there has been an overall increase in demand
and provision since 2016, but the reduction in primary numbers is now beginning to
feed through to secondary schools:

o The number of Y7-11 pupils overall has increased by +29% since 2015/6, but
has fallen by -1% since 2023-24

o The number of Y7 pupils has increased by +15% since 2015/16, but has actually
fallen by -8% since 2019-20


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/40/contents
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s113486/Report%20Keeping%20Education%20Strong%20-%20Strategy%20for%20future%20proofing%20primary%20schools%20and%20protecting%20the%20.pdf

37

o The number of Y7-11 places meanwhile has also increased by +31% since 2016
(+9% since 2020/20), and the number of Y7 places has increased by +20% (by
+9% since 2019/20) over the same time period

e Southwark is anticipating that secondary demand overall (Y7-11) has plateau’d in the
last academic year (2023-24) and will decrease slowly thereafter. Therefore, we do
not anticipate that secondary demand will exceed capacity, and additional capacity
is unlikely to be required going forward. Although there are no immediate concerns
about surplus capacity in the secondary sector overall, less popular schools are
being disproportionately affected by falling pupil numbers, with some seeing losses
of up to 40% of Y7-11 pupil numbers

e Given that almost all (18 out of 20) secondary schools are now Academies or Free
Schools, decisions on their future would primarily be a matter for Multi Academy
Trusts (MATSs), the Regional Schools’ Director for London and the Department for
Education (DfE) rather than for the council.

e Despite the downward trend in pupil numbers overall, there are still identified areas
of potential growth for both primary and secondary in Southwark linked to long term
regeneration programmes in the borough — i.e., at Canada Water, and in the Old
Kent Road growth area. The authority will consider appropriate ways to reconfigure
existing schools to meet this demand, should this materialise. In the first instance it
is anticipated that additional numbers of pupils could be accommodated in existing
schools. Only if growth is unable to be contained within existing provision would new
schools be considered and commissioned.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1.

Southwark’s Pupil Place Planning update was last reported to Cabinet in October 2023.
The annual update describes the demand for primary and secondary school places in
the council area and details any steps being taken to manage that demand. School
place planning for primary schools is undertaken using five “planning areas”. For
secondaries, the planning is undertaken as a single planning area, reflecting the
distance people travel to attend secondary schools and the numerous out borough
pupils that attend our schools.

The legal requirements as regards place planning are for the council to “secure that
sufficient schools for providing primary education, and]...] secondary education [...] are
available for their area” and that “The schools available for an area shall not be regarded
as sufficient [...] unless they are sufficient in number, character and equipment to
provide for all pupils the opportunity of appropriate education”. This requires Southwark
to ensure projected demand is met with sufficient supply, and to determine whether an
increase or decrease in demand is temporary or permanent. Based on this evidence and
needs, the council will then work with schools, Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs) and the
Department for Education (DfE) to increase or decrease supply as required. If demand
is falling this may entail merging and/or closing schools or reducing their Published
Admissions Number (PAN). Where demand has increased actions may include
encouraging schools to admit additional pupils or adding an additional form of entry for
a fixed period of time, or in some cases to expand permanently. The council monitors
and predicts demand for school places using a variety of methods. Each are examined
in detail in the following text and planning area summaries.



https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s116755/Report%20Annual%20school%20place%20planning%20report%20financial%20and%20academic%20year%202023-24.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/section/14

38

Methods to track and monitor primary demand include:

e examining prior trends in pupil numbers at reception and Year R to 6 totals (paras 5 to
10);

e projections provided by external bodies for school places and births — in our case, the
Greater London Authority (GLA) (paras 15 to 17);

¢ looking at the numbers of historical applications made (paras 33 to 34);

¢ |ooking at the numbers of births (para 36);

e examining the cross-border flow of primary and secondary pupils — children resident
in other authorities attending schools in Southwark and vice versa (Statistical Annex
Section 9)

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION FOR FUTURE ACTION

Approach to primary and secondary pupil place planning

4.

Southwark’s pupil place planning figures are predominantly, based on GLA projections,
commissioned by the council annually. The GLA calculate projections based on current
school rolls, birth rates, underlying population projections, migration, and new housing
developments. A detailed methodology is available. For primary place planning, the
council area is split into five Planning Areas (“PAs”), detailed in the Statistical Annex
Section 3a. A list of primary schools by planning area and by ward is also included in
Statistical Annex Section 4; a map showing all primary schools in the borough is
attached at Statistical Annex Section 3b. Secondary school planning is carried out on
a borough-wide basis because the admissions distance for some secondary schools
extends up to and beyond borough boundaries. A map of secondary school locations is
attached at Statistical Annex Section 14.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING PRIMARY SCHOOLS

Headline figures for primary — Reception Year

5.

The trend of falling rolls continues apace and shows no sign of abating yet. Detailed
graphs and tables of reception year projections are given in Statistical Annex Section
8 and summary highlights of the overall figures are given below:

a. In September 2024, there were 3,341 available primary reception places in
Southwark, and 24,221 year R to 6 primary places;

b. The take up of primary reception places shows a vacancy rate in September
2024 of 829 places, equivalent to 26 forms of entry (25% overall)

c. This vacancy figure was 781 (22% - 26FE) in September 2023, so there are
around 48 more vacancies (2FE) than this time last year — the result of a further
fall in rolls

d. There are 4,805 vacancies (20%) in YR to Y6, around 155 more than in 2023-
24 (5 classes)


https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s116756/Appendix%201%20GLA%20school%20roll%20projections%20methodology.pdf

39

Trends in rolls in primary schools — Reception rolls and R to Year 6 rolls

10.

Table 1: Primary rolls September 2015-24 (reception and whole school

2015-16 | 3,579

2016-17 | 3,520 -59 -2% 23,476 +102

2017-18 | 3,331 -189 -5% 23,426 -50 -0.2%
2018-19 | 3,247 -84 -3% 23,242 -184 -1%
2019-20 | 3,220 -27 -1% 22,690 -552 -2%
2020-21 | 2,985 -235 -(% 22,071 -619 -3%
2021-22 | 2,929 -56 -2% 21,382 -689 -3%
2022-23 | 2,823 -106 -4% 20,707 -675 -3%
2023-24 | 2,786 -37 -1% 20,024 -683 -3%
2024-25 | 2,512 -274 -10% 19,416 -608 -3%
2015-24 | -1,067 -30% -3,958 -17%

(Source: Pupils Censuses 2016-24)

Southwark has seen a substantial reduction since 2015-16 in primary reception and
whole school rolls. Reception rolls have fallen by 1,067 pupils — 36 forms of entry (36FE)
— 30% less overall — in the 9 years since September 2015 — this is an average annual
loss of 119 reception pupils (4FE) overall.

Whole school (years R to 6) rolls have decreased by 3,956 pupils over the same period
— equivalent to 133 classes or 17% less overall. This averages a loss of 440 pupils per
annum — the equivalent of just over a 2FE school a year.

It is expected that the overall number (Year R to 6) will continue to fall as each year
group works its way through schools. Pupil projections received from the GLA in May
2024 and outlined in Statistical Annex Section 8 support this scenario.

Within the excess capacity noted above, the number and percentage of empty school
places in specific areas of Southwark have grown at a greater or lesser extent. Figures
for reception and all primary year groups are given below by planning area — the
percentage of some areas are considerably higher than others.

Table 2a Reception Roll, Capacity and Vacancies September 2024

Category PA1 PA2 PA3 | PA4 | PA5S

YR Roll 2024-5 449 740 436 430 | 457
PAN Total 2024-5 675 960 600 570 536
YR Vacancies 226 220 164 140 79

Percentage 33% 23% 27% | 25% | 15%

Table 2b Year R-6 Roll, Capacity, Vacancies September 2024
Category PA1 PA2 PA3 PA4 | PA5
YR-6 Roll 2024-5 | 3,840 | 5,628 | 3,337 | 3,443 | 3,228 RRZNI
PAN Total 2024-5 | 4,965 | 6,900 | 4,395 | 4,215 | 3,746 |WZW¥X
YR-6 Vacancies 1,125 | 1,272 | 1,058 | 772 518
Percentage 23% 18% 24% | 18% | 14%

The ONS 2021 Census showed only a 4% reduction in the 0-15 population since 2011,
but a 21% reduction in the 0-4 age cohort. This essentially means considerably fewer
children are proceeding to primary schools and the situation is expected to remain the
same in the near future.



https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/censusareachanges/E09000028

11.

40

Drivers for the reduction in population outlined above include:

a.

b.

C.

d.

The number of children being born in Southwark has reduced by nearly 1,800 since
2010 — equivalent to 60 classes of children.

Migration from Southwark: net outmigration from Southwark of primary aged children
(4-11) in 2022 was estimated by the GLA to be around 240 children, 320 for 2023 and
450 for 2024, with further net outmigration projected for the foreseeable future
Brexit: Net migration from EU countries is now in_decline across London and
Southwark

Housing costs: Southwark average sold property prices have reached over £721Kk this
year, and average private rents are £2,200 per month - 51% more than in 2016 —
unaffordable to many families.

. Welfare reforms: The introduction of Universal Credit (UC), the low level of the “Local
Housing Allowance”, and the effects of the bedroom tax have effectively made inner
London unaffordable to many families.

Covid 19: There is some evidence that the pandemic led to more families relocating
outside of London.

Actions taken to address falling rolls

12.

Southwark has been taking decisive action to reduce surplus capacity including
agreeing a Keeping Education Strong strategy agreed in December 2002. Six schools
have closed since 2021 and there have been reductions in the Published Admissions

Number at 18 further schools since 2019.

Primary School Change Date Reduction
St George’s Cathedral RC PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Charlotte Sharman PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Keyworth PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Robert Browning PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Hollydale PAN reduction Sep-19 -15
Bellenden PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Camelot (now Bird-in-Bush) PAN reduction Sep-19 -15
Ivydale PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Brunswick Park PAN reduction Sep-19 -15
Comber Grove PAN reduction Sep-19 -15
Crawford PAN reduction Sep-19 -30
Phoenix PAN reduction Sep-20 -30
St John’s Walworth Closure Sep-21 -30
Harris Peckham Park PAN reduction Sep-21 -30
St Francesca Cabrini RC PAN reduction Sep-21 -30
Cobourg PAN reduction Sep-22 -30
Harris Primary Free Peckham | PAN reduction Sep-22 30
Cobourg Closure Sep-23 -30
Townsend Closure Sep-23 -30
St Francesca Cabrini RC Closure Sep-23 -30
Dog Kennel Hill* PAN reduction Sep-23 -30
English Martyrs RC PAN reduction Sep-23 -30
llderton PAN reduction Sep-23 -30
Harris Primary Free Peckham | Closure Sep-23 -30
Comber Grove Closure Sep-24 -30
Bessemer Grange PAN reduction Sep-25 -30
Grange PAN reduction Sep-25 -30
St Francis RC PAN reduction Sep-25 -30
Total -720



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/query/asv2htm
https://data.london.gov.uk/download/domestic-migration/e4aea468-b5d3-481f-89c7-3cde6b76830f/domestic_mign_London_2020.csv
https://migrationobservatory.ox.ac.uk/resources/briefings/eu-migration-to-and-from-the-uk/
https://migrationobservatory.ox.ac.uk/resources/briefings/eu-migration-to-and-from-the-uk/
https://www.zoopla.co.uk/house-prices/southwark/
https://www.zoopla.co.uk/house-prices/southwark/
https://www.zoopla.co.uk/discover/property-news/average-rent-london/
https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/SearchResults.aspx?Postcode=se1%2b2qh&LHACategory=999&Month=8&Year=2024&SearchPageParameters=true
https://lha-direct.voa.gov.uk/SearchResults.aspx?Postcode=se1%2b2qh&LHACategory=999&Month=8&Year=2024&SearchPageParameters=true
https://airdrive-secure.s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/london/dataset/population-change-in-london-during-the-pandemic/2022-02-22T10%3A21%3A21/Population_change_in_London_during_pandemic_UPDATE_Feb2022.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIAJJDIMAIVZJDICKHA%2F20241202%2Feu-west-1%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20241202T142525Z&X-Amz-Expires=300&X-Amz-Signature=0e5a140e6a8c27a53856997c5609c349487159fe8d65c42f1db81de306431d07&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host

13.

14.

41

These changes have taken out 720 surplus places, but further action is likely to be
required as numbers continue to fall.

The council is working closely with school leaders of LA-maintained schools, the DfE’s
London Regional Schools Director, as well as with the Church of England (the
Southwark Diocesan Board of Education (SDBE) and the Roman Catholic Church (the
Catholic Education Commission for Southwark (RCAOS) to discuss the overprovision in
their schools. Meetings with Academy Trusts that have schools in the borough have also
been held and progress made to reduce capacity where this is possible. A Pupil Places
Planning event bringing together LA and MAT representatives was held in July 2024 to
share information and perspectives on the issues we are jointly facing.

Primary roll projections from September 2024 to 2031

15.

16.

17.

It is projected by the GLA that reception rolls will fall by a further 73 pupils (3FE — -3%)
by the end of the decade. The effects of the reductions outlined will be monitored for
their effectiveness, before considering whether further reductions are required. Whilst
there is a projected reduction in primary numbers overall, there may be areas of growth
in specific localities, and a need for localised additional place provision if so.

We anticipate that need for additional places in the medium term to long term could fall
into two discreet areas, located within Planning Area 2 (Bermondsey and Rotherhithe)
— around the Rotherhithe peninsula (as part of the “Canada Water” development) and
along the Old Kent Road as part of the Old Kent Road Area Action Plan development,
as well as pupils from schools that have been closed in the locality.

Detailed primary projections are provided in Statistical Annex Section 8, including by
planning area. These show projections for reception and whole school rolls by planning
area, as well as data for applications and the numbers of births.

Effect of free schools and academies on place planning

18.

19.

20.

21.

The Academies Act 2010 and related guidance requires local authorities to facilitate
academies or free schools, rather than providing new schools themselves. An LA can
reduce or propose to close (LA-funded) provision, but this could be negated by an
academy opening, or expanding, or an LA-funded school academizing to avoid closure.

This makes long term planning challenging. The Regional Schools’ Director (RSD)
consults with (but does not require the approval of) the council when academies or free
schools are proposed. Academies are able to increase their PAN by simply by placing a
notice on their website and notifying the council. These schools are not required to
undergo statutory processes to expand or to seek the council’s approval.

This has happened in the case of Dog Kennel Hill Primary School, where the LA reduced
the PAN when the school was a community school from 60 to 30, and the MAT has
reversed the PAN reduction, despite the reception intake for 2024/25 being some way
under 30 pupils. This said, the council has engaged meaningfully with the DfE, the
Regional Schools Director (RSD) and MATSs across the authority area.

In July 2024, the LA invited all MAT chains to a (well-attended) seminar to discuss
forward planning and the role the LA could play in ensuring academies were appraised
of the most up to date information.


https://oldkentroad.org.uk/consulting-you/okr-aap-20/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/32/contents
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/63d1357ed3bf7f3c44bcd6b9/Opening_and_closing_maintained_schools_Jan_2023.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/regional-department-for-education-dfe-directors
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s109478/Appendix%2011%20PAN%20reductions%20for%20September%202019%20and%20beyond.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s109478/Appendix%2011%20PAN%20reductions%20for%20September%202019%20and%20beyond.pdf
https://dkh.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/NEST-Admissions-Policy-2025-2026.pdf
https://dkh.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/NEST-Admissions-Policy-2025-2026.pdf

22.

42

in more recent years the liaison has meant that schools have not opened where there is
no evidence of need, and that some academy schools have reduced PANs where there
is evidence of declining demand. There are 39 mainstream schools in Southwark, that
are free schools or academies (21 primaries, 17 secondaries and one all through (4-18)
school). A list of the 39 academies and their 19 sponsors in Southwark is given at
Statistical Annex Section 17.

Longer term primary need in identified development areas

23.

24,

Consideration also needs be given to need deriving from developments outlined in the
Southwark Plan 2022-26 and to development profiles given to the GLA as part of this
and in demographic projection work the GLA undertake. The Southwark Plan will guide
and manage new development and growth in the area over the next 15 years and will
provide a view on the scale of infrastructure needed to support growth. Sites for
educational provision have previously been identified and could be developed as
schools should they be required.

As we receive data on developments in these localities, these are interpolated into the
pupil place planning figures produced by the GLA. Work is ongoing to reflect
developments in the projections produced, but a fair amount of development planned
takes place after 2033, beyond the scope of this report. School capacity already exists
in planning area 2 and further afield to absorb a great deal of any future projected growth.
Should demand exceed supply, then consideration will be given to expanding existing
schools, first and foremost.

Planning Area Analysis of provision, rolls, capacity, and projections

25.

26.

27.

Section 8 of the Statistical Annex give an in-depth analysis of the type of primary
provision that exists in each planning area, existing rolls, school capacities and
projections for the future. The capacity in the projections takes account of PAN
reductions and school closures already undertaken but not yet of proposed
amalgamations/closures in early stages of discussion. A short summary for each
planning area is given below.

Planning Area 1 (Borough, Bankside & Walworth) has seen a steep drop in Year R
since 2016 — 362 pupils (12FE) — (-45% less), and 1,866 pupils overall (-33% less).
Reception capacity in this area has only reduced by 225 places (8FE) since September
2016 (-25%) and overall capacity by 1,335 places (-21%), therefore the gap between
demand and supply has widened. This is one of the planning areas with the highest level
of reception (33%) and overall vacancies (23%) in Southwark, as cuts to capacity have
not kept pace with the drop in pupil numbers. Numbers at reception and across year
groups are projected to regain a small percentage of their previous fall from September
2029 onwards in Year R and September 2032 across all year groups.

Planning Area 2 (Bermondsey & Rotherhithe) has seen a small fall in capacity and
pupil numbers since 2016 — capacity at reception has fallen by 30 (3%) and across all
year groups by 855 (14%). Pupil numbers at reception have fallen by 198 (21%) but saw
a small upswing in reception demand for September 2023, relating to the closure of 2
schools in adjacent PA1. Numbers across all year groups have fallen by 82 (1%) since
2016 and are projected to fall then begin to slowly recover from September 2028
onwards at reception, and September 2032 across all year groups — a considerable
amount of overcapacity (23% for reception and 18% Years R to 6) remains and requires
attention.


https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/94325/Southwark-Plan-2022.pdf

28.

29.

30.

43

Planning Area 3 (Peckham & Nunhead) remains an area of concern, with vacancies
around 27% at reception and 24% across all year groups. Reception numbers in PA3
have fallen by 263 pupils since 2016 (38%), whereas capacity has only fallen by 150
(20%), exacerbating overcapacity at this level. Overall capacity has fallen by 1,095
(20%), whereas overall pupil numbers have fallen by 1,495 (31%). Pupil numbers are
projected to continue to fall and to begin to slowly recover at reception from September
2028 onwards and from September 2032 onwards across all year groups.

Planning Area 4 (Camberwell) has in more recent years become an area of concern
with overcapacity exceeding 25% at reception and 18% in years R to 6 this year.
Reception numbers have fallen by 216 pupils (33%) since 2016 and by 672 (16%) across
all year groups, whereas capacity at reception has fallen by only 120 (17%),
exacerbating overcapacity in this cohort. Across all year groups, capacity has only fallen
by 180 (4%), presenting a similar problem. Actions proposed in KES may mitigate
against this, and numbers are projected to begin to slowly recover at reception from
September 2028 onwards and from September 2035 onwards across all year groups.

Planning Area 5 (Dulwich) is the area least affected by falling rolls. Reception numbers
have decreased by 34 (-7%), but R to 6 numbers have increased by 200 (+7%).
Reception capacity has increased by 6 (1%), and capacity overall by 461 places (+14%).
However, some additional capacity provided in this area has been abstractive of other
Southwark planning areas (particularly Peckham and Camberwell), as well as from
Lewisham, Lambeth and Croydon. Reception and total numbers are projected to remain
at a similar level or fall slightly in the foreseeable future.

Primary reception place applications and preferences

31.

32.

Another method of tracking demand for primary places outside of population-led
projections is to look at trends in the levels of applications for reception places. The level
of applications for primary reception places since 2008 has been in line with most
London boroughs, showing an increase in demand for primary places from 2008 to 2016,
and a reduction thereafter.

In 2024, there were 1,137 fewer (-32%) applicants to Southwark primaries overall than
in 2015-6. Out borough applicant numbers have stayed largely the same, but due to the
reduction of Southwark applicant, percentagewise they have risen from around 8% of
applicants in 2015/16 to around 11% this year, perhaps reflecting the popularity of our
primary schools from other LA areas.

Table 5 —Reception Applications 2015-24 (Southwark & out borough)
Year LBS ' Outborough

Total +/- %
279 (8%) 3,510
274 (8%) 3,397 |-113 -3%
268 (8%) 3,197 | -200 -6%
307 (10%) 3,168 -29 -1%
309 (10%) 3,188 +20 +1%
267 (9%) 3,068 |-120 -4%
248 (9%) 2,852 | -216 -7%
275 (10%) 2,758 -93 -1%
2023-24 2,468 (90%) 278 (10%) 2,746 -12 -0.3%
2024-25 2,094 (89%) 265 (11%) 2,359 |-373| -14%
2015-24 -1,137(-35%) -14 (-5%) -1,151 -32%

2015-16 3,231 (92%)
2016-17 3,123 (92%)
2017-18 2,929 (92%)
2018-19 2,861 (90%)
2019-20 2,879 (90%)
2020-21 2,801 (91%)
2021-22 2,604 (91%)
2022-23 2,483 (90%)




33.

34.

44

In the planning area summaries in Statistical Annex Section 8, individual application
statistics are given by planning area. It is perhaps worth noting that applications for
planning area 2 have risen, whereas applications for all the other planning areas have
fallen. The overall 22% decrease in applications over the last 9 years would seem to
indicate that the trend continues to be downward for Southwark pupils, whereas the
number of applications from outside Southwark remains steady, thus becoming a higher
percentage of applications overall. Using applications as an indicator would seem to
agree with the projections of an overall decreasing number of pupils going forward. In
terms of the actual numbers of preferences expressed for primary places, along with a
fall in applications has come a fall in the number of preferences expressed.

In 2018, applicants for a reception place made an average of 2.5 preferences per
available place. This has fallen this year (2024) to 2.0 preferences per applicant.
Demand varies by sector, with Community schools showing 2.0 preferences per place
(2.3in 2018), and academies 2.2 (previously 2.3). This is explored in detail in Statistical
Annex Section 11.

Births

35.

Births tend to give a good indication of upcoming primary numbers in a locality. Birth
rates in Southwark increased from 2002 to 2011 and peaked in that year — thereatfter,
from 2012 to 2022, there has been a marked decline (-35%) in the number of births,
which normally feeds into reception places four years later. Southwark’s fall in births
has been substantial — 2023 saw the lowest level of births in Southwark since 1986 —
39 years ago. If births are to be used as an indicator of primary numbers, then the trend
would seem to indicate a continued reduction in overall demand.

Table 6 Births in Southwark 2012-22

2012 | 5,030 2018
2013 | 4,706 | -324 -6% 2019 4,027 | -154 -4%
2014 | 4,647 -59 -1% 2020 3,557 | 470 | -12%

2015 | 4,587 -60 -1% 2021 3,525 -32 -1%
2016 | 4,503 -84 -2% 2022 3,393 | -132 -4%
2017 | 4,381 | -122 -3% 2023 3,265 | -128 -4%

I 2012-23 | -1,765 -35%

Primary internal and cross authority flows

36.

37.

Children can apply to and attend schools in other planning areas and other local
authority areas. Indeed, for some pupils living on the border to another authority, the
nearest school may not be in Southwark. Admissions authorities cannot reserve places
for or prioritise pupils from a particular local authority area.

LAs must admit children applying for the school irrespective of in which authority area
they reside. Therefore, there has always therefore been a degree of ‘cross border
traffic’ of pupils’ resident in one borough attending schools in another. Pupil Projections
broadly assume that there remains a similar level of cross border flows in and out of
Southwark from neighbouring authorities from year to year, which was true until
recently


https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/births-and-fertility-rates-borough
https://data.london.gov.uk/dataset/births-and-fertility-rates-borough

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

45

A variety of factors mean we now see more out borough pupils in Southwark than
previously. Southwark exchanges pupils with more than 30 authorities at primary level
— the net effect is “positive” for Southwark (i.e. we receive more primary age pupils from
other authorities than those that leave Southwark to attend schools in other areas).

The main authorities we “swap” pupils with are Lewisham, Lambeth, Croydon,
Westminster, and Greenwich. These five Las make up 94% of our primary age “cross
border traffic”, and just Lewisham and Lambeth more than 78%.

In 2023-24 (the latest available DfE figures), 1,708 (8%) primary school age pupils living
in Southwark attend primary schools in around 26 other local authorities outside
Southwark, equivalent to around 4 x 2FE schools’ worth of pupils. In Southwark
primaries, there are 2,459 (12%) non-Southwark pupils from 36 Las outside Southwark
— the equivalent of six 2FE schools’ worth of pupils were educated in Southwark. This is
a “net gain” of around 751 pupils (+4%), or just under 2 x 2FE schools.

This “net gain” saw an increase in recent years — since 2015-6, when the net gain was
around 530 pupils (+2%) has risen to +4% in this year, perhaps connected to more than
90% of our primaries being Ofsted-graded “Good” or “Outstanding”.

In planning area terms, PA3 sees a net loss (to Lewisham), and PA2 a net gain (mainly
from Lewisham and Lambeth). The reduction in net gain would seem to indicate that the
projections of falling rolls in Southwark will continue, and not be mitigated by cuts in
other LA’s provision driving pupils to attend Southwark schools.

With 12% of our primary pupils coming from outside Southwark, over the last 3 years,
around 11% of primary applicants come from outside Southwark. Statistical Annex
sections 8 and 9 explore cross borough flow data in greater detail.

Private primary schooling and Elective Home Education (EHE)

44,

45.

46.

47.

Projections assume historically similar proportions of children who are being electively
home educated or who attend private schools inside or outside Southwark. If either of
these scenarios are inaccurate, then projections accuracy could potentially be affected.

Whilst the number of primary age home-educated children increased to around 160
pupils in 2023-24, this amounts to less than 0.9% of all primary pupils in Southwark and
has remained constant since 2022/23.

This therefore unlikely to affect projections, unless that proportion increases or
decreases drastically. Compared to the national and local average, Southwark’s level of
Primary EHE is less than the English average (1.1%) but the same as the inner London
average (also 0.9%)

Similarly, the percentage of privately educated primary pupils (8%) in Southwark in
January 2022 at the seven registered private schools with primary provision has not
altered significantly in recent years, although this has increased slightly from around 7%
five years ago


https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/school-pupils-and-their-characteristics/2022-23
https://explore-education-statistics.service.gov.uk/find-statistics/elective-home-education

48.

49.

46

This is more a product of the shrinking school pupil numbers in the state sector, rather
than the popularity of the private sector. The percentage of pupils at independent
school who are Southwark residents is relatively low — 4% - and lower than the UK
average of 7%.

The figures, intake, roll and location of the seven private schools with private primary
provision in Southwark are given in table 7 below. The planning area in which these
schools fall is also included — as can be seen, almost all of the schools are situated in
planning area 5 (Dulwich), 87% of the private primary provision in Southwark is
contained within this planning area

Table 7 Private Schools with Primary classes in Southwark January 2024

PA School Intake (Gender) Capacity (roll)

1 London Christian 3-11 (Mixed) 130 (118)

1 Imperial Oak Prep 4-7 (Mixed) NEW 24 (0)

3 The Villa 2-7 (Mixed) 175 (198)

5 Dulwich College 2-19 (Mixed) 1,950 (1,899)
5 Dulwich Prep 2-14 (Boys) 999 (809)
5 Herne Hill School 2-7 (Mixed) 430 (323)
5 | James Allen’s Girls’ 4-18 (Girls) 1,240 (1,203)
5 Alleyn’s School 4-18 (Girls) 1,450 (1,427)

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Headline figures for secondary

50.

51.

52.

53.

In September 2024 there are presently 3,537 secondary places available in 20 state-
funded mainstream secondaries in Southwark at Year 7. From Years 7-11, there are
17,580 available places — 21,465 if you also include years 12 and 13. As of September
2024, there are presently 3,109 pupils in Year 7, and 15,949 Year 7-11 pupils (19,220
including sixth form pupils). This leaves 428 — 15FE (12%) vacancies in Y7, 1,631 (9%)
Y7-11 vacancies, and 401 (10%) sixth form vacancies.

The Y7-11 and Y12-13 vacancy levels are within generally accepted vacancy
guidelines and leave scope for late applicants and in year admissions. In anticipation
of projected growth at secondary level, resulting from growth in the primary cohort from
2008-2016, Southwark worked with the Department for Education/Education & Skills
Funding Agency, and Free School sponsors to add a total of 14FE to the secondary
provision that was in place in 2016.

Charter School East Dulwich (a Free School), opened in September 2016 on a
temporary site in Camberwell, with a steadily rising intake of from 4FE to 6FE, before
moving onto its permanent site on the site of the former Dulwich Hospital in 2019. The
school took 8FE last year (2023-24), as the main works at the permanent site have
completed.

Haberdashers’ Borough Academy, situated on the old Fire Station site on Southwark
Bridge Road opened in September 2019 as a 6FE Free school. So far, the school has
taken five cohorts of 180 pupils (plus 125 post-16 places) and will have provided 900
additional secondary places (years 7-11) at the start of this academic year.



4.

55.

56.

S57.

58.

59.

a7

By January 2026, this additional capacity increase will have added an additional 527
Y7 places (+18%) and 4,140 secondary places (+31%) from January 2016 as detailed
in Statistical Annex Section 14.

In last year's place planning report, Cabinet was advised that overall, there was
sufficient capacity within Southwark schools to meet the demand for year 7 for that
academic year and going forward until 2030. This remains the case in 2024/5.

Assessing Secondary demand is undertaken using a similar approach to primary (albeit
that the LA monitor roll trends on a whole borough basis rather than by planning area),
with demand for secondary places being projected using the methods below:

examining trends in numbers at Y7 and Y7-11 levels

using the projections the GLA provide

looking at the numbers of historical applications made

examining the cross-border flow of primary and secondary pupils — children
resident in other authorities attending schools in Southwark and vice versa.

This year's enrolment and the latest GLA (2024) projections show that secondary
demand will have peaked in September 2024 and fall back from that year onwards and
reduce thereafter. In these circumstances, capacity is projected to be sufficient to meet
demand. Although there are no immediate concerns about surplus capacity in the
secondary sector overall, less popular schools may be disproportionately affected by
falling numbers of pupils.

Indeed, two of the twenty schools in the secondary sector are actively investigating
PAN reductions going forward.

Given that almost all secondary schools are now Academies or Free Schools,
decisions on their future would primarily be a matter for Multi Academy Trusts (MATS)
and the Department for Education, rather than for the council.

Increasing (and decreasing) secondary rolls

60.

61.

62.

Southwark has seen an overall +15% net increase in numbers of Year 7 pupils between
2016 and 2024 and +29% increase in secondary pupil numbers overall (Years 7 to 11).
However, Year 7 numbers have fallen since 2019-20 by 270 places (-8%) and overall
Y7-11 fell slightly this year (by 235 pupils - 1%) for the first time in 9 years. Evidence
therefore seems to point to secondary rolls having plateaued already at Y7 and across
all year groups in 2023-24.

By 2031 Year 7 numbers are projected to have fallen further by around 558 pupils (19FE)
(-18%), and Years 7-11 by 1,038 places (35 classes -7%), equivalent to the roll of an
7FE secondary school.

As regards sixth form students with Southwark’s schools, a considerable increase of
+66% has occurred since 2016 — over 1,200 additional pupils are now in state funded
secondary school sixth forms. This is projected to continue and peak in 2025-26 and
then decrease slowly, to around 3,100 by the end of the decade, Table 9 below illustrates
the growth over the last 9 years of around an additional 1,385 sixth form students.



48

Table 8: Secondary rolls September 2015-2024 (Y7 and whole school)

%

Y7to 11

+/- %

2015-16 | 2,695

2016-17 | 3,036 | +341 | +13% | 13,086 | +638 | +5%
2017-18 | 3,063 | +27 | +1% | 13,739 | +653 | +5%
2018-10 | 3,268 | +205 | +7% | 14,461 | +722 | +5%
2019-20 | 3,379 | +111 | +3% | 15,226 | +765 | +5%
2020-21 | 3,271 | -108 | 3% | 15,677 | +451 | +3%
2021-22 | 3,203 | 68 | 2% | 15861 | +184 |+1%
2022-23 | 3,241 | +38 | +1% | 16,146 | +285 | +2%
202324 | 3,218 | 23 | 1% | 16,327 | +181 | +1%
2024-25 | 3,109 | -109 | 3% | 16,092 235 | -1%

2015-2024 | +414 +15% 3,644 +29%

Year

Table 9 — Sixth form rolls 2015-2024
Y12-13  +/- ) Year Y12-13 +/-

%

2015-16 | 2,099

2016-17 | 2,352 | +253 | +12% | 2021-22 | 2,856 | +273 | +11%
2017-18 | 2,415 [ +63 +3% | 2022-23 | 2,970 | +114 | +4%
2018-19 | 2,419 +4 +0.2% [ 2023-24 | 3,071 | +101 [ +3%
2019-20 | 2,346 -73 -3% | 2024-25 | 3,484 | +413 | +13%
2020-21 | 2,583 [ +236 | +10% 2015-24 +1,385 | +66%

Secondary place applications and preferences

63. Whilst Y7 application numbers have increased by around a net 611 (+21%) since 2015-
16, this hides a fall of around 280 applications since 2020-2021(-10%)

64.

65.

The number of out borough applicants for secondary places has increased
considerably — a net increase of +65% since 2015-16, with an +5% net increase in
Southwark applicants over the same time period. Out borough applicants fell from
2019-23 but increased from 2023-2024 onwards — Southwark applicants since 2019-
20 (-21%). The proportion of out borough applicants has risen from 28% in 2015-16 to
38% this year (albeit masking a rise and fall).

Table 10 — Y7 Applications 2015-24 (Southwark and out borough)

Year | LBS Out borough  Total +/- %

2015-16 | 2,060 (72%) | 784 (28%) | 2,844

2016-17 | 2,146 (70%) | 920 (30%) | 3,066 | +222 | +8%
2017-18 | 2,137 (70%) | 918 (30%) | 3,055 11 | -0.1%
2018-19 | 2,861 (64%) | 1,315 (36%) | 3,652 | +597 | +20%
2019-20 | 2,879 (63%) | 1,397 (37%) | 3,790 | +138 | +4%
2020-21 | 2,420 (63%) | 1,397 (37% 3,817 +27 +1%
2021-22 | 2,409 (66%) | 1,256 (34%) 3,665 -152 -4%
2022-23 | 2,345 (65%) | 1,255 (35%) 3,600 -65 -2%
2023-24 | 2,280 (64%) | 1,255 (36%) 3,535 -65 -2%
2024-25 | 2,159 (62%) | 1,296 (38%) 3,455 -80 -2%
2015-25 | +99 (+5%) | +512 (+65%) +611 +21%

There was a total of 12,138 preferences expressed by all applicants for the 3,522
secondary Y7 places in the 2024 admissions round. This equates to around 3.5
preferences per place (3.5 last year as well). Of the preferences expressed, 4,384 (36%)
came from outside Southwark — some way above the prevalence of outborough pupils
in the borough (27%). The relative popularity of Southwark secondary schools, all of
whom are graded Ofsted “Good” or “Outstanding” could go some way to explaining this.



66.

67.

68.

49

Preliminary application figures for September 2025 Y7 entry show a total of 134 less
applications (4% less than last year) overall, the fifth consecutive annual fall, and around
500 less applications than in 2020/21 (13% fewer).

If we look at preferences per place for just Southwark applicants, this equates to 7,754
preferences, or 2.1 preferences per secondary Y7 place (2.3 last year).However, the
figures above are skewed by the 2,880 (24%) applications for one school in Southwark
— Kingsdale — whose admissions criteria are not distance based, and whose position in
the far south of the borough on the borders with Lewisham, Croydon, Bromley, and
Lambeth means that the school receives most of its applications (74%) from outside
Southwark. Kingsdale also recruits most of its pupils (76%) from outside Southwark. Five
of the 20 secondary schools receive above the average number of applicants.

These are — St Michael's Catholic College, The Charter School North Dulwich, The
Charter School East Dulwich, Sacred Heart RC Secondary School and Kingsdale
School. These 5 schools received 54% of all Y7 applications for September 2025,
despite only offering 32% of Y7 places.

Secondary cross authority flows

69.

70.

71.

72.

Around 2,748 of Southwark residents of secondary school age attend state funded
secondary schools out of borough, across 28 different councils.

Pupils resident out of borough attending a Southwark school, total 4,216 (27%), a net
gain of around 1,468 (+12%) of pupils. The latter figures have risen in recent years — out
borough pupils attending Southwark schools have increased from 23% to 27% since
2015/16. This means that the net flow has increased from +1% (into Southwark) in
2015/16 to a net gain of +12% in 2024/5.

Most models of pupil place planning assume a “steady state” whereas Southwark
secondary schools’ draw in pupils from further afield each year, meaning there is less
connection with Y6 pupils in Southwark and population increase or decrease. The link
between the numbers of pupils in year 6 and year 7. Southwark itself exports secondary
age pupils mainly to schools in Lewisham, Lambeth and Westminster — these 3 Las
represent 70% of all pupil exports, and imports pupils mainly from Lambeth, Lewisham,
Croydon, Bromley and Tower Hamlets — these 5 Las represent 91% of all imports.

The popularity of our secondary schools — all of which are Ofsted “good” or “outstanding”
rated, could explain this level of out borough demand. A breakdown of where pupils are
coming from at a borough wide and an individual school level is given in Statistical
Annex Section 16. Eight of our twenty secondary schools take 30% or more pupils from
outside Southwark. Y7 places predicted in the GLA projections are shown at Statistical
Annex Section 10, along with the expected capacity to accommodate them. This shows
that demand is unlikely to exceed supply in the foreseeable future. Similarly, Y7-Y11
places predicted in the GLA projections are shown in Statistical Annex Section 10,
along with the expected capacity to accommodate them. Again, this shows that demand
is unlikely to exceed supply in the foreseeable future

The Southwark Plan — Effect on secondary rolls

73.

Consideration needs be given to the Southwark Plan and potential for growth in the
secondary sector, though this may not be immediately necessary if the fall in primary
rolls feeds through to secondary and offsets demand.



https://www.southwark.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy-and-guidance/development-plan/new-southwark-plan

74.

50

Should additional secondary need materialise, the council will consider schemes for
schools that are located close to the areas of demand.

Secondary Elective Home Education (EHE) and private schooling

75.

76.

77.

GLA projections rely on numbers of pupils being home or privately educated to remain
broadly proportional to existing numbers. The number of secondary age home-educated
(EHE) children has slowly increased to around 190 pupils in 2023-24, and privately
educated pupil numbers have also increased.

The latter (EHE) amounts to around 1.0% of all secondary pupils (Y7-Y11) in Southwark.
This figure is (like primary pupils) is therefore unlikely to affect our projections. Pupil
projections also assume that a similar proportion of children attend private schools inside
and outside Southwark, and or are home educated. Table 11 below gives a list of DfE-
recognised independent schools with secondary provision, gender mix, capacity, and
the pupils on roll.

Some of these are schools — mainly “special schools” or units that are funded by referrals
from local authorities, and the rest are fee-paying selective schools — the latter are
shaded blue. The number of vacancies at private fee-paying schools stands at around
7%. Private school pupils make up around 22% of the secondary school pupils in
Southwark, though it is difficult to estimate what proportion of these are actually
Southwark-based pupils.

Table 11 Private and Independent Secondary Schools in Southwark

School Name Gender Rggge Roll Capacity Vacs
Alleyn’s School Mixed 4t018 | 1,427 1,475 48 (3%)
Arco Academy Mixed | 11to 16 16 60 44 (73%)
Cavendish School Mixed | 11to16 | 38 42 4 (10%)
Dulwich College Mixed O0to19 | 1,899 1,950 51 (3%)
Dulwich Prep Mixed 2t016 | 809 999 199 (12%)
James Allen’s Girls Girls 4t018 | 1,203 1,240 37 (3%)
PhoenixPlace Girls 11to16 | 25 36 11 (31%)
Bridge SEN Mixed [14to25 | 12 35 23 (66%)
The(égr“es{?af’jregled Mixed | 18t025 | 12 40 28 (70%)

Treasure House CIC | Mixed | 141to 19 15 18 1 (7%)
Total Fee-paying Private 5,338 5,664 326 (6%)
Total Other Independents 118 231 113 (49%
Total Independent Schools 5456 5,895 439 (7%)

The introduction of VAT on private schooling

78.

The government has signalled its intention to introduce VAT on private school fees, and
there has been a debate as to what will be the effect on private pupil numbers, and
whether there exists sufficient capacity in the Southwark school’s system to absorb a
proportion of those pupils into mainstream state schools, were parents/carers to
abandon selective private education for their children, or for private schools to close. A
small proportion of the roll of the four private secondaries are estimated to Southwark
residents — perhaps 450 pupils.



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/revenue-and-customs-brief-8-2024-removal-of-vat-exemption-for-private-school-fees-and-boarding-fees/b73771cb-f422-46b4-b473-e7ba0ad72ec3

79.

51

Given the fact that despite rising fees, the headcount of private schools has (since 2016)
increased by 428 (+8%) — see Statistical Annex Section 18 — and that a considerable
amount of spare capacity already exists in the primary (4,800 places) and secondary
sector (1,600 Year 7-11 places), it is felt unlikely that, even were some establishments
to close, or a proportion of pupils to move to the state sector that there would be undue
pressure on primary or secondary school places in Southwark.

Secondary expansions and closures in adjacent boroughs

80.

Where secondary expansions or closures have occurred in schools in neighbouring
boroughs, this could potentially have a material effect on recruitment to Southwark
secondary schools. Two secondary schools in Lambeth closed in August 2023, but the
effect was minimal as there were very few Southwark pupils attending these schools.

Accuracy of Projections (Primary and Secondary)

81.

82.

83.

An analysis of the accuracy of the GLA primary and secondary projections used by
Southwark has been undertaken. Ofsted/DfE guidelines aim for these to be within
+1.5%. This has not been achieved overall for primary schools.

The accuracy of projections depends very much on any changes to the social makeup
and demographics of Southwark and London being gradual and that the economic
outlook remaining broadly similar. In both cases, this has not happened in Southwark,
and indeed, the rest of London. An accuracy check shows that:

a. There has been an average overestimation of primary reception projections since
2016-17, of +3.7%, over a period from 2015/6 to 2024/5;

b. Overall, for YR-Y6, demand was overestimated by +4.2% averaged over a period from
2015/6 to 2024/5;

c. Explanations for the overestimation of primary reception derive from the negative
effects of housing market changes, welfare reform, Covid and Brexit on the 0-4 years
of age population, which has caused people to relocate outside Southwark; therefore,
the demand for primary reception places are less than previously anticipated and
projected by the GLA;

d. The figure for Year 7 projections at secondary level has been overestimated by around
-2.6% on average since 2016, and underestimated by -1.5% since 2016 for Years 7-
11. The latter has not been an issue because sufficient space has existed within the
system to be able to accommodate the additional pupils

e. The overestimation of Y7 derives from a feedthrough of less primary Y6s than
previously anticipated. The 7-11 underestimation appears to emanate from a higher
influx and proportion of out borough pupils than previously experienced — this is
explored in Section 14 of the statistical annex below. This has risen considerably in
recent years from around 20% in the last decade to around 30% more recently

f. In addition, modelling of secondary demand is challenging, as most schools are
academies which can — and do — alter their intake dependent on demand on an
annual basis.

Y7 places predicted in the GLA projections are shown in the table in the Statistical
Annex, along with the expected capacity to accommodate them. This shows that
demand is unlikely to exceed supply in the foreseeable future. Similarly, Y7-Y11 places
predicted in the GLA projections are shown in Section 14 of the statistical annex, along
with the expected capacity to accommodate them. Again, this shows that demand is
unlikely to exceed supply in the foreseeable future.



52

SEND Schools Update (Primary, Secondary and 16 plus)

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

Locally, the prevalence of SEND within children and young people continues to rise,
reflected by increasing numbers of EHCPs and the associated costs of service provision.
This trend has occurred against a background of falling student numbers in some age
cohorts, especially primary school age children, in Southwark. The number of EHC plans
in Southwark more than doubled between January 2015 and January 2024. There have
been annual increases ranging from 2.5% between 2020 and 2019 but an average
annual increase of almost 10%.

During and following the global pandemic, Southwark has experienced a sharp increase
in demand for EHC needs assessments and this growth has not yet slowed. The latest
figures from the 2024 Pupil Census show that the percentage of children in Southwark
with an Education and Healthcare Plan (EHCP — formerly ‘a Statement’), at 5.1% and
with “SEND Support” status standing at 15.0%. These are slightly higher than the
London average (4.1% and 11.7% respectively) and England (4.0% and 12.6%)
average. This also varies by sector (Primary 4.0% EHCP, 16.6% SEND Support,
Secondary 2.9% and 13.1%, and Special, 99.9% and 0.1%). This equates to around
8,530 children with special needs in Southwark — 21% of all pupils. The number of
children with the most complex needs (the 2,176 pupils with EHCPs), has been
increasing. This is particularly true at primary age and the need for specialist provision
at an early stage is therefore greater. There are approximately 3,585 children in primary
school with SEND compared to almost 2,565 children in secondary schools and post-16
combined.

The actual number of EHC plans has more than doubled between January 2015 and
January 2024, increasing by 127% over that period. With the exception of the year 2019
— 2020, which showed a relatively small year-on-year rise in the number of plans of
2.5%, the annual increase has been roughly 10%, as can be seen in table 12 below.

Table 12a — Number of statements and EHC plans combined, Southwark, 2015-2024

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ‘ 2024
Under 5 55 6 11 13 80 84 112 113 91 121
Age5to 10 598 578 618 631 745 757 807 877 926 1053
Age 11015 621 598 643 666 712 792 368 918 947 1000
Age 16t 19 147 34 455 532 522 490 518 588 629 679
Age20t0 25 0 74 152 188 179 17 198 287 363 i
Total 1,421 1,600 1,879 2,030 2,238 2,294 2,503 2,783 2,956 | 3,226

The lower proportion of SEND pupils in secondary schools is principally because of the
positive impact of interventions in primary schools, with up to 60% of SEND pupils
achieving the expected standard by age 11. Consequently, some are no longer classed
as SEND when they move to secondary. Some pupils with EHCPs who attend
mainstream primary schools move on to secondary special schools in or out of
Southwark.

A key driver of this growth has been the increase in number of children being diagnosed
with Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD). Southwark has a broad range of provision for
pupils with ASD which has developed and extended over time. It currently has three
special schools that cater specifically for this type of need: one primary (Haymerle), one
secondary (Spa Bermondsey) and a recently opened all through free school Spa
Camberwell which will have provided 120 additional places when full in September 2024.
A new reception class has been developed for up to 10 children at The Grove Nursery
School which feeds into the new special free school.



89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

53

There are also four ASD resource bases in mainstream primary schools (Snowsfields,
Brunswick Park, Rye Oak and Redriff) and a further secondary resource base is planned
at the newly opened Charter School in East Dulwich, which will provide up to 22 places
with phased admissions having commenced in September 2023.

There is a particular need for more places with for children with complex needs and
ASD. Specialist provision in Southwark is full, as can be seen in table 10 below. It is also
the council’s intention is to provide more specially resourced provision in mainstream
schools to enable children with additional needs to access (where appropriate) the
mainstream curriculum, and to educate more children in borough rather than to transport
them to schools elsewhere.

The rethinking of services incorporates the main areas of growth over the past few years,
16 to 25 year-olds and Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD), as well as a renewed focus on
the provision of more timely high-quality provision for young children with complex needs
and their families, in all early years settings, and with better coordinated support. In
addition, although compared to other areas we educate more of the borough’s children
and young people with SEND needs in local mainstream and special schools, we want
to develop even more local provision. Finally, we need to consider the LA position on
exclusions and how the work of inclusive schools provides better outcomes for children.

Around 15% of our SEND roll comes from outside Southwark, two-thirds of which come
from Lambeth and Lewisham. Southwark sends around 100 pupils outborough (mainly
to Lambeth, Lewisham, Croydon and Westminster). There is a net loss of around 40

pupils.

In September 2022, the council launched its strateqgy for children, young people and their
families with SEND aged 0-25. We have developed the strategy with all stakeholders in
the SEND Local Area and it has undergone extensive consultation and reconfiguration
in light of that. Details of existing special school provision in Southwark provision are
outlined below, outlined below in Tables 12b and 13. Plans and proposals for the
expansion of SEND provision are set out in Table 14. All of Southwark’s SEND provision
is either OFSTED rated “good” or “outstanding”.

As can be seen in table 13, some special schools in the authority area take above the
formal capacity outlined, and projects to augment provision are constantly assessed to
ensure that need in the authority is met appropriately, and that provision is provided “in
borough” rather than a lengthy journey distant from the pupil’s residence. Consideration
is underway for the repurposing of some of council’s primary schools recently closed to
either expand SEND provision, or to relocate provision in more appropriate and suitable
settings than at present.

Table 12b — Children (year group) in SEND schools (R to 13) May 2024
SEND School Pupils Years R-13

120
i1o0
100

=To)

80 -
70
60
50
40
30
20
: m

o

R i 2 3 — 5 (=3 7 8 9 i0 i1 iz i3


https://localoffer.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/888/Special-Educational-Needs-and-Disability-SEND-Strategy-2022-2025.pdf
https://localoffer.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/888/Special-Educational-Needs-and-Disability-SEND-Strategy-2022-2025.pdf

54

Table 13 Existing Special/non-mainstream schools in Southwark — roll and capacities

School Specialism, school type Roll | Capacity
(age range) (2024) | (2024)
Highshore School SLD, PMLD Community School (11-19) 155 152
Spa Bermondsey ASD Academy (11-19) 115 115
Spa Camberwell ASD Free School (11-19) 101 120
g\éﬁlclg? Hospital Community Hospital School (2-19) 109 40
Maudsley &
Bethlem Hospital Community Hospital School (4-19) 53 40
School
Haymerle School ASD Community Primary School (4-11) 72 77
Beormund Primary | SEMH, Community School (5-11) 37 40
Tuke School SLD/PMLD Community School (11-19) 101 90
Cherry Garden SLD/MLD Community School (2-11) 88 85
Southwark Inclusive . .
: : Pupil Referral Unit (11-16)
I(_Seiflsr)n Ing Service (KS3: Peckham, KS4: London Bridge) 70 112
Newlands Academy | SEMH Academy (11-16) 70 70
Park College ASD Post 19 Facility (19-25) 40 40
Total 1,011 981

Table 14 SEND expansion proposals
School Proposal Capacity | Status

Relocation to former site Gateway 2 approved —
Beormund .
Primary Bellenden Prlmary 58 completes
School site September 2025
Charter School | ASD resource base as Work underway —
. ) 20 completes December
East Dulwich part of new build 2024

Table 15 SEND pupil totals — historical/projected (less hospital schools and Park College)

SEND Pupil Numbers and Projected 2018-2028

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29

Number 659 614 727 709 743 801 818 870 900 958 1035

95. Southwark is developing capital plans to expand SEND provision with in Southwark,
including additional Resource Bases places and sixh form provision.



55

PLACE PLANNING STATISTICAL ANNEX

Number Title
Section la Pupils by Planning Area chart (Reception)
Section 1b Pupils by Planning Area chart (Years R to 6)
Section 2a Primary rolls and projections — Years R to 6 2016-31
Section 2b Primary rolls and projections — Years R 2016-31
Section 3a Map of Primary Planning Areas in Southwark
Section 3b Map of Primary Schools in Southwark
Section 4 Primary Schools by Planning Area, Type, PAN, and wards
Section 5 List of wards and schools
Section 6 Births in Southwark, Actual (2012-21) projected (2022-31)
Section 7a Primary reception Applications 2015-16 to 2024-25
Section 7b: Primary Applicant Preferences 2015-16 to 2024-25
Section 7¢ Primary Applicant Preferences 2015-16 to 2024-25 (Stack)
Section 7d Primary pupil % by LA in Southwark schools
Section 8 Planning Area Summaries PA1 to PA5
Section 9 Primary Cross Border flows into and out of Southwark
Section 10a Preferences by Sector for Primary Reception Places
Section 10b Primary Preference per place by School type
Section 11a Primary vacancies by school type — at reception
Section 11b Primary vacancies by school type — YR to Y6
Section 12 Agreed Primary PAN reductions/closures 2019-23
Section 13 Secondary Summary
Section 14 Secondary Schools by ward and PAN — 2023-2024
Section 15 Secondary Cross border flows to and from Southwark
Section 16 Breakdown of rolls by school - Southwark/Non-Southwark
Section 17 Academies in Southwark and their sponsors
Section 18 Independent School rolls 2016-24




56

SECTION la Percentage primary reception pupils and places by Planning Area

Reception Roll by PA - September 2024

‘ PAS \
19%

PAl
18%

PA2
128%

Reception Places by PA - September 2024

‘PAS‘

16% l

\’W‘
120%

PA4
17%,

29%



57

SECTION 1b Primary pupils and places by Planning Area Years R to 6
Pupils by Planning Area - September 2024

‘ PAS

Places by Planning Area - September 2024

‘PAS‘

\ PA1 ‘
(21%

'PA2
29%




58

L092T  L69CT LLSTT L66CT [9TET | LYYETZ TCSET  L6SET TOSET 0ETHT  6ELST | EELST | T86ST | 0T09C | 6609C  0SLST SSEST | 066FC  0E¥be  OvTye |Auoeded g0} Yemmms

8689T 8€89T  GBBI9T S8VOLT S6TLT VCLLT  TET8T | LLL8T OTv6T | ¥200C L0L0T <TBETC TLOTC 069CC CvCET  9CVET  9LVET ©LEET | [¥BTT | OFETT

€€0C TE0T T1E0C @ O¢€oC 6202 8¢0C Lt0T @ 9tToT Sz0C @ veoT €¢0C TtoT @ 1C0C @ otoc 610 810C LT0T | 910C S10C v10T
Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Azenuer Azenuer

(€€-9202)
(pa4) suondaloid pue (Sz-y10z) (2n/q) - slloy ‘Audede) g 01 Y - yaemyinos

Section 2a Primary rolls and projections — Years R to 6 2014-31

00S9T
0S/91
000LT
0SeLT
00S.LT
0SLLT
0008T
05281
00S8T
06481
0006T
0szeT
00S6T
0561
0000¢T
0szoe
0050¢
05202
000tC
oszie
00STC
0S.12T
0ooge
oseee
00sze
0S/2¢
000€T
oseee
00S€T
0SLEC
000v¢C
0seve
00Sve
0sLve
000s¢
0S¢ese
006S¢T
(A4
0009¢T
0s¢29¢

9 01 A mm



59

161€  T6T€  T6T€ T6I€  T6TE T6IE  T6TE  TCCE  TPEE TLEE | T8SE  T¥9E | OTLE  OWLE | G66E GEGE  GZOF  098€  OTLE | GeLe | Auoede) e

v86C  v9SC | E¥SC | GCST  TIST | 8SPT @ 09S¢ | 6CSC | CISC | ¥08C @ 86LC | 9E86C | ¥86C  0CCE | L¥CE @ O0EEE | 6TISE | G8GE  TLVE | tviveE

€€0C (4114 1€0C 0€0¢ 6¢0C 8T0T  Lzot 970t (YA AN 14114 €20  Ttoc 120 0zot 6T0C 810C LT0T | 910C ST0T t10¢C
Aenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer

(€€-9202)
(pa4) suonaaloid pue (sz-¥102) (2n/9) - sjjoy ‘Adede) uondaray - yiemyinos

Section 2b Primary Reception Roll and projections — 2014-31

oove
0sve
00st
1974
092
089t
00LT
0sLT
008¢
68T
0062
0867
00€
0S0€
001€
0STE
00ce
06ze
00€€
0GEE
00vE
0Sve
00G€
0sse
009€
059¢€
00L€
0sLe
008€
068€
006¢€
0S6¢€
000%
0sor

(=

o

o

Y -



60

SECTION 3a - MAP OF THE FIVE PRIMARY PLANNING AREAS

PRIMARY PLANNING AREA MAP

ET S Sk
O, CITY OFAR
LONDON .o

(B108]

Shadw

‘ UDDC\r Bell.Green
Sydenham

NewBeckenhamy/

1
A214 }-\I-Norwo,{‘ {i
; New lTown > N l




61

SECTION 3b — MAP OF PRIMARY SCHOOLS IN SOUTHWARK

100L25 Awad mnypud [
100yzs Aiewiid suuod uyeor
Joous Kiewug weyag ays [) Aied wewypag ‘fuwspen Aewiid sue B
100UDS 8354 Lid yupni [ 100y Ay usai0 35000 [
fooyas Aewud sieey uyor [ [0S JOInT 18/WeH Yxwing [
g 1503 Awepeoy Aiewq swew [ Ioous Areuiud IH [2uuay Bog
Auwapexy uopuon jo 13 Arwud iemézies ) oo Aiewid supid seueyd [
sjooys aayy fuwapey aqoi0 Hyv [
Awzpesy we0 buy [
joous uonepunod Aiewig Leud 5] sajllapedy
100425 LeLulig URwIeYS BRouey 3 ) SOPRp——
ld
HOHpE HOREREnGd 1005 Kirwiid 3bpug jamol [
PeCH WWOD 'JoouRs ARwid Moy sydaser 15 ] 100L>S 314 yiensyinos [
moy 281020 "jooys AUBLIg oyleD sydasar 15 160y3s Auewig spysmous 3
(SIOIUAF) UCHRIBPR SIOOUS JICUIED IBABGUWED Sydesor 15 m joouys Avewd yeg aky [
(sHURJUl) UOREIEP; SIP0YS ijoyeD) RwURqIe) sydesor s [ o5 Auitid Bunimais Lo [
100ys Asewuid Moyied suyor 15 [ 1ooys Lewug 2pisievy [
100415 Atwilid NOYIRD 10809 31 Shuwer 15 Y fooyxs Aieving Aem swubid [@
tooy2s Aiewiid ouned [eipauie) 526100915 [ 1o0u2s Aeui xiveoud [
Joous Aiewud oyled souely 15 [ ooys Aewud ywspiod 20 [
Fo0u35 Aunid ouied sAuouiu 15 [ ooy>s Aewug Arpese ey [
ybnaiog Byl "foouxs Auewiud oy sudasor wies [ 1ooy2s fewiid ypowiay Y
[ooyas Aewg Joyied sikuep ysibul B F0UDS g uisng el [T
100y3S AIRwiad 30 3 UUOMWEM Siaad 15 [ 100U Asewiig e ]
1oous Aiewud 340 D sined 15 [l 100u25 Agwid uoLspi Y
100Uz Aiwaid 3 0 3 duepbien Lieni 1S [ 100425 Aiewiud ayepfion [T
1ooyas AewiK 340 3 53PN 15 100uds Aiewiid 1aqa [
Eﬁguauﬂcgﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmm toois Aieuig 36ueio [
jooys feewid 3 jo 3 sawer 15 Y jooyas Aewug yispood [
oS Aewug 3 o 3 sefioes 15 16045 Aituwiid pocm wming [
10045 LIBWL 3 J0 3 SINBd 15 PUB SAIRI 1S Yl SlIH J22d [ 105 Aiewgd paojwesd
160U S1ujur 3 jo 3 8beyin uing [T 1oous Asewiig voidwes I
BUBA0 AU 15 PUR JNOWES 15 JO j00uD5 [RpaleD 2yl [ 1005 e wed ivsunsg [
Ioou2s Aewiag pugiBu3 o yany sayninea I Eﬁaﬂhg Mﬁwﬂ“
sjooys papje Alejunjop jooups Kewng upuayes [
100435 Aiewug asenbs Aauns [ ooy Aeuaid Jaues pauly |
10045 Asewig syliyagioy [T 10035 Asewiid uoigry |
Arewud yupy sjools Aewpd Ajunwwo?y

ydemyinos ul sjooyds Alewiid jo dey



SECTION 4 — PRIMARY SCHOOLS BY PLANNING AREA, PANs, TYPES, WARDS 2024/25

Primary School
Charles Dickens

St Joseph's Borough RC
Cathedral School CE
Friars

ARK Globe Academy
Surrey Square

Michael Faraday

St Peters Walworth CE

Crampton

Keyworth

St Paul's CE

Robert Browning

Victory

English Martyrs RC

St Georges Cathedral RC

St Jude's CE

Charlotte Sharman
Grange

Snowsfields

Tower Bridge

Riverside

Southwark Park

St James CE

St Joseph's George Row RC

John Keats Primary

liderton

Pilgrims Way

Phoenix

Albion

Alfred Salter

Rotherhithe

St Joseph's Gomm Road RC

Boutcher CE

Galleywall

Peter Hills CE

Redriff

St Johns RC

PA

' PAN Type WEe
60 Academy Borough & Bankside
30 VA RC Borough & Bankside
30 VA CE Borough & Bankside
30 Foundation Borough & Bankside
60 Academy Chaucer
60 Academy Faraday
60 Community Faraday
30 VA CE Faraday
30 Community Newington
60 Community Newington
45 Academy (CE) | Newington
30 Community North Walworth
30 Community North Walworth
30 VA RC North Walworth
30 VA RC St George's
30 VA CE St George's
30 Foundation St George's
60 Community London Bridge & West Bermondsey
30 Community London Bridge & West Bermondsey
30 Community London Bridge & West Bermondsey
45 Community North Bermondsey
30 Community North Bermondsey
60 VA CE North Bermondsey
45 Academy (RC) | North Bermondsey
60 Free School Old Kent Road
30 Community Old Kent Road
30 Community Old Kent Road
90 Community Old Kent Road
60 Community Rotherhithe
60 Community Rotherhithe
60 Academy Rotherhithe
30 VA RC Rotherhithe
30 VA CE South Bermondsey
60 Free School South Bermondsey
30 VA CE Surrey Docks
60 Academy Surrey Docks
30 VA RC Surrey Docks

¢9



Primary School
St John's & St Clements CE

Hollydale

John Donne

Bird-in-Bush (ex-Camelot)

St Francis RC

Angel Oak

Harris Academy Peckham Park

St James The Great RC

St Mary Magdalene CE

Rye Oak

Bellenden

Ivydale
Lyndhurst

Oliver Goldsmith

St Georges CE

Dog Kennel Hill

Bessemer Grange

The Belham

Crawford

John Ruskin

Brunswick Park

St Joseph's Camberwell Infants RC

St Joseph's Camberwell Junior RC
St Anthony's RC

Goodrich

Judith Kerr Free School

Dulwich Hamlet Juniors

Dulwich Village Infants CE

Dulwich Wood Primary

Harris Primary Free East Dulwich

Heber

Goose Green

PAN Type Ward
60 VA CE Goose Green
30 Community Nunhead & Queen's Rd
60 Academy Nunhead & Queen's Rd
60 Community Old Kent Road
60 VA RC Old Kent Road
60 Academy Peckham
30 Academy Peckham
30 VA RC Peckham
30 VA CE Rye Lane
60 Community Rye Lane
30 Community Rye Lane
90 Community Peckham Rye
60 Academy St Giles
60 Community St Giles
30 VA CE St Giles
30 Academy Champion Hill
90 Community Champion Hill
60 Free School Rye Lane
60 Community Camberwell Green
60 Community Camberwell Green
60 Community Camberwell Green
60 VA RC Camberwell Green
60 VA RC Camberwell Green
60 Academy RC Dulwich Hill
90 Community Dulwich Hill
56 Free School Dulwich Village
90 Academy Dulwich Village
90 VA CE Dulwich Village
60 Community Dulwich Wood
60 Free School Goose Green
60 Community Goose Green
60 Academy Goose Green

SOUTHWARK

3,341

€9



SECTION 5 - WARDS AND SCHOOLS

Red =Academies/Free Schools,

Borough & Bankside

, Orange = Foundation schools, Black= Community Schools

Charles Dickens, )
, Friars

Haberbdashers' Aske's Borough

Camberwell Green

Crawford, John Ruskin, Brunswick Park,

Sacred Heart Roman Catholic RC
Secondary, ARK All Saints

Champion Hill Dog Kennel Hill, Bessemer Grange The Charter School North Dulwich
ARK Globe Academy (all through 4-18 school)
Chaucer —
No (other) primaries
Dulwich Hill St Anthony's RC, Goodrich Harris Boys East Dulwich
Dulwich Village Judith Kerr, Dulwich Hamlet Juniors, No secondaries
Dulwich Wood Dulwich Wood Primary Kingsdale Foundation
Faraday Michael Faraday, , Surrey Square ARK Walworth, South Bank

University Academy

Goose Green

Harris Primary Free East Dulwich,
, Goose Green, Heber

Charter School East Dulwich

London Bridge & West
Bermondsey

Grange, Snowsfields, Tower Bridge

No secondaries

Newington

Crampton, Keyworth, St Paul's CE Academy

North Bermondsey

Riverside, Southwark Park,
St Joseph's RC George Row

Charter Bermondsey, St Michael's
RC Catholic College

North Walworth

Robert Browning, Victory,

No secondaries |

Nunhead & Queen's Road

Hollydale, John Donne

Old Kent Road

John Keats, llderton, Pilgrims Way, Phoenix, Bird in
Bush (formerly Camelot),

No secondaries

Angel Oak, Harris Academy Peckham Park,

Peckham

Peckham Rye Ivydale Harris Girls East Dulwich
Rotherhithe Albion, Alfred Salter, Rotherhithe, Bacon's College

Rye Lane -PlfﬁéleBneﬁIﬁg;n School » Rye Oak, Harris Peckham Academy

South Bermondsey

, Galleywall

City of London Academy
Southwark, Harris Bermondsey

St George's

St Georges Cathedral RC,
Charlotte Sharman

Notre Dame RC

St Giles

Lyndhurst, Oliver Goldsmith,

Surrey Docks

, Redriff,

No secondaries

9



SECTION 6 - Births by calendar year in Southwark
ble 16: Births in Southwark (actuals 2012-2022, projections 2022-2031 — dotted line)/

Live births 2012-2023 (actual), 2024-32 (projected)

5,200
5,100
5,000
4,900
4,800
4,700
4,600
4,500
4,400
4,300
4,200
4,100
4,000
3,900
3,800
3,700
3,600

3,500 .o ..........“....0000000
3,400 Sz

3,300 .

3,200
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

==mm| ive births 5,030 4,706 4,648 4,587 4,503 4,381 4,181 4,027 3,557 3,525 3,393 3,265 3,444 3,451 3,457 3,461 3,466 3,472 3,489 3,511 3,535

G9



SECTION 7a: PRIMARY RECEPTION APPLICATIONS 2015-16 TO 2024-25

® Outborough

HLBS

3,600
3,500
3400
3,300
3,200
3,100
3,000
2,900
2,800
2,700
2,600
2,500
2,400
2,300
2,200
2,100
2,000
1,900
1,800
1,700
1,600
1,500
1,400
1,300
1,200
1,100
1,000
900
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100

0

Primary applications 2015-2024 - Southwark & outborough

2015-16
279
3,231

2016-17
274
3,123

2017-18
268
2,929

2018-19
307
2,861

2019-20
309
2,879

2020-21
267
2,801

2021-22
248
2,604

2022-23
275
2483

2023-24
278
2,468

2024-25
265
2,094

99



SECTION 7b: TOTAL PRIMARY APPLICANT PREFERENCES 2019-20 TO 2024-25 BY PLANNING AREA

Southwark Primary Preference Totals 2019-2024

2019
1514
2759
1348
1707
2096

2020
1449
2646
1251
1610
2142

2021
1377
2466
1318
1523
2086

2022
1245
2355
1281
1372
1997

2023
1160
2469
1207
1335
1740

2024
1,038
1,902
1,130
1,144
1,790

L9



SECTION 7c: PRIMARY APPLICANT PREFERENCES 2019-20 TO 2024-25 BY PREFERENCE

Southwark Primary Reception Preferences
2019-2024

9500
9000
8500
8000
7500
7000
6500
6000
5500
5000
4500
4000
3500
3000
2500
2000 : i .
1500 L ‘ I i
1000 | ‘
: H B
o 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
H Preference 1 3166 2830 2758 2669 2359
m Preference 2 2061 1970 1925 1823 1708 1600
m Preference 3 1623 1562 1541 1410 1366 1244
w Preference 4 1127 1088 1096 984 974 894
m Preference 5 820 797 784 733 682 630

m Preference 6 627 632 594 552 512 465

89



Section 7d Primary pupils by LA in Southwark schools

Primary pupils by LA in Southwark

Southwark
89%

Lewisham
5%

Lambeth
4%
Croydon
Greenwich 1%
0.4% Other LAs
Merton | Bexley ' Newham Bromley 1%

0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 0.3%

69



70

SECTION 8

PRIMARY PLANNING AREA
SUMMARIES

PAl - Borough, Bankside & Walworth
PA2 — Bermondsey & Rotherhithe
PA3 — Peckham & Nunhead

PA4 — Camberwell

PAS5 — Dulwich

e List of schools

e Narrative

e Preferences

e Rolls & Projections for YR/YR to Y6
e Births

e Cross Border flows



71

PLANNING AREA 1
BOROUGH, BANKSIDE & WALWORTH

ARK Globe Academy (Primary)

Cathedral Primary School CE

Charles Dickens Primary School

Charlotte Sharman Primary School
Crampton Primary School

Friars Primary School

English Martyrs RC Primary School
Keyworth Primary School

Michael Faraday Primary School

Robert Browning Primary School

St Georges Cathedral RC Primary School
St Joseph's (Borough) RC Primary

St Jude's CE Primary School

St Paul's Primary School

St Peters CE Primary School

Surrey Square Primary School

Victory Primary School




72

PAl1- Borough, Bankside & Walworth

Wards
covered

eBorough & Bankside, Chaucer, Faraday, Newington, North Walworth, Old
Kent Road (part), St George's

Schools

Primary School | PAN Type Primary School | PAN

Type

ARK Globe 60 ACAD Victory 30 COMM

Charles Dickens | 60 ACAD Charlotte Sharman | 30 FOUND

Surrey Square 60 ACAD Friars 30 | FOUND

St Paul's CE 45 | ACADCE) | Cathedral SchoolCE | 30 VA CE

St Georges RC 30 | ACAD(RC) St Jude's CE 30 VA CE

Crampton 30 COMM St Peters CE 30 VA CE

Keyworth 60 COMM English Martyrs RC 30 VA RC

Michael Faraday | 60 COMM St Joseph's RC 30 VA RC

Robert Browning | 30 COMM

¢ 17 Primary Schools: 5 Academies (including 1 CE and 1 RC Academy), 5
Community, 2 Foundation, 3 VA CE schools and 2 VA RC schools

¢11 x 1FE schools, 1 x 1.5FE school, 5 x 2FE schools

¢ PA1l takes around 20% of all Southwark pupils (18% of reception pupils)

ePAl provides around 20% of all Southwark primary places (21% of
reception places)

Capacity

e As at September 2024 — there are 675 reception places, and 4,965 Years
R to 6 places

Application
trends

e Since 2019, the number of overall preferences for primary reception places
in the planning area have fallen by 31%. First preferences have fallen by
30%, and 15t to 3" preferences by 29%

Changes
since the
last report

e Cobourg Primary School reduced its PAN from 60 to 30 with effect from
September 2022, and then merged with Camelot School (PA3) to form Bird
In Bush Primary School in September 2023. English Martyrs RC formally
reduced their PAN to 30 in 2022/23

Births

¢ Births in PA1 fell from 2012 to 2022 by -34%, and are projected to begin to
rise slowly to 2031 by +11% (+1% per annum)

¢ At ward level, births in Borough & Bankside ward grew by +1% from 2012-
22, and are forecast to grow by +16% by 2031 — however, this is only an
increase of 14 births; Chaucer fell by -25%, and is projected to fall a further
-9%, Faraday, a -51% drop followed by a further -6% drop; Newington, -
30% then -13%; North Walworth -32% then a +52% rise, St George's --33%
then -+41% rise

Reception
and whole
school
vacancies —
existing and
projected

eThere are 226 spare reception places (8FE) across PA1 — 34% of all
reception places — 68 more numerically than last year (+10%)

eIn 2019, reception places were reduced by 135 (4.5FE) through PAN
reductions to more closely match demand. However, this has essentially
just kept pace with the reduction in rolls

eThe GLA project 193 reception vacancies (6FE) in January 2026 (29%),
with slowly increasing vacancy levels thereafter, culminating in 205
vacancies in January 2031 (30%) if no further action to reduce capacity is
taken

eThere are 1,147 empty places from years R to 6 — 23% across PA1’s
primary capacity. Without further actions in place, this is projected to
increase steadily to around 1,591 (34%) in January 2031, if no further action
to reduce capacity is taken

Keeping
Education
Strong
Actions/
Proposals

¢ Cobourg Primary — Amalgamation/closure (a net reduction of 30 reception
and 390 primary places (this has already been undertaken)

e Closure of Townsend Primary (net reduction of 30 reception and 210
primary places (this has already been undertaken)

¢St Paul’'s CE Primary Academy reduction of PAN from 45 to 30 (net
reduction of 15 reception and 105 primary places) — under consultation

e Merger of Charlotte Sharman and St Jude’s — rejected

eOverall proposed/implemented reduction of 105 reception and 1,095
primary places (if all implemented)




73

PAl1- Borough, Bankside & Walworth

GLA
Projections
2024

e There is sufficient capacity to meet demand up until 2031 at reception and
across all year groups. The GLA project that reception rolls will reduce by a
further 42 pupils (1.5FE - 8%), and that YR to Y6 by 654 pupils (17%) by
then (equivalent to 3 x 1FE schools)

Pupil intake
by area

ePALl is a net exporter of pupils, exporting just under 100 (4FE) YR to Y6
pupils (-2%)

¢St George’s Cathedral Primary (25%), St Jude’s CE (25%), Charlotte
Sharman (17%), and Keyworth (11%) take a significant proportion of pupils
from outside Southwark (mainly Lambeth)

¢ St George’s Cathedral (43%), St Joseph’s Borough (39%), Surrey Square
(31%) all take a significant proportion (more than 30%) of their pupils from
outside PALl. Conversely, John Ruskin in PA4 (61%), Phoenix (37%),
Grange (36%) and Snowfields (32%) all in PA2 take a high percentage of
its pupils from PAL.

¢ Approximately 24% of pupils attending schools in this PA come from outside
the planning area, mainly from other planning areas within Southwark (PAs
2 and 4) and around 315 pupils (7%) come from outside Southwark (from
Lambeth (4%), Croydon (0.3%) and Lewisham (1%))

e Nearly 27% of PAL resident children attending state schools attend a school
in another planning area or a school outside Southwark — again, mainly PAs
2 (640 pupils — 14%) and 4 (540 pupils - 12%) and a small number out of
borough in Lambeth

PAT pupil origins




74

[ 6L 9L 13 [
96 T
BET ELT
BEE
ErE
rs
6T0Z

ey T

i

¥202-6T0C TVd ele@ 2duaiaja.d Atewiid

0 B3UB a8l B
§ BIUBISEId B
¥R REId
p= = PENETETRY |
[ UBEEIdE

1 @Juasalald |

1

(114
00T
05T
0oz
05t
o0og
133
00w
0sr
oos
055
009
059
0oL
1
oos
0se
006
056
0ot
0501
00Tt
0sTT
00zT
05T
0DET
05ET
DOFT
1154
00sT
0551



75

SGL¥ | SSLv | SSL¥ | SGLY | SSLv | S8Lv | 008% SI8Y G967  GTIS | G986  0L6S | SS9  Sv¥EQ | 0S¥9  SOP9 | S¥EQ  00E9 | SST9 | 0TZ9 | Auoede)emmms
6¥IE  LVIE | VITE | 96IE  ©¥9CE | LBEE | OPSE | 699€ | 8IBE  6€0¥ | EvEVY  89vP 9¢9v | S68F  €6IS | TvkS = ¥PSS | 90LS | 00LS | TLSS 901 Y -

€€0¢ (4514 T€0C 0€0¢ 6¢0¢ 820t L20T 9z70¢ (Y44 vzoc £20¢ ceoc 1202 0zcoc 610C 810C LT0T 910t S10¢ v10¢C
Aenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Aszenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Aszenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer

000€
E NN
0oce
0oce
oove
00s¢e
009¢
00Lg
008¢
006¢€
00v
00TV
00ty
00cy
oovy
00sv
09v
00Lv
008%
006%
000S
00TS

o

o

00zs
00€s
00¥S
00sS
009§
00LS
008S
0065
0009
0019
00z9
00€9
00v9
00s9

(€€-9202) (paJ)
suondafoid pue (Sz-v10z) (2n/q) - sjioy ‘Aydede) g 01 Y Jeaj - T ealy Suluueld



76

SL9 SL9 SL9 SL9 SL9 SL9 GL9 SL9 6.9 6.9 9L S6L 018 018 54 Sv6 Sve 006 006 006  Auoede) s
08y SLY 0Ly 99v v £l 4 8LV [4:34 VY LIS 8¥S L8S 809 19 659 6TL ovL 118 S08 9L o -

£€€0C (43174 T€0C 0€0¢ 620¢C 8¢0¢ L20T 9z0t czoc veoe €20t (4414 1202 0zot 6T0C 810¢ LT0T 910t S10¢ t10C
Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Ausenuer Asenuer Asenuer

ocv
B g ;
09y
08v
00¢
0zs
149
09¢
086
09
0z9
9
099

(=]

o

o

(=

(=]

89
0L
0zL
174
09L
08L
008
0z8
o8
098
088
006
0Z6
o6
096

(=

(€€-9202) (paJ)
suonaalfoid pue (sz-v102) (2n/9) - sjjoy ‘Andede) uondaiay - T easy Suluueld



77

BB {8 LT8 E£1I8 018 #0B 8B6L 6BL 6LL 0 TSL PRL €94  TEB 0L €68 BI6 89 L00T E10T 9601 61IT Ssylid

CEQZ TEQE O0E0Z 6L£0€ BIOL ALZ0€ 9Z0¢ SE0€ +E0¢ EL0E€ 2207 | TZ0€ OZ0f 6I0E BIOZ L10Z2 910¢  STO0Z #L0E ET10E 102
JTE0Z fOE0Z [f6TOZ fBTOZ fLZTOZ fOROT [fSZOT /vEZOT fETOZ JZTOT JIZOZ fOTOT /610 /ETOZ JLTOE JfOTOZ /STOZ /PTIOZ JETOZ JEZTOZ fITOZ

-
a®®

"
4
ot
aa®

064
0ag
018

...-......-._l...-...l-._.

1€0c-T10<C sYyHig 1vd



78

PLANNING AREA 2
BERMONDSEY & ROTHERHITHE

Albion Primary School

Alfred Salter Primary School
Boutcher CE Primary School
Galleywall Primary School
Grange Primary School

lderton Primary School

John Keats Primary Free School
Peter Hills CE Primary School
Phoenix Primary School

Pilgrims Way Primary School
Redriff Primary School
Riverside Primary Schoo
Rotherhithe Primary School

St James CE Primary School

St Johns RC Primary School

St Josephs (George Row) RC Primary
St Joseph's (Gomm Roaa) RC Primary
Snowsfields Primary School

Southwark Park Primary School

Tower Bridge Primary School




79

PA2 — Bermondsey & Rotherhithe

Wards eLondon Bridge & West Bermondsey, North Bermondsey, Old Kent Road
covered (part), Rotherhithe, South Bermondsey, Surrey Docks
Primary PAN | Type Primary PAN  Type
Redriff | 60 | ACAD @ Southwark Park 60 | COMM
St Joseph's RC* 45 | ACAD @ Tower Bridge 30 | COMM
Rotherhithe 60 | ACAD | Riverside 45 | COMM
Albion 60 | COMM @ Galleywall 60 | FREE
Alfred Salter 60 | COMM | John Keats Primary 60 | FREE
Grange 60 | COMM | Boutcher CE 30 | VACE
llderton 30 | COMM | Peter Hills CE 30 | VACE
Phoenix 90 | COMM | St James CE 60 | VACE
Schools Pilgrims Way 30 | COMM | Stdosephis(GommRd) | 30 | VA RC
Snowsfields 30 | COMM | St Johns RC 30 | VARC
* St Joseph’s RC George Row
¢ 20 primary schools: 10 Community, 3 Academies (including 1 x VARC
Academy), 2 Free Schools, 3 VA CE, 2 VARC
¢ 8 x 1FE schools, 2 x 1.5FE school, 9 x 2FE schools, 1x 3FE school
e PA2 takes around 29% of all Southwark primary pupils (the highest in
Southwark) (28% of reception pupils) (also the highest in Southwark)
ePA2 provides around 29% of all Southwark primary places (29% of
reception places)
Capacity [e¢As at September 2024 — 960 reception places. 6,900 Years R to 6 places
e The GLA project there will be 190 reception vacancies in January 2026
(20%), and 1,376 R to 6 vacancies (20%). There is projected to be
GLA sufficient capacity to meet demand up until 2031 at reception and across
Projections | all year groups. Projections state reception demand will increase by 28
2024 places (1FE) (+4%), but R to 6 demand will fall by 550 pupils (-10%)
e There will be 162 (6FE) surplus reception places in September 2031,
based on GLA projections (17%), and 1,462 YR to 6 vacancies (22%)
Application e Since 2019, the number of applications for primary reception places in the
Trends planning area have fallen by 31%. First preferences have fallen by 35%,
and 15t to 3" preferences by 33%.
Chan ellderton Primary School has formally reduced its PAN from 60 to 30 in
- ges September 2023
since the P . -
last re ¢ St Joseph RC Primary (George Row) has academised — but no change to
POrt | paN
eBirths in PA2 from 2012-2022 have fallen by -23%. From 2023 to 2031,
births are projected to increase by +6% (+0.7% pa)
¢ In the London Bridge & West Bermondsey ward, births fell by -19% from
Births 2012 to 2021 and are projected to fall a further -10% by 2031; North
Bermondsey -46% and then +2%; Old Kent Road -50% and +53%;
Rotherhithe -22% and -5%, South Bermondsey -32% and -2%; Surrey
Docks +2% and +1%
Reception/ |eThere are presently around 221 spare reception places (8FE) across PA2
whole school | — 23% of all PA2 reception places - this is projected to decrease to 192
vacancies — | (7FE) by September 2031 (20%)
existing and |eThere are presently around 1,276 vacancies in PA2 across Years R to 6
projected (19%). By 2031, this will have increased to 1,642 (24%)
Keeping eReduction of PAN for Grange Primary School from 2FE to 1FE (net
Education reduction of 30 reception places and 210 primary places) agreed at
Strong Cabinet February 2024 for 2025/6 intake (this has already been
Actions/ undertaken)

Proposals




80

PA2 — Bermondsey & Rotherhithe

Pupil intake
by area

ePA2 is a net exporter of pupils, losing around 800 pupils across all age
groups (-20%)

e llderton (36%), Rotherhithe (28%), St Joseph’s Gomm Road RC (28%),
St John’s RC (22%, and Pilgrim’s Way (20%) take a significant proportion
of their intake from outside Southwark (mainly Lewisham)

¢ Pilgrim’s Way Primary, situated in PA2, takes a majority of its pupils from
PA3 (57%). Other PA2 schools — Phoenix and John Keats Primary take
20%, and 37% of their intake from PA3 (Peckham & Nunhead)
respectively

e Around 30% of pupils attending schools in this planning area come from
outside the planning area mainly from PA3 (8%) and PA1l (11%), with
around 635 pupils (10%) from outside Southwark (mainly Lewisham (8%))

e Conversely, 10% of PA2 resident children attending state schools attend
a school in another planning area (mainly PAl) or a school outside
Southwark (mainly Lewisham)

PA2 Schools pupil origin




81

ot
0t
162
ELP
£6¥
18]
it

#202-6T0Z 2Vd eieq 22uaiaja.id Asewiad

e0L
S0
LER
BES
s18
TZ0T

65T
9EL
EEE
Qof
685
£98
0ToT

BLT
4
ELE
LBY
609
BtE
ET0T

Q o3 e o4 i
AR IBBIL E
TN
£ Souasaiaid m
© 93U Jeald |

T @2tz a)4 R

0ot
002
00E
0o¥
00s

0oL

008

006

onot
00TT
00ZT
ODET
0oFT
00st
009t
O0LT
008t
0061
000z
00TE
0oze
0oEe
oote
00SE
0o09e
ooLe
ODBE



82

0199 | 0199 | OFS9 | 0459 | 0€99 | 0699 | 059 | O¥89 | 0069 0069 | 0969 | 0569 | OT89 | 0999 | 08¥9 | SIE9 | 00€9 | S¥P09 | 0S8S | 09/G | S89S | OT9S | 9995 | 0TSS | STES | OTES |Awede) e
6CTS | €80S 8L0S | 6CTS @ T9TS | 9SS | LSES | #9%S | BT9S | TLLS | 6WLS | 0€6S | L065 | 8609 @ TTO9 | BT6S | 6485 | 6695 | ¥ESS | 06ES | SE€TS | 9905 | T8BY | O6Lv | T6vv | 66v¥ 901y m—

€€0C | TEOC | TEOCZ | OEOC | 6COC | BCOZ | LEOT | 9TOC | STOZ | #COC | €TOC | TTOT | TCOZ | OCOZ | 6T0C  8IOZ | LT0Z @ 910 | STOC | #TI0C | €T0C @ TI0OC | T10C @ OTOC @ 600C
Pm2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2bﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2mﬁ>m:ﬁﬂ>m35ﬁ>m35~>m:ﬁﬁ>m:ﬁﬂ>m35ﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2bﬁ>m2mﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2hﬁ>m2mﬁ>m:5ﬁ>m:ﬁﬂ>m:ﬁﬁ>m35ﬂ>m:ﬁﬁ

- oovy
- 00S¥
009v

00LY

0087y

0067

000S

001s

00zs

00€S

0ovs

00SsS

009S

00LS
008S
006S
0009
0019
00co
00€9
00%9
0069
0099
0049
0089
0069
000L

(€€-9202) (pa4)
suonoaload pue (sz-8002) (2n/q) - sjjoy ‘Aydede) g9 031 Y Jed,) - Z eaay Suluue|d



83

0€6 0€6 0€6 0€6 0€6 0€6 0€6 0€6 096 096 066 066 066 | 0701 066 096 | 0SOT | 066 006 08 0.8 S8 S6L S6L S9L 08L
T6L 6LL B9L 8SL 6vL 6TL €8L ovL 174 098 88L oce L8 w6 LT6 L88 096 8E6 €L8 BI8 €98 €18 ¥SL 8L TOL S0L

€€0C | TEOC | T€0C | OEOC | 6COC | 8COC | L€OT | 920C | STOC | #COC | €C0C | TTOCZ | TZOC | OCOCZ | 6T0C | 8IOC | LTOZ | 910C | STOZ | 10T | €T0C | ¢CTOCZ | T10C | OTOC | 600C | BOOC
Aenuer Aenuer Aenuer Aenuer Arnuer Aenuer Aenuer Aenwer Aenwer Aenuer Aenuer Aenuer Arnuwer Arnuer Aenwer Aenuer Aenwer Aenuer Aenuer Aenuer Aenuer Arnwer Arnuer Arnuer Aenuer Arnuer

(€€-9207) (paJ)
suonaafoid pue (5z-8002) (an/q) - sjjoy ‘Andede) Y Jea), - Z easy 3uluueld

Apede’) e

o —

0.9
089
069
00£
0tL
0zL
0€EL
ovL
0SL
094
0LL
08L
06L
008
018
0z8
0es8
0v8
0S8
098
0.8
088
068
006
016
0ze
0€e6
ove
0s6
096
0L6
086
066
000T
0ToT
0zotT
0coT
ovoT
0S0T
090T



84

088 T4{B €98 [SB ES8B 6¥B  9¥8 SYB  SvEB  6C8 | I68 SSB  6E6  IPOT  HLOT EZTT SBOT  E60T  £ZTT OLTIT  651T s4yiag

CEOE TedZ OO HLOZ BZOZ LEZ0Z2 9€0C SCOf  #Z02 EE0C  €20f  TZ0€ OEZ0L  6T0C BIOE LTO0Z 910 STOE  PIOE ETOE  €10C

fieoe Jfogoe feroe feeoe fizog fozov fszoR freoz feeoe feeoe fizoe fozoz fetoR fRTOE fLT0F foroe fS10Z /vlOR fETOZ feioE /TTOE e

e L L L R T Y L -
cwesessrtt . 058
LR ®
uh
e Ll
T

006
(141
000t
0s0T
0otT

OSTT

00ZT

1€0¢-T10¢ sywig ¢vd



85

PLANNING AREA 3
PECKHAM & NUNHEAD

Angel Oak Primary Academy

Bellenden Primary School

Bird-in-Bush Primary School

Harris Peckham Park Primary Academy
Hollydale Primary School

lvydale Primary School

John Donne Primary School

Rye Oak Primary School

St Francis RC Primary School

St James The Great RC Primary School
St John's/Clements CE Primary School

St Mary Magdalene CE Primary School



86

PA3 — Peckham & Nunhead

Wards Covered

e Goose Green (part), Old Kent Road (part), Peckham, Peckham Rye,
Rye Lane (part)

Primary PAN  Type Primary PAN | Type
Angel Oak 60 | ACAD | Ivydale 90 [ COMM
HansPeckhamPk. | 30 [ ACAD | Rye Oak 60 | COMM
John Donne 60 | ACAD | StlohnsClemenisCE 60 |VACE
Bellenden 30 [ COMM | StMayMagdaeneCE | 30 [ VA CE
Bird-in-Bush 60 [ COMM | St Francis RC 30 | VARC
Schools Hollydale 30 | COMM | StlamesTheGreatRC | 30 | VA RC
¢ 12 primary schools: 5 Community, 3 Academies, 2 VA CE, 2 VARC
¢ 6 x 1FE schools, 5 x 2FE schools, 1 x 3FE school
o PAB’_lta)lkes around 18% of all Southwark primary pupils (17% of reception
upils
ogA% provides around 18% of all Southwark primary places (18% of
reception places)
Capacity ¢ As at September 2024 — 600 reception places, 4,395 Year R to 6 places
Application e Since 2019, the number of applications for primary reception places in
Trends the planning area have fallen by 20%. First preferences have fallen by

21%, and 1%t to 3" preferences by 23%.

Changes since
the last report

e Harris Primary Free School Peckham merged with Harris Peckham Park
(net reduction of 30 Year R and 390 Year R to 6 places)

e Camelot Primary School merged with Cobourg (PA1) on the Camelot
site, and renamed Bird-in-Bush Primary — no net reduction in PA3 places
resulted from this merger

Births

¢ Births in the PA decreased from 2012-2022 by -33%, and are projected
to slowly increase from 2023 to 2031 by +2% (+0.3% per annum)

¢In the Peckham ward, births decreased by -46% from 2012 to 2022, and
are projected to fall by a further -3% by 2031; in Peckham Rye ward, the
drop was -36%, to be followed by a further drop of -3%; in Rye Lane
ward, the figures were -36% and then an increase of +16%. In Old Kent
Road ward, the figures were -50% and +53%. In Goose Green ward, the
figures were -32% and +0.3%

Reception and
whole school
vacancies —
existing and
projected

e In September 2024, there are presently 164 spare reception places
(6FE) across PA3 - 27% of all reception places, and 1,058 Year R to 6
vacancies (24%). The GLA project 115 Year R vacancies in January
2026 (21%) as a result of capacity reduction, and 1,093 YR to Y6
vacancies (26%)

e The GLA also project 111 (4FE) reception vacancies in September 2031
(21%), and 1,045 YR to Y6 vacancies (27%) at the same time, if no
further work is undertaken to reduce capacity

Keeping
Education
Strong
Actions/Proposal

e St Francesca Cabrini RC Primary — proposed closure in September
2023 - (a net reduction of 30 reception places and 390 primary places)
(this has already been undertaken)

¢ St Francis RC Primary PAN Reduction 2FE to 1FE (net reduction of 30
reception places and 210 primary places) agreed by FGB in January
2024, implementing in 2025/26 (this has already been undertaken)

eHarris Free Peckham amalgamated with Harris Peckham Park on the
Peckham Park site — implemented in September 2023 (a net reduction
of 30 reception places and 390 YR to 6 places) (this has already been
undertaken)

e Overall reductions of 90 reception and 990 primary places so far

e St Mary Magdalene CE Primary —proposed closure - (net reduction of
30 reception places and 210 primary places) has not yet been
implemented but will be consulted on in 2024/25




87

PA3 — Peckham & Nunhead

Keeping
Education
Strong
Actions/Proposal

e Reduction of PAN at Ivydale from 90 to 60 and relocation to one site also
under consultation, Rye Oak Primary PAN Reduction 2FE to 1.5FE
proposed (under consideration)

GLA Projections
2024

e There is sufficient capacity to meet demand up until 2031 at reception
and across all year groups. GLA projections show that reception demand
will fall by 39 places (2FE) (-8%), and R to 6 demand will fall by 544
pupils — equivalent to a 2.5FE primary (-16%)

Pupil intake by
area

¢ PA3 is a net exporter of pupils, losing around 1,147 pupils across all age
groups, the equivalent of around three two form entry primaries. The net
import/export of pupils from within Southwark is a net loss of around
12%.

e Around 29% of pupils in this planning area come from outside the
planning area. Conversely, around 41% of PA3 resident children
attending state schools attend a school in another Southwark planning
area, or a school outside Southwark — about equally divided between
the two. 340 pupils in PA3 (9%) come from outside Southwark — 5% from
Lewisham, and 1% each from Croydon and Bromley

¢St John’s & St Clements CE takes 45% of pupils from outside PA3
(mainly PAs 4 and 5), St James the Great RC (43%), Bellenden (35%)
and St Francis RC (34%) take pupils from outside their planning area, in
most cases mainly from PA4 (Camberwell)

e Hollydale (15%), St John’s & St Clements CE (13%), Bellenden (12%),
and St Francis RC (12%) all take higher than average outborough rolls
e Conversely, Pilgrims Way (57%) and John Keats Free (37%) in PA2, the
Belham Primary Free School (68%), St George’s CE Primary (26%) and
Oliver Goldsmith (49%) all in PA4 take a substantial number of their

pupils from PA3.

PA3 Schools Pupil Origins

2
3%

5%




88

86E
|
a5l
GEl
66
of
FTot

BLE
L¥T
181
Fal
Zel
]
ETOT

61F
S9Z
90¢
9<T
BET
L0T
froe

Ty
T6E
[$4
6%T
EET
£0T
[Zot

Sov
Sve
661
9E£T
611

{8

0T 0T

S0S
8ai
60¢
{ST
(A8}
£0T

6102

tZ-6T0T SIUId)a.d Aewiid €Vd

T2ouaiajeidm
7 @Jualajaid |
£ 3sjuasajaid
FEBIICICTETRY |
Galualajaldm
g @aualajaid m

0

oot

00z

00g

00¥

0os

009

0oL

=

08

006

ooot

001t

00zt

00ET

0ovt



89

08L€ = 08LE O¥8E 006€ 066E | 080F OLI¥ 09Ty G6EY = 0ESt | 0CZS | OIES  WiPS  6YSS | ¥89S  G6SS  0SSS | 06vS  09¢S | 00vS  Audoede)ems
808C | ¢6/T | S6LC  618C | L/[BT | ¥SbC & 990¢  [9T1€  LE€EE€ & ¢€ePE | [C9E @ 8GBE 9GOV | GCev 98SY  8Wv  TE8Y  CEBY | 89V  TOLV 90} Y

€€0T [43114 1€0¢ 0€0¢ 620¢C 820¢ L20T 9z0t czoz vzot €20 ¢eoe 1202 0zoc 610C 810¢C LT0T 910t S10T 102
Aenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Aszenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer

. . . - - 002
008t

- 006T
000¢€

00TE

00ce

00ce

00vE

00s¢€

009¢€

00L¢E

008¢

006¢€

00v

o

00TY
0o0cy
00ey
oovy
00Sv
0097
00LY
0087y
006¥
000S
001S
00zs
00€Ss
00vs
00sS
009S
00LS

(€€-9202) (pa4) suondafoid
pue (sz-v102) (an1q) - siioy ‘(ajdand) Ayoede) 9 03 y Jea, - € ealy Suluueld



90

ors ors ors ors ors ors ors 1149 009 009 099 069 0SL 0SL 0r8 018 018 0SL 08L czg  Apoede) e
8E¥ vey 6Cv v 1144 484 SEV 15744 9ev (444 S6v 189 oS 6S 609 L19 0TL 669 9L 082 - B=3

€€0C ce0e 1€0C 0€0t 620T 820¢ L20T 970t czoe veoe €20t [a4dira 10T 0oz 610C 810C LT0T 910t c10t v10C
Aenuer Azenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer

. 00v
TREREREENRE .
147

o

134

0S

S

149

0 O O O o O O

09¢S

(=]

8S
09

o

029
09
099
089
00L
0cL
ovL
094
08L
008
0z8
o8
098

(€€-920¢) (pa4) suondafoid
pue (sz-v10z) (an]q) - s|joy ‘(ajdind) Aydede) y Jeap - € ealy Suluueld



91

8L BLL 94L  9Lf L8 eiL 0BL 08BL 08BL 9L o66L  T1BL  f98 EGE  PS6  BL6 9Z0T  LBOT 1TBOT T91T @ €611 sying

7EOT TE0Z 0£0Z 6ZOZ 8707 [TO? 9707 SZ0Z +207 €207 ZZOZ TIZOZ OZOT 6107 8107 LI0Z 9I0Z SIOF +107 €107 21O
JIE0T JOEOT feTOT /BTOZ [LTOT fe9TOf fSEOT /vE0T fETOZ /70T /1zor fozoT /el0T /f8T0Z fLTI0Z /910T /STOT /v10Z fETOZ JfETOT fITOT

Ty T R R AR R R L T T T ¥ T e ree—— .

1€0¢-T10¢ SyHig €evd

05
SiL
008
S8
058
Si8
006
56
056
Si6
000T
SToT
0507
SL0T
00TT
SZTT
0STT
SLTT
0071



92

PLANNING AREA 4
CAMBERWELL

Bessemer Grange Primary School
Brunswick Park Primary School
Crawford Primary School

Dog Kennel Hill Primary School
John Ruskin Primary School
Lyndhurst Primary School

Oliver Goldsmith Primary School

St Georges CE Primary School

St Joseph's Camberwell RC Infants
St Joseph's Camberwell RC Junior School
The Belham Primary School



93

PA4 — Camberwell

Wards

Camberwell Green, Champion Hill, Rye Lane (part), St Giles

Schools

Primary PN Type Primary PN Type

Lyndhurst 60 | ACAD | John Ruskin 60 [ COMM

Dog Kennel Hill 60 | ACAD | Oliver Goldsmith 60 [ COMM

Bessemer Grange | 90 | COMM | Belham 60 | FREE

Brunswick Park 60 | COMM | St Georges CE 30 | VACE

Crawford 60 [ COMM | StJoseph's Infants RC 60 | VARC

St Joseph's Junior RC 60 | VARC

11 primary schools: 5 Community, 2 Academies, 1 Free School, 1 VA
CE, 1 VA RC Infant and 1 VA RC Junior

e 1 x 1FE schools, 9 x 2FE schools, 1 x 3FE school

PA4 takes around 17% of all Southwark primary pupils (17% reception
pupils)

PA4 provides around 18% of all Southwark primary places (17% of
reception places)

Capacity

As at September 2024 — there were 570 reception places, and 4,215 Year
R to 6 places

Application
Trends

Since 2019, the number of preferences expressed for primary reception
places in the planning area have fallen by 603 (35%). First preferences
have fallen by 252 (41%), and 15t to 3" preferences by 431 (34%)

Changes
since the
last report

e Comber Grove Primary closed in September 2024
e Bessemer Grange will reduce its PAN from 90 to 60 in September 2025

Births

Births in the area have decreased -34% from 2012 to 2022. From 2023
to 2031, births are projected to increase by +3% (+0.3% per annum)

In the wards that make up the planning area, Camberwell Green births
reduced by -27% from 2012-22, but are projected to increase by +4%
from 2023-31. Champion Hill ward reduced by -41% from 2012-22 and
is projected to increase by +6% by 2031. St Giles ward births decreased
by -40% from 2012 to 2022 and will decrease further by -4% from 2023
to 2031. in Rye Lane ward, the figures were a -36% drop and then an
increase of +16% by 2031

Reception
and whole
school
vacancies —
existing and
projected

There are presently around 140 (5FE) spare places (25%) at reception
this year, with a gradual projected decrease of demand thereafter. Whole
school vacancy levels equate to 772 (18%). For January 2026, the GLA
project 110 reception vacancies (20%), and 837 YR-6 vacancies (20%)
In January 2031, the GLA also project 118 vacancies (4FE)(22%) and
1,010 YR to Y6 (27%)) if no further action is taken

Year R capacity is scheduled to reduce by 30 (1FE) to 540 if no further
action is taken - R to 6 capacity will reduce by 405 (10%) places by 2031

Keeping
Education
Strong
Actions/
Proposals

Bessemer Grange Primary - PAN Reduction 3FE to 2FE (Net reduction
of reception by 30 and primary roll by 210) agreed by Cabinet
implementing in 2025/26 (this has already been undertaken)

Comber Grove Primary — closure (net reduction of 30 and primary roll by
240) was agreed by Cabinet in July 2024 for September 2024 (this has
already been undertaken)

PAN reduction at Crawford Primary school from 60 to 30 in 2026/27
under consultation (Net reduction of reception by 30 and primary roll by
210)

Overall reduction of 60 reception and 450 primary places so far

GLA
Projections
2024

There is sufficient capacity to meet demand up until 2031 at reception
and Years R to 6. GLA projections show that reception demand will fall
by 2 pupils (1FE) (-0.2%), and capacity will remain the same, and R to 6
demand will fall by 528 pupils (-16%)




94

PA4 — Camberwell

Pupil intake
by area

PA4 is a net importer of pupils, gaining around 195 pupils across all age
groups, the equivalent of just under a one-form entry primary.

Around 49% of pupils in this planning area come from outside the
planning area, mainly from within Southwark (this is the highest
percentage in Southwark). Around 11% of the PA4 roll come from
outside Southwark, 7% from Lambeth and 1% each from Lewisham and
Croydon

Crawford (24%), Bessemer Grange (22%), St Joseph’s Junior (19%),
and St Joseph’s Infants (16%) take a higher than average percentage of
outborough pupils — mainly from Lambeth

Conversely, around 25% of PA4 resident children attending state schools
attend a school mainly from within another Southwark planning area.
Goose Green and St Anthony’s RC Primary in PA5 both take around a
quarter of its pupils from PA4

Of schools in PA4 taking pupils from other planning areas, the Belham
Primary Free School accommodates 79% of its pupils from outside PA4,
as do John Ruskin Primary (76%), St George’s CE (54%) and Oliver
Goldsmith primaries (66%)

PA4 Schools Pupil Origins




95

SOt
CBE
BLT
SPT
0T
L9

20z

SEb
8LE
852
0Lt
611
SL
EZ0E

EL¥
[
EET
5]
FIl
&9
ZZ0F

SIS
21c
9LZ
00¢
1A}
06
TZ0Z

S9s
L¥E
8se
61
CEl
911

0Z0Z

L19
8GE
r8e
661
1T
SOt
6102

F==IIETETENNY |
P SIEIETERE] |
£ ajualajald |
ERITETETENR] |
== RTEIETERRY |

CERIEIETENE] |

0
001
00¢
00€
00%
00s
009
00L
008
006
0001
0011
00¢T
O0ET
00t
00sT
0091
00LT
0081

S¢/vT0Z-02/610T SaduUai9jaid Atewnid yvd



96

08LE  08LE | 0T8E  OFBE 006€ 096€ 0TOv OTIvY GTcv O0ESy 0T9v 089v 089y OTLv | OTLv | 0C9% | G8b¥ | S6EV | 09¢v | Svev  Auoede) 90} Yemms
T4LC | €LLT  008C @ L€BC 868C @ 666C ¥CIE €/LCE EvPE  LV¥OE  G6O9E | [9LE | LT6E | €€V SLIV  LB8I¥V 69T¥F STIV CS6E | CC6E 1I0Y 9 O] Y .

€€0C TE0T 1€0T 0£0T 6COC 8COT LTOT @ 970CT STtoC  ¥eoOT  €C0C | Teoc | Teoe | 0ToOC | e6TI0C | 8T0C | LTI0TZ | 910C | ST0C | viOT
Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Adenuer Auenuer

. - 002
- - - 008¢
006¢C

000¢€

00T€E

0o0ze

00€e€

oove

00s¢€

009¢

00L€

008¢

006¢€

o

00V
00TV
ooty
00EY
ooy
00Sv
009v
00Lv
008v

(€€-9202) (pa)
suonaafoid pue (SZ-#10Z) (2n/q) - sjjoy ‘Andede) g 01 Y Jea, - ¢ ealy 3uluueld



97

ors ors ors ors ors ors ors ors 0LS 009 0€9 0c9 0€9 0e9 069 069 069 069 009 099
9cvy v [44 4 oty oty €Iv 9cvy oy oev 6LY 08t 66¥ 616 €96 LLS €09 €¢9 979 LS 6C9

£€€0C ¢e0c T€0C 0€0¢ 620 820t L20T 970t czoe veoc €20t ceoe 120t 0cot 610C 810¢C LT0T 910¢ S10¢ v10c
Aenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Auenuer Auenuer Adenuer

(€€-9202) (pa)
suonaafoid pue (Sz-¥102) (an/q) - s|joy ‘Audede) Y Jed, -  ealy Suluueld

Anede) Yo

[10Y Y m—

0oV
]84
[4Y
134
1474
S
o
LY
34
6v
00Ss
ots
0zs
0€s
149
SS
09S
0LS
08¢
06S
009
019
0c9
0€9
or9
0s9
099
0£9
089
069
00L

0 0 0O 0 0 0 O O O

(= -]



98

8LS 9LS 9LS LLS 8LS 8LS 6LS 8LS 8LS €9§ CLS StS 1595 £99 9TL 8tL TSL TLL 9L 9€8 €58

[43 1€ 0¢ 6¢ 8¢ Lz 9¢ St 144 €C [44 1T 0t 6T 8T LT 91 ST 148 €T [48
0Z/1€0Z02/0€02 02/620202/820T 0Z/L20T 02/920T0T/ST0T 0Z/¥T0T 02/€20T 0Z/720202/T20Z 02/020T 02/6T0Z0T/8T0T 02/L10T 02/9T0Z 0Z/S5T0T0Z/¥10T 0Z/€T0Z 02/2T020Z/T10T

.
SRt sessssevnssssssssnnnsnssaasann®

1€0¢-T10< sYyMig vvd

syuig

1139
ovs
0sS
09s
0LS
08¢
068
009
019
029
0€9
0v9
0s9
099
049
089
069
00L
01L
0zL
0eL
ovL
0SL
09L
0LL
08L
06L
008
018
0z8
0e8
0v8
0S8
098



99

PLANNING AREA 5
DULWICH

Dulwich Hamlet Junior School

Dulwich Wood Primary School

Dulwich Village CE Infants School
Goodrich Primary School

Goose Green Primary School

Harris Primary Free School East Dulwich
Heber Primary School

Judith Kerr Primary Free School

St Anthony's RC Primary School



100

PAS5 — Dulwich

Wards

e Dulwich Hill, Dulwich Village, Dulwich Wood, Goose Green (part)

Schools

Primary PAN Type @ Primary PAN
Dulwich Hamlet Juniors 90 | ACAD | Heber 60

Type
COMM

Goose Green 60 | ACAD | Judith Kerr Free 56 FREE

St Anthony's RC 60 | ACAD | Harris Free East Dulwich 60 [ FREE

Goodrich 90 [ COMM | Dulwich Village Infants CE 90 |[VACE

Dulwich Wood Primary | 60 | COMM

¢9 primary schools: 3 Community, 3 Academies (including 1 RC Academy,
and 1 Junior Academy), 2 Free Schools, 1 VA CE Infant

¢1 x 1.8FE school, 4 x 2FE schools, 1 x 3FE school, 1 x 3FE Infants, 1 x 3FE
Junior

¢ PA5 takes around 17% of all Southwark primary pupils (19% of reception
pupils)

¢ PA5 provides around 15% of all Southwark primary places (16% of reception
places)

Capacity

e As at September 2024 — 536 reception places, 3,746 Year R to 6 places

Application
Trends

e Since 2019, the number of preferences for primary reception applications in
the planning area have fallen by 306 (15%). First preferences have fallen by
64 (11%), and 15t to 3" preferences by 217 (15%)

Changes
since the
last report

¢ No substantive changes to the provision or projections for PA5 (Dulwich) are
noted. St Anthony’s RC Primary has academised

Births

¢ Births in the planning area decreased -38% from 2012-22, and are projected
to increase by +0.4% from 2023-31. Conversely, pupil numbers increased by
+23% from 2012-23, and reception numbers by +18%

eIn the wards that make up this planning area, Dulwich Hill’s births have
decreased by -37% from 2012-22, and are forecast to reduce a further -2%
from 2023-31; Dulwich Village — a -42% decrease 2012-22, and a +2%
increase 2021-31; Dulwich Wood a -42% decrease 2012-22, and a further
-2% decrease from 2023-31; Goose Green, a -32% decrease 2012-22, and
a +0.3% increase from 2023-31

e In this locality birth figures are not a reliable indicator of demand, and the
percentage of Dulwich resident parents attending Dulwich schools is
reducing; schools recruit from further afield on an annual basis, both from
inside and outside Southwark

Reception
and whole
school
vacancies —
existing and
projected

e There are presently around 79 spare reception places (3FE) across PAS5,
14% of all reception places, and 531 YR to 6 vacancies (15%). 84 reception
vacancies are projected for January 2026 (16%) and 548 whole school
vacancies (15%)

By 2031, the GLA project 52 vacancies at reception (10%) and 524 YR-6
vacancies (15%)

GLA
Projections
2024

e There is sufficient capacity to meet demand up until 2031 at reception and
across all year groups. Projections show that reception demand has peaked
and will fall by 3 pupils (1%) by the end of the decade. Capacity at reception
will fall by 30 places by 2026 onwards (6% less), and whilst Years R to 6
demand will fall by around 167 pupils (6% less), R to 6 capacity will fall by
174 (5% less), if no further actions are taken

Keeping
Education
Proposals

eThe KES proposals for PA5 were that Goose Green Primary School be
requested to reduce their PAN from 60 to 30, due to historically low take up.
The MAT (Nexus) decided not to action this recommendation.

Pupil intake
by area

¢ PA5 is a net importer of pupils, gaining around 600 pupils across all age
groups

¢ Judith Kerr (42%), Dulwich Wood (31%), Dulwich Village Infants CE (20%),
St Anthony’s RC (18%), and Dulwich Hamlet Juniors (17%) take a significant
percentage of pupils from outside Southwark (mainly Lewisham and
Lambeth)




101

PA5 — Dulwich

Pupil intake
by area
(continued)

e Conversely, Bessemer Grange Primary (31%) and Dog Kennel Hill (38%)
both in PA4 have a significant intake of pupils from PA5

¢ Schools in the Dulwich planning area remain popular with applicants from
adjoining planning areas and other LAs — this is evidenced by the drop in
births outlined above, but an increase in demand for reception places.
There is a risk that provision of additional capacity in this area could be
abstractive of other planning areas and schools from neighbouring
boroughs, rather than meet demand from local residents — indeed, it may
actually reduce the percentage of local children attending schools in
Dulwich instead

e Around 33% of pupils in this planning area come from outside the planning
area - PA3 (9%) and PA4 (7%). This also includes 16% outborough (the
highest PA — Lambeth (9%), Lambeth (4%), and 1% each for Bromley and
Croydon

e The net percentage inflow of Southwark children from other planning areas
is (+13%)

e Conversely, around 19% of PAS5 resident children attend state primary
schools attend a school in another Southwark planning area PAs 3 and 4,
or a school outside Southwark

e There is a concentration of private schools in this locality in Southwark. Of
the pupils attending private primary schools in Southwark, 92% of these
were attending schools situated in PAS5. But only a small percentage are
Southwark residents

PAS Schools - pupil origins

1
T 0%




102

0os
96t
£PE
8EL
FLT
SET
frdira

£FS
ELE
P1E
vid
191
2zt
£L0E

£4s
9%
69E
09
FaT
Tat

ZL0E

gag
a9t
£6E
S8
Zne
gst

T£0Z

g88¢%
Liv
£0r
BEL
it
A

0Z0g

G/v202-02/61T0¢C S@2uaiadjaid Alewlld Svd

ras
6%
Sor
SLE
91z
ST

6T0E

[ 2JUa13)ald @
7 @uaiajald m
£ 20U253)34d
pauyd m
G auaIMaId |
LESTIETETETRE

oo

o1
g
[1]3
ov
0s
09
0L
08
06
0001
00Tt
oozt
00eT
00FT
00ST
0091
00LT
0081
0061
000€
ootz
00zz

oo Qoo Q



103

[4 2% [4 473 CLSE ¢09¢ ¢99€  769¢ ciLE ¢SLE 9vLE ovLE = vELE | 8TLE ceLe 969¢ 04S€ otgse 0Ire  G8CE 0€TE G667  Auoede) e
Vo€ evoe 8¥0€ @ [90¢€ S60€ @ 8TIE SVIE roce STCE €T¢e | LETE @ L8CE 69C¢ S/C¢E eIt I81€ TITE  8t0¢ €68 96/¢T 901 Y .

€€0C ce0e T€0T 0€0¢ 620TC 820¢ L20T 970t czoc veoc £€20T ceoc 1202 0zgoz 6T0C 810¢ LT0T 910¢ S10T ¥10¢
Aenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Azenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer

00LT
g
0SLT
SLLT
008t
§Z8T
068¢
SL8T
006T
7414
086¢C
SL6T
000¢€
GC0¢E
0S0€
SLOE
00tE
GCIE
0STE
GL1IE

00ze
Geie
0sce
SLT¢E
00€€
Gzee
osee
GLEE
00vE
Stre
11943
SLvE
00S€
4%
0Ss¢e
GLS€E
009¢€
Ge9¢
069¢€
SL9€
00L€
STLE
0GLE
SLLE

(T1€-9202) (pa4) suondalo.d
pue (sz-v102) (an/q) - sijoy ‘(3jdind) Aydede) g 01 Y Jed, - § ealy Suluueld




104

90S 90S 906 90S 908 90S 90S 9€s 9€s 9¢s 9€s 9€s 9€Ss 9€s 0€s 0€s 0€s 0es 0€s 0Ly Auoede) s

a4 [49 4 1274 LSY 8sv vy 8ty (494 LSV 9LV L8V [411% 06¥ 01s SLY ¥0S 98v 6% Sev (334

€€0C | CE0T @ T1€0C 0EOC 6C0C @ 8TOCT | LTOT | 9z0T  Stoc | veoOZ | €20T  CeO0T | 1C0C | 0C0T  610C 810 | LTI0T  910T @ ST0CT @ t10C
Aenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer

(aydand) Ayidedes jsuiede (££-9z0¢) (pad)
suonaafoid pue (Sz-#102) (an/q) - sjjoy ‘Andede) y Jed) - g ealy Suluueld

14 4

(=]
™M

14
44

(=2

144

vy

144

(=
['p]

v
St

Qo un

o

['a)

9

o

LY
LY

(=2 el

8

)

14
o6¥
S6v
00§
Sos
018
189
0cs
14
0€s
SES
ovs

==



105

chr  O¥r  6EY OvF vk SPP  L¥P  OFF ISP OFF  TEF 9GP TES  S65  LE9  LE9 869  BS9  TL9 €99 189 sylg

CEDT  TEOZ OE0Z 6Z07 8EO0Z  [EZ0Z 9Z0f GZOT $ZOZ €Z0f IZ0Z TZ0Z OZ0Z 6IOZ BTO0Z L10Z OT0Z SIOE #10Z | €10 7102

f1€0T f0E0T feTOT /RTOT /LTOT /90T /STOT fvToOT feToT /eToT /teof fotoT /etT0T /BTOT /LTOT f9tT0T fSTOT /¥T0T [ETOT /ZTOT /IT0R i

¥ (174

& OEr
ok
oSk
0or
oiy
(117
o6t
00s
018
075
0£S
ors
(113
095
oS
o8s
065
0049
014
079
0£9
o
054
099
09
0249
069

1€0¢-T10¢ syMig Svd



Section 9 — Primary Cross Border flows into and out of Southwark — 2023-24 (latest figures)
Pupils in Southwark attending primary schools in other LAs/pupils from other LAs attending Southwark schools

: Percentage
Pupils from other o

LAs attending
borough
Southwark pupils in

Schools Southwark

Pupils from
Southwark

Percentage of
Southwark
Out borough pupils

Net +/-
attending other flow

LA’s schools

Lambeth 837 49% 861 35% +24
Lewisham 605 35% 1,069 43% +464
Westminster 108 6% 5 0.2% -103
Greenwich 28 2% 78 3% +50
Croydon 26 2% 157 6% 131
Bromley 20 1% 75 3% +55
Wandsworth 15 1% 22 1% +7
Camden 7 0.4% 4 0.2% -3
RBKC 7 0.4% 1 0.04% -6
Tower Hamlets 12 1% 15 1% +3
Newham 4 0.2% 42 2% +38
Bexley 4 0.2% 25 1% +21
Redbridge 1 0.1% 6 0.2% +5
Merton 3 0.2% 20 1% +17
Other London LAs 29 2% 43 2% +14
Kent & Medway 2 0.1% 19 1% +17
Other non-London LAS 2 0.1% 4 0.2% +2
Surrey 2 0.1% 13 1% +11
All Cross borough 1,708 100% 2,459 100% +751

90T



480
460
440
420
400
380
360
340
320
300
280
260
240
220
200
180
160
140
120

W +/- flow

Lewisham Croydon Bromley Greenwich Newham Lambeth

464

Primary Cross Border Flows 2023-24

131

55

50

38

24

Bexley

21

Merton

17

Kent &
Medway

17

Other
London
LAs

14

Other
Wandswor < Tower non-
AUy th Rednridge Hamlets London
LAs
11 7 =) 3 2

Camden = RBKC Wesz:' S

-3 -6 -103

L0T



Section 10 — Preferences by Sector for Primary Reception Places

Table 16 — Preference per Primary place by school type

% Applicant preferences by school type September 2024 % Applicant First preferences by school type September 2024

Free Schools
13%

Community
41%

Community

Academies 40%

25%

Academies
26%

Foundation
1%

“_Foundation
1%

80T



Table 17 — Preference per Primary place by school type

Reception Preference by school type 2018-24

34

32

3

28

16

24

22

2

18

1l&

14

12

1

0.8

0.6

0.4

02

1]
CDI‘I‘In‘IL.Ir‘Ii.",‘ VACE VARC Free ﬂu:ar.ha-mw.I Foundation All

m 2018

m 2019 25 28 18 3 23 21 24
m 2020 25 26 18 3 2 31 25
m 2021 26 25 18 34 2 3.2 24
m 2022 21 24 18 35 27 15 23
m 2023 2 23 14 25 23 15 21

m 2024 2 23 16 32 23 16 22



SECTION 1l1a - Primary vacancies by school type — at reception

Reception Vacancies by School Sector-2016/17to 2023/24

40%
38%
36%
34%
32%
30%
28%
26%
24%
22
20
18
16
14
12
10

8
4
2

All Schools Community Foundation Academies Free Schools WARC VACE

W 2016/17 12% 14% 20% 4% 6% 13% 10%
m 2017/18 11% 13% 3% 7% S 17% 14%
H 2018/19 19% 21% 17% 11% 17% 19% 20%
2015/20 14% 13% 10% 5% 20% 18% 21%
W 2020/21 19% 20% &% 17% 17% 18% 18%
W 2021/22 19% 20% 33% 11% 11% 23% 23%
m2022/23 22% 25% 32% 11% 5% 29% 29%
W 2023/24 19% 17% 183% 14% 11% 33% 33%

FFERFEFEEEEAEFEHRSE

0oTtT




SECTION 11b — OVERALL VACANCY RATES BY TYPE OF PRIMARY SCHOOL — WHOLE SCHOOL VACANCIES
Table 18 Percentage vacancy levels by school type — whole school (Years R to 6)

Whole School Vacancies by School Sector-2016/17 to 2023/24

40%
38%
36%
34%
32%
30%
28%
26%
24%
22%
20%
18
16
14
12
10

0% I

&
4
2

All Schools Community Foundation Academies Free Schools VARC WACE

W 2016/17 9% 10% 13% 8% 4% 10% 9%
m 2017/18 11% 11% 13% 8% 11% 13% 10%
W 2018/19 14% 15% 16% 3 11% 14% 14%
2019/20 15% 17% 20% 3% I 17% 17%
W 2020/21 17% 13% 20% 10% 10% 13% 13%
W 2021/22 21% 19% 37% 11% 11% 21% 20%
m2022/23 22% 23% 36% 28%% 14% 23% 16%
W 2023/24 23% 19% 32% 19% 14% 19% 18%

E - -

- -

11




SECTION 12 - AGREED PAN REDUCTIONS AND CLOSURES FROM SEPTEMBER 2019 TO SEPTEMBER 2025
Table 19 School PAN reductions by school, by planning area — PANs reduced from September 2019 unless otherwise noted

Primary School

Previous PAN

Agreed PAN
0

Reduction

AN

t George’'s Cathedral R 60| 3 -30

Cobourg 302 0 £ (closed) 607 2
Charlotte Sharman 60 30 -30
English Martyrs RC 600 300 -300
Keyworth Q0 60 -30
Townsend £ 30 2 0L (closed) -30

St John'’s WalworthI 301 OI (closed) -301
Robert Browning 60 30 -30
Phoenix® 1207 Q0% -30%
lIderton® 600 300 -300

Grange * 60 * 30 * -30 *

St Francis RC 60 * 30 * -30 *
Hollydale 45 30 -15
Bellenden 60 30 -30
Camelot (now Bird-in-Bush) ]7250 88 -:138

Ivydale o0 * 60 * .30 *

Harris Primary Free Peckham ggll 0% ?ccl)glsed) -éggx
Harris Peckham Park? 60i - 307 -307
St Francesca Cabrini RCT* %(0)1‘ 0 (§I&sed) -::33%%

Bessemer Grange Q0 * 60 * -30 *
Brunswick Park 75 60 -15
Comber Grove 3‘(1')59 38 -EB]OSQ

Dog Kennel Hill® 88: 28: _;_%%':
Q0 60 -30

Crowford 60 »* 30 »* _30 *

Total agreed 1,410 (47FE) 810 (27FE) -600 (20FE)
*PAN reduction agreed from September 2020 onwards TPAN reduction agreed from September 2021 onwards

y PAN reduction agreed from September 2022 onwards *PAN reduction proposed from September 2025 onwards
Closure of school agreed from September 2021 £ School closed in September 2023 Q School closed in September 2024
&% 1PAN reduction agreed from September 2023 onwards, then reversed from September 2025 by MAT

¢ PAN reduction agreed from September 2023 onwards



113

SECTION 13

SECONDARY SUMMARY

List of schools

Map of schools

Narrative

Rolls and Projections for YR and YR to 6
Preferences

Cross Border flows



114

PLANNING AREA 6
SECONDARY

RK All Saints Academy

RK Globe Academy (Secondary)

RK Walworth Academy

acon's College

narter Bermondsey

narter School East Dulwich

narter School North Dulwich

City of London Academy Southwark
Haberbdashers’ Aske’s Borough Academy
Harris Academy Bermondsey

Harris Academy Peckham

Harris Boys' Academy East Dulwich
Harris Girls' Academy East Dulwich
Kingsdale Foundation School

Notre Dame Roman Catholic Girls' School
Sacred Heart Roman Catholic Secondary
St Michael's Catholic College

St Saviour's and St Olave's C of E School
South Bank University Academy

The St Thomas the Apostle College

OO0O0OT>>>




Map of secondary schools in Southwark

Key The schools
B acadernies KN ARK All Saints Acaderny
B Chusch of England E ARK Giobe Acadermy
W Cathodic E Bacon’s College
Bl Free school acadenmsy EX The Charter School Bermondsey
(tormerty Compass School Southwark) B
EE Haberdashers' Aske’s Borough Academy SRy A "-":
A Harris Acadermy Bermondsey & a
Bl Harris Academy Peckham f

X Harris Boys' Academy East Dubwich e | 16/
Bl Harris Girls’ Academy East Dubwich
[ Kingsdale Foundation Schoal

E Motre Darme RC Girls' Schaal

8 sacred Heart Cathalic Schoal

B South Bank University Academy

& 5t Michaels Catholic College

B8 5t Saviouwr's and St Olave’s School
8 5t Thomas the Apostie College

[ The Charter School East Duhwich

[ The Charter School (Morth Dutwich)
& The City of London Academy (Southwark) e
E Wahworth Academy

Q11



Wards

116

PA6 — Southwark Secondary Schools

Camberwell Green, Chaucer, Rotherhithe, Champion Hill, South Bermondsey, North
Bermondsey, Rye Lane, Dulwich Hill, Peckham Rye, Dulwich Wood, St George’s,
Chaucer, Nunhead & Queen's Road, Faraday, Goose Green, Borough & Bankside

Provision

School PAN Type School PAN Type

ARK All Saints 120 ACAD Charter North Dulwich 192 ACAD

Harris Boys' ED 150 ACAD City of London Academy 240 ACAD

Harris Bermondsey 180 ACAD Kingsdale Foundation 420 ACAD

St Michael's College 150 ACAD Notre Dame RC Girls' 124 ACAD

Harris Peckham 120 ACAD Charter East Dulwich 240 FREE

Haurris Girls' ED 150 ACAD Haberbdashers Borough 180 FREE

Sacred Heart RC 120 ACAD South Bank Academy 150 FREE

ARK Globe Academy 180 ACAD Charter Bermondsey 120 FREE

ARK Walworth 180 ACAD The St Thomas the Apostle 152 | VARC

Bacon's College 180 ACAD St Saviour's & St Olave's 124 | VACE

¢20 secondary schools: 1 x VA CE, 1 x VA RC, 4 x Free Schools, 14 x
Academies (including 1 x “All Through” 4-18 Academy, 3 x RC Academies)
e3 X 4FE, 3 x4.1FE, 4 X 5FE, 1 x 5.1FE, 6 x 6FE, 1 x 6.4FE, 1 x 8FE, 1 x 14FE

Capacity

e As at September 2024 — 3,527 Y7 places, 17,570 Year 7 to 11 places

GLA
Projections
2024

e There is sufficient capacity to meet demand up until at least 2031

eThe GLA project 2,917 Y7 pupils for January 2026 (190 less than this year
(7FE — 6%), and 158 less Y7-11 pupils (1% less). This would leave 550 Y7
places (16%),and 1,884 Y7-11 (11%) places vacant in January 2026

e There will be 798 surplus Y7 places in September 2031, based on expected
demand (24%), in line with decreased primary rolls.

eYears 7-11 vacancies are projected to 2,060 in 2031 (from 1,746 this year) —
12% of places (from 10% this year)

eLonger term projections show that Y7 pupil numbers will begin to (slowly)
increase again from 2034/35 onwards, matching a slow projected increase in
primary numbers in some localities from 2027/28. Whole school secondary
numbers are not expected to recover before 2038/39, and perhaps not even
then.

Changes
since the
last report

¢ No substantive changes for secondary are noted and capacity is not projected
to be exceeded by demand for the foreseeable future

Y6 figures

¢ Y6 pupil figures in Southwark increased by +26% from 2012-19 (685 pupils),
but have fallen from 2019-24 by 409 pupils (-12%) and are projected to reduce
further by 612 pupils (-21%) by 2031

e Using previous and projected Y6 figures as a proxy for future demand is
guestionable, as there is a considerable influx of non-Southwark pupils in Y7
(ca 30% against an estimated 8% for primary pupils), and the proportion of
non-Southwark secondary pupils increases annually

Y7
vacancies

eln 2024/25, there were 430 spare Y7 places (15FE) across the secondary
estate - 12% of all Y7 places - above accepted guidelines for vacancy levels

Y7-11
vacancies

e In 2024/25, across all secondary schools, there were 1,746 empty places from
years 7 to 11 — 10% of Southwark’s secondary capacity - within accepted
guidelines for vacancies

Pupil
intake by
area

e Southwark is a net importer of secondary pupils, taking around 30% of rolls
across all age groups; Kingsdale and Harris Boys ED both take a significant
percentage of pupils from outside Southwark.

¢ 4,200 secondary pupils in Southwark are outborough based

¢ 88% of these pupils come from four councils (Lambeth, Lewisham, Croydon
and Bromley), totaling 3,725 pupils

eThe net percentage inflow of Southwark children to and from other local
authority areas is +10%, as Southwark exports 20% of secondary age pupils
to other councils (mainly Lambeth, Lewisham and Westminster)




117

SEL9T | SEL9T | SEL9T | SSB89T | SZ69T | SOTLT | O€ELT | $#PSLT | 09SLT | 08SLT | OTSLT | SLELT | 800LT | 9¥991 | 66091 | CT
TLIPT | OEPPT | BEOPT | S6LPT | T8BPT | LL6VT | COCST | TSPST | 949ST | ¥#€BST | TOTOT | T9T9T | €P6ST | 6SLST | 9CCST | €9svT | SPLET | SOTET

veoc €€0T (4074 T€0T 950074 6202 8207 20T 9207 scoc vcoc €202 [44074 1202 074474 6102 8102 £102
Asenuer Asenuer Aszenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Aszenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Ausenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Adenuer Asenuer Auenuef

OZPET | 0€6CT | 00STT
B¥PCT | SSTCT | LL6TT

910 S10C 102
Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer

v€0Z-v10Z (pa4) suondaload pue (anjq) sjjo1 ‘Ayoeded T1-ZA Alepuodas

A2 de) e

TT 01/ mummm

008TT
00021
00cet
00vZT
00921
008CT
000€T
0o0zeT
00vET
009€T
008cT
000vT
00ZvT
00¥¥T
009%T
008¥T
000ST
00¢stT
00%ST
009ST
008ST
00091
00291
00¥9T
00991
00891
000LT
00ZLT
00vLT
009.T
008LT



118

LVEE | LYEE  LVEE LVEE LVEE LVEE | LVEE LOPE [OVE LESE TTSE TSSE  C8PE  LBYE LOPE  LBEE GITE OCIE Ov6C  088C 00T Audede) s
C6EC | €9€C | 69YC  6¥SC  CTI9C 9TLC | 8G8C | GS98C | LI6C | LOTE 6STE 66IE  €OCE | TLZE  6LEE | 89CE €90E 9E€0E G69C | S6SC | 60FC JARLEIN

ve0c €€0C (4114 T€0C @ 0¢g0c 620¢ 8¢0C LgoTt 9zoc czot veoc €¢0C | Ccot @ T1EToT 0zoc 610TC 8T10C LT0C 910C €10 | v10¢
Aenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Aaenuer Asenuer

00€¢
- - - 0GET
oove
osve
00S¢
086¢
009¢
089¢
00T
06LT
008t
088¢
0062
086¢
000¢€
06S0¢€

00TE
0STE
00ce
0sze
00ce
0see
oove
osve
006¢€
0s6¢e
009¢

¥€0Z-v10Z (P24) suonaafoad pue (2n/q) jj04 ‘Aydeded ZA Alepuodas



119

€ETE VBIE T97E [PEE 88EE B88EE BIVE 6IPE BEEE GOT'E 8S6'C EVI'T 9VE'T TLT'T S68'T SOT'T 660°7 Tsalas

€ I€ O0Of 6 8 [T 9T ST ¥r € T 1z OC 6T 8T LT 9T
/TE0Z /0£0Z /6207 /8207 /LT0T /920 /SE0T /we0E /€20t /Zzoz /120t /0T0z /6107 /8102 /L10Z /9107 /ST0C

_.l
¥
-___+___
*
L]
-

.
.
.I*I '.
.-.._____.l:-.___l-.-___.-.-. -_--
.
*tmagaane”

TE-v20T P31a3foid ‘€Z-STOZ [BNIIY - S||04 ETA/ZTA

008'T
0587
006'T
0S6'T
0002
050°¢
0012
0ST°C
007'¢
0S¢°C
00€'¢
0SE'T
00v'2
0SK'e
0057
0§5'
0097
059'
00£°T
0SL'
0087
058'
0067
056'
000°E
050'€
00T'E
0ST'E
007'E
052°'c
0DE'E
0SE'€
00¥'E
0SH'E




120

%S€
%0'¥
%SV
%0°S
%S’ S
%09
%S9
%0°L
%SL
%08
%58
%06
%56
%0°0T
%S0T
%0°'TT
%STT
%0°CT
%SCT
%0°ET
%S'ET
%0vT
%STT
%0°ST
%S'ST
%091

%EST | WBET | %SCT | %CTT | %ECT | %BLTT | BETCT | BWO'TT | %L OT %66 %08 %0'L %€9 %
oS¢ S0€T £60T 0902 €60T 881¢C 8¢1¢C €807 v88T oLt 80vT vict S90T £88 €L8 6v6 00Tt SL6 L6 SL9 €¢S

ve0T €€0T €0 €02 00t 620¢ 820c £202 920t T4 1 74474 €202 (44874 1202 0coc 6102 810¢ £102 910¢ S102 v102c
Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Adenuer Asenuer Aue

PE-VT10C % PUE SODUEBJEA T1- LA

‘S %t'S %19 %YL %69 %CL %C'S %CP

(7]

SIEA TT-/ A o

H0 —

00¢
00¢€
0ov
00S
009
0L

o

008

006

000T
00TT
00Tt
00€T
00vT
00ST
009T
00LT
008T
006T
000¢
0o0te
00ce
00€T
00vc
00sc
0092
00L2



121

%0'C
%0°€
%0
%0°'S
%09
%0°L
%08
%0°6
%0°0T
%0°'TT
%07TT
%0°€ET
%0 vT
%0°ST
%0°9T
%0°LT
%0°8T
%0°6T
%0°0T
%0°1C
%0°CT
%0°€T
%0'vC
%0°ST
%0°9¢
%0°LT
%0°8C
%0°6¢C
%0°0¢€
%0°TE

%S8BC | %Y'6C  BCIT | WBEC  WOCC  %6BT | %9PT | %PLT | %6'ST | %CCT | %EOT | %66 %08 %C9 %S¢ %S'€ %LV %L T %E8 %66 | %801
SS6 786 8.8 86L SE€L 1€9 687v 09 0SS 8134 €9¢€ €SE 647 91¢ 88 611 st 8 ) 44 s8¢ 16¢C

ve0T €€0T €0t €02 0€0c 620¢ 820¢ £20¢ 9202 S0t veoc €20 (44474 jrderd 0coc 610¢C 810¢c £102 9102 S10¢C v10c
Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Asenuer Adenuer Auenuer Adenuer Ausenuer Asenuer Asenuer Aszenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer Auenuer Asenuer

-

VE-VTOC % PUE SSIDUEBIEA LA

SJeA [/ B3 | e

SL

00T
ST
0sT
SLT
00¢
144
0S¢
SLT
00€
Sce
0S€
SLE
0ov
574 4
osv
SLY
00S
14
0SS
SLS
009
Sc9
0s9
SL9
00L
SCL
0SsL
SLL
008
14
0S8
SL8
006
SC6
0S6
SL6
000T

H0 —



122

CSF'E | GESE

65TT | 0BT

97T | SSCT
ST-HI0C | #T-E701

009t = S99t | [18% | 06Lt | 9TF% | 990 | 990 | WAL
SPET | 60FC | OIFC | E6ET | T98T | LETT | 99TT | (0907
SSTT | 9SIT | (66T | [6ET | GIET | 8I6 0Z6 8L
£T-TT07 | TC-TT07 | TT-0Z0 | O7-6T07 | 61-8TOC | 8T-L10Z | (1-9T0C | 9T-GT0T

S7/v707 0191/5107 Suonedijddy Alepuodas

[y =——

57 -

YanoJog NG M

00g
000'T
0057
0007
0057
000'¢
005'%
000

005




SECTION 14— SECONDARY SCHOOLS BY WARD, SEPTEMBER 2024, and PAN (Y7, 2024-2025)

Secondary School Type PAN | Council Ward
ARK All Saints Academy Academy (CE) 120 | Camberwell Green
ARK Globe Academy (Secondary) Academy 180 | Chaucer
Bacon's College Academy (CE) 185 | Rotherhithe
Charter School (North Dulwich) Academy 192 | Champion Hill
City of London Academy (COLA) Southwark Academy 240 | South Bermondsey
Charter Bermondsey (ex-Compass School) Free School 110 | North Bermondsey
Harris Academy Bermondsey Academy 180 | South Bermondsey
Harris Academy Peckham Academy 120 | Rye Lane
Harris Boys' Academy East Dulwich Academy 150 | Dulwich Hill
Harris Girls' Academy East Dulwich Academy 150 | Peckham Rye
Kingsdale Foundation School Academy 420 | Dulwich Wood
Notre Dame Roman Catholic Girls' School Academy (RC) 124 | St George’s
Sacred Heart Roman Catholic Secondary Academy (RC) 120 | Camberwell Green
St Michael's Catholic College Academy (RC) 150 | North Bermondsey
St Saviour's and St Olave's C of E School VA CE 124 | Chaucer
The St Thomas the Apostle College VA RC 152 | Nunhead & Queen's Road
ARK Walworth Academy Academy 180 | Faraday
South Bank University Academy Free School 150 | Faraday
Charter School East Dulwich Free School 240 | Goose Green
Haberbdashers’ Aske’s Borough Academy Free School 180 | Borough & Bankside
Southwark Total 3,537
Academies Academy 2,706 | 77% of Secondary Y7 places
Free Schools Free School 540 | 15% of Secondary Y7 places
VA CE VA CE 124 | 4% of Secondary Y7 places
VA RC VA RC 152 | 4% of Secondary Y7 places
Southwark Total 3,537

el



SECTION 15 — SECONDARY (7-11) Cross border flows to and from Southwark — 2023/24

Table 20 7-11 Pupils attending secondary schools in other LAs/pupils from other LAs attending Southwark schools

Pupils from Percentage of Pupils from other Percglr}ttage
Southwark Southwark LAs attending o +/- flow
atte?ding other Out borough Southwark pupilsgin
LA’s schools Schools S el
Lambeth 1,095 1,455 +360
Lewisham 662 24% 1,690 40% +1,028
Westminster 455 17% 12 0.3% -443
Croydon 131 5% 361 9% +230
Greenwich 75 3% 94 2% +19
Wandsworth 43 2% 59 1% +16
Hammersmith & Fulham | 42 2% 2 0.05% -40
Kensington & Chelsea 39 1% 1 0.02% -38
Bromley 32 1% 218 5% +186
Sutton 29 1% 5 0.1% -24
Tower Hamlets 24 1% 130 3% +106
Merton 21 1% 40 1% +19
Bexley 18 1% 14 0.3% -4
Camden 14 1% 11 0.3% -3
Newham 4 0.1% 36 1% +32
City of London 0 0% 9 0.2% +9
Kent & Medway 25 1% 14 0.3% -11
Other London LAs 32 1% 83 2% +51
Other non-London LAs | 8 0.3% 31 1% +23
All cross borough 2,748 100% 4,216 100% +1,468

1£4"



1,050
1,000
950
300
850
800
750
700
650
600
550
500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50

Seriesl

Secondary Cross Border Flows 2023/24

=
|
Tower Other Other non-

Newham Greenwich| Merton Wandswort  City of

Beoriey Hamlets London LAs London LAs h London 2ol

Lewisham Lambeth Croydon

1,028 360 230 186 106 51 32 23 19 19 16 9 -3

ey Medway

-4

Kent &

-1

Sutton

-24

Kensington
& Chelsea

-38

Hammersm
ith &
Fulham

40

Westminst
er

-443

Gc1l



Section 16 — Breakdown of Secondary school rolls by school and borough (Southwark(LBS)/Non-Southwark (Outborough (OB)) 2023/24

%LBS | %OB Main Outborough % Other Outborough (OB) LAs at or above 1%
. Lambeth (3%), Bromley (1%), Greenwich (1%),
0, 0, 0,
St Thomas the Apostle College (STAC) 65% 35% Lewisham (24%) Croydon (1%), Bexley (1%), Kent (1%)
Lewisham (7%), Croydon (4%),
Notre Dame RC School 69% 31% Lambeth (13%) Greenwich (1%), Westminster (1%),
Wandsworth (1%) Islington (1%)
. Lambeth (2%), Bromley (1%), Greenwich (1%), Newham
0, 0, 0
Ark Walworth Academy 87% 13% Lewisham (5%) (1%), Croydon (1%)
Ark All Saints Academy 86% 14% Lambeth (10%) Croydon (1%), Lewisham (1%)
Ark Globe Academy (Secondary) 89% 11% Lewisham (5%) Lambeth (2%), Greenwich (1%), Newham (1%)
Bacon’s College 78% 22% Lewisham (19%) Greenwich (1%)
Barking & Dagenham (1%), Lambeth (1%), Greenwich
City of London Academy (Southwark) 83% 17% Lewisham (8%) (19%), Newham (1%),
Croydon (1%), City (1%),Tower Hamlets (1%)
. Greenwich (1%), Tower Hamlets (1%),
0, 0, 0,
Charter Bermondsey 90% 10% Lewisham (6%) Bromley (1%)
Haberdasher's Borough Academy 90% 10% Lambeth (8%) No others 1% or more
Harris Bermondsey Academy 69% 31% Lewisham (19%) Lambeth (3%), Greenwich (2%)
. . Lambeth (3%), Greenwich (2%), Newham (2%)
0, 0, 0,
Harris Peckham Academy 78% 22% Lewisham (8%) Croydon (1%)
Lambeth (3%), Greenwich (2%),
Harris Boys East Dulwich Academy 63% 37% Lewisham (28%) Croydon (1%), Bromley (1%), Bexley (1%), Newham
(1%)
. . . Lambeth (5%), Croydon (1%),
0, 0, 0
Harris Girls East Dulwich Academy 70% 30% Lewisham (20%) Greenwich (1%), Bromley (1%)
. . Lewisham (22%), Croydon (12%), Bromley (9%),
0, 0, 0,
Kingsdale Foundation School 24% 76% Lambeth (31%) Greenwich (1%), Wandsworth (1%)
- . . Lambeth (5%), Croydon (1%), Greenwich (1%)
0, 0, 0
St Saviour's & St Olave's CE School 84% 16% Lewisham (6%) Tower Hamlets (1%)
South Bank University Academy 89% 11% Lambeth (6%) Lewisham (3%), Croydon (1%)
Lewisham (8%), Lambeth (4%),
St Michael's Catholic College 61% 39% Tower Hamlets (18%) Islington (1%), Camden (1%), Bexley (1%), Greenwich
(1%), Newham (1%)
Charter School North Dulwich 68% 32% Lambeth (25%) Lewisham (4%), Croydon (1%), Bromley (1%)
Lewisham (4%), Croydon (2%)
Sacred Heart RC School 70% 30% Lambeth (22%) Greenwich (1%), Bromley (1%)
5 -
Charter School East Dulwich 88% 12% Lambeth (‘?5(8/)0) Lewisham Croydon (1%)
Lewisham (12%) Bromley (2%), Croydon (2%),
Southwark total 70% 30% Lambeth (10%) Greenwich (1%), Tower Hamlets (1%)

9¢1



Percentage Outborough (Orange)/Southwak(Blue) Secondary pupils by School 2023/24

100
95%
90%
85%
80%
75%
70%
65%
60%
55%
50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%
0%
N

ES

[

N

\l
& &

o < N SO Q
o o s o o & Ry 5) " &
X & < A & X & < X o N e o X 2 & 2 & & 2
& & F ¢ § & P& Y A & P & Qy‘ & &K & F
& AT Gl ¥ v Q& ) Al & s \ il & v & \s
I I A P T P A A A S A )
* ? § > § S ° & X & & o & @ & <
N C o & o Q & O 9 & o N » o 2 & Py
o N2 Q & o & & A\ Bd ] o X * & < & & o <P
£ & & &K & & & SAC AR S P GRS S
@\;}\ P o 6‘@? q}‘é ¥ 0\& o Qgﬁ* b°° &0 * s » & \o’°° (\000 9 S
Ly o 6@" (o) e S q;‘o o 8’0 &> o
Qé O eé & & * ) W
+ L& W Q >
o &

H%LBS m%OB



Southwark Secondary pupils by LA 2023/24

Southwark
73%

Lewisham
11%

0.1%

'7!'!‘ e
N / . Lambeth
1% 9%
\ [N ‘

Croydon
2%

l
Wandsworth [ 1o : Bromley
0.4% o 1tyy Camden Merton Greenwich | Newham Tower Hamlets 2%
st 0.1% 0.3% 1% 0.2% 1%

8¢1



SECTION 17 — ACADEMY SCHOOLS BY SPONSOR
Table 22 Academies and Free Schools in Southwark and their sponsors (*these MATs have schools in other LAS)
Special (3)

Sponsor/Number of Academies (39)

ARK (3)*

Primary & All through (18)

Secondary & all through (18)

ARK All Saints Academy
ARK Walworth Academy

ARK Globe School (4-19)

Harris Federation (6)*

Harris Peckham Park

Harris Primary Free East Dulwich

Harris Bermondsey
Harris East Dulwich Girls
Harris East Dulwich Boys

Harris Peckham

Charter Educational Trust (7)

Charles Dickens Primary
Lyndhurst Primary
The Belham Primary
Dulwich Hamlet Junior

Charter North Dulwich

Charter East Dulwich

Charter Bermondsey
(ex-Compass)

Spa Educational Trust (3)

Spa Bermondsey
Spa Camberwell
Park College ¢

The Kingsdale Foundation (1)

Kingsdale Foundation

City of London Academies Trust (3)*

Redriff Primary
Galleywall Primary

City of London Academy (COLA)
Southwark

Nexus Educational Trust* (5) (NEST)

Goose Green Primary
John Donne Primary
John Keats Free
Rotherhithe Primary
Dog Kennel Hill Primary

STEP Academy Trust (1)* Angel Oak Academy
St Thomas Aquinas C of E Trust (1)* St Paul’'s Walworth C of E
Lift Trust (1)* | Newlands Academy

Anthem Schools Trust (1)*

Judith Kerr Primary

United Learning Trust (1)*
Sacred Heart Catholic Trust (1)*

Bacon’s College

Sacred Heart Catholic School

St Benedict RC Academy Trust (2)*

St Anthony’s RC

St Michaels College

St Oscar Romero RC Academies Trust (2)*

St Joseph George Row

Notre Dame Girls

Haberdasher’'s Aske’s Trust (1)*
South Bank Academies (1)*

Haberdashers’ Aske’s Borough

South Bank University Academy

¢ Post compulsory age, not counted in total

62T



Section 18 — Independent School rolls 2016-24

6125
6100
6075
6050
6025
6000
5975
5950
5925
5900
5875
5850
5825
5800
5775
5750
5725
5700
5675
5650
5625
5600
5575

Pupils

Independent school pupils 2016-24

2015/16
5655

2016/17
5654

2017/18
5668

2018/19
5693

2019/20
5758

2020/21
5831

2021/22
5879

2022/23
5892

2023/24
6083

0€T



SECTION 19 — SPECIAL (4-16) Cross border flows to and from Southwark — 2023/24

Table 24 7-11 Pupils attending special schools in other LAs/pupils from other LAs attending Southwark schools
Pupils from Percentage of Pupils from other  Percentage
Southwark Southwark LAs attending Out borough
attending other Out borough Southwark pupils in
LA’s schools pupils Southwark

Lambeth 51 47% 24 36% -27
Lewisham 13 12% 17 26% +4
Westminster 7 6% 0 0% -7
Croydon 5 5% 0 0% -5
Greenwich 0 0% 1 2% +1
Wandsworth 6 6% 1 2% -5
Hammersmith & Fulham 2 2% 1 2% -1
Haringey 2 2% 0 0% -2
Islington 7 6% 0 0% -7
Kensington & Chelsea 0 0% 1 2% +1
Bromley 4 4% 4 6% 0
Sutton 1 1% 1 2% 0
Tower Hamlets 4 4% 0 0% -4
Merton 2 2% 3 5% +1
Bexley 0 0% 1 2% +1
Camden 2 2% 0 0% -2
City of London 0 0% 9 14% -9
Brent 0 0% 1 2% +1
Havering 0 0% 1 2% +1
Waltham Forest 1 1% 0 0% -1
Kingston-Upon-Thames 0 0% 1 2% +1
Other (non-London) LAs 1 1% 1 2% 0
All cross borough 108 100% 66 100% -42

T€T



Southwark Special School Population 2023/24

Southwark
90.2%

Lambeth
4.1%

A
Lewisham

2.9%
|

Hammersmith & Fulham
0.2%
Kensington & Chelsea
0.2%

Wandsworth
0.2%
Greenwich
0.2%
Other (non-London) LAs | | Kingston-Upon-Thames | | Havering | Brent Bexley = Bromley
0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% | Merton 0.7%

cel



Special School Cross Border Flows

133

eth

Lamb
27

Craydon Wandsworth | Westminster =

wantham Tower
Forest Harneey Emden Hamiets
2

sington

Other (non  Hammersmith
& Futham
1

London]ias
Ll

Sutton
o

Sromicy

Upon T hames
1

Kingstan

5

Haves
1

Brent
1

Bexiey

Merton
1

I H E N B B B B
Kensington &
Chetsea

Lowisham Greemwich
s 1

i
ANNTNONONONMNTNWON &
i N NN Y

N NANHOANM S LNONON O
L R O T T i [
1



Agenda ltem 7

134

Meeting Name:

Education and Local
Economy Scrutiny

Commission

Date: 7 July 2025

Report title: Education and Local Economy Scrutiny
Commission Work Programme 2025-26

Ward(s) or groups affected: | N/a

Classification: Open

Reason for lateness (if | N/a

applicable):
From: Scrutiny Officer

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the education and local economy scrutiny commission note the work
programme as at 7 July 2025 attached as Appendix 1.

That the education and local economy scrutiny commission consider the
addition of new items or allocation of previously identified items to specific
meeting dates of the commission.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.

The general terms of reference of the scrutiny commissions are set out in
the council’s constitution (overview and scrutiny procedure rules -
paragraph 5). The constitution states that:

Within their terms of reference, all scrutiny committees/commissions will:

a) review and scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the council’s functions

b) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the
cabinet and council officers both in relation to individual decisions and
over time in areas covered by its terms of reference



135

c) review and scrutinise the performance of the council in relation to its
policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas

d) question members of the cabinet and officers about their decisions and
performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and
targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions,
initiatives or projects and about their views on issues and proposals
affecting the area

e) assist council assembly and the cabinet in the development of its budget
and policy framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues

f) make reports and recommendations to the cabinet and or council
assembly arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process

g) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants

h) liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether
national, regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are
enhanced by collaborative working

i) review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area
and invite reports from them by requesting them to address the scrutiny

committee and local people about their activities and performance

j) conduct research and consultation on the analysis of policy issues and
possible options

k) question and gather evidence from any other person (with their consent)

[) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance
community participation in the scrutiny process and in the development
of policy options

m) conclude inquiries promptly and normally within six months

4.  The work programme document lists those items which have been or are
to be considered in line with the commission’s terms of reference.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

5. Setoutin Appendix 1 (Work Programme) are the issues the education and
local economy scrutiny commission is due to consider in 2025-26.



136

The work programme is a standing item on the education and local
economy scrutiny commission agenda and enables the commission to
consider, monitor and plan issues for consideration at each meeting.

The commission has within in its remit the cabinet portfolio elements listed
below:

Children, Education & Refugees (Councillor Jasmine Ali, Deputy
Leader and Cabinet Member)

e Early years and childcare — including children and family centres, early
years education, childminders and nurseries

e Schools - including school standards, inclusion, places and admissions;
special education needs; free healthy school and nursery meals and
fruit; healthy schools and Southwark’s Let's Go Zero schools network

e Further, higher and adult education — including English for speakers
of other languages (ESOL), adult literacy and numeracy; and
scholarships

e Children’s social care — including children in care and care leavers,
fostering and adoption, support for children with disabilities and their
families; and child safeguarding

e Family support — including parenting programmes, the council’s sure-
start for teenagers service and support for families who are providing
unpaid care for a child with a disability or health condition, including
respite care

e Youth offending services.

Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills & Business (Councillor John

Batteson)

e Increasing employment - support to find a job or start a new carer;
careers advice and work experience; paid internships; supporting young
people and care leavers’ into employment, education and training;
relationship with Jobcentre Plus; supporting businesses to engage with
schools and colleges (including the Education Business Alliance)

e Vocational Skills - including apprenticeships, vocational training and
skills centres

e Businesses support - for local businesses, cooperatives, social
enterprises and entrepreneurs; increasing procurement from local
businesses; and relationships with local business groups and Business
Improvement Districts.

e High streets — including town centre action plans, Thriving Highstreets
Fund, markets

e Commercial property — management, leasing and rent setting of the
council’s retail and commercial units, office accommodation and related

property



137

e Industrial strategy - growing industries that generate good jobs and
wider value for our community, including green industries, life sciences
and creative and cultural industries

e Living Wage - promoting the London Living Wage employers

e Workers’ rights - promoting good employment practices and equality
and diversity at work and trade union membership.

Deputy Cabinet Member for Young People (Councillor Portia
Mwangangye)

Increasing the voice and influence of young people
Southwark Youth Parliament

The council’s in-house and commissioned youth services
Positive Futures Fund

Southwark Young Advisors.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Education and Local Southwark Amit Alva
Economy Scrutiny Council Website |Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk
Commission agenda and
minutes
Link:
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=550&Year=0

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Work Programme 2025-26
AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer | Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer

Report Author | Amit Alva, Scrutiny Officer

Version | Final

Dated |27 June 2025

Key Decision? | No

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /
CABINET MEMBER

4


mailto:Amit.alva@southwark.gov.uk
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=550&Year=0

138

Officer Title Comments Sought/Comments Included
Director of Law and Governance No No
Strategic Director of No No
Finance and Governance
Cabinet Member No No

Date final report sent to Scrutiny Team

27 June 2025




Appendix 1

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme — 2025/26

Meeting Agenda items Comment
Pupil Place Planning in Primary Schools and its To get an update from the officers on Pupil Place
impact on Secondary School admissions under the | Planning in primary schools and also review the
Keeping Education Strong (KES) Strategy. Pupil Place Planning Annexe 2024-25 - Submitted
to Cabinet in February 2025 (Appendix 6)
7 July 2025 Traders from East Street Market To hear the traders’ views on any improvements

that have been made and/or in progress and any
areas of concern/issues that the council could help
with.

Upcoming Meetings

6 October 2025

3 December 2025
2 February 2026
4 March 2026

6€T



140



141

Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2025-26

AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

NOTE: Original held by Scrutiny Team; all amendments/queries to Amit Alva Tel: 020 7525
0496

Name No of Name

copies
Electronic Copy Joseph Brown — Senior Cabinet Officer
Members:

Euan Cadzow-Webb - Liberal Democrat

Councillor Cassandra Brown (Chair) Group Office
Councillor Rachel Bentley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mohamed Deen Sarauniya Shehu- Cabinet Office Manager
Councillor Irina Von Wiese
Councillor Margy Newens Liam Reid- Cabinet Advisor

Councillor Youcef Hassaine
Councillor Jon Hartley

Education Representatives
Martin Brecknell

Alie Kallon

Mannah Kargbo

Reserves Members

Councillor Joseph Vambe
Councillor Maggie Browning
Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Jason Ochere
Councillor Sam Foster
Councillor Victor Chamberlain
Councillor Adam Hood

Dated: June 2025

No of
copies




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes, 04/02/2025 Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
	Minutes

	Minutes, 08/04/2025 Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission
	Minutes


	5 Pupil Place Planning in Primary Schools and its impact on Secondary School admissions
	Appendix 1. Pupil Place Planning Annexe 2024-25 - Submitted  to Cabinet- February 2025 ( Appendix 6)

	7 Proposed Work Programmes 2025-26
	Appendix 1. Proposed Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission Work Programme 2025-2026

	 Distribution List 2025/26
	DistributionList EdLoEcSC 2025-26, 07/07/2025 Education and Local Economy Scrutiny Commission


